
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

December 11, 2024 
10:00 A.M. – 1:00 P.M. 

Location 
Marines Memorial Hotel 

609 Sutter Street 
San Francisco, CA. 94102 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
2. Review and Approval of September 18, 2024, Minutes 

 
3. Director’s Report 

 
4. Consent Calendar 

A. Administrative and Personnel Report 
B. Legal Report 
C. Enforcement Report 
D. PDRB Report 

 
Regular Calendar 

 
5. EMS Administration 

A. Legislative Report 
B. Regulations Update 

 
6. EMS Systems 

A. Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT) report  
B. Autonomous vehicles and their effects on EMS  
C. EMS for Children (EMSC) update 

7. EMS Personnel 
A. Statewide Paramedic licensure report 
B. EMT Denial report 
 

8. DMS 
A. Fire season deployments 

9. Nominations of Officers (March 2025-March 2026) 
A. Chairperson  
B. Vice Chairperson 
C. Two Administrative Committee Representatives 

10. Approval of Commission Dates for 2026  



11. Follow-Up on Previous Items 
A. PDRB Public Comment Follow Up 
B. Refer to item EMSC update (Item 6C) 

 
12.  Items for Next Agenda 

 
13.  Public Comment 

 
14. Adjournment 

 
 
 
 
 
A full agenda packet will not be provided at the meeting; however, you can 
print a full packet, including the agenda from the Department’s website at 
www.emsa.ca.gov. This event will be held in an accessible facility. 
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services to ensure 
accessibility such as language interpreting, assisted listening device, 
materials in alternate formats or other accommodation, should contact 
j.mcginnis@emsa.ca.gov, no less than 7 days prior to the meeting. 

http://www.emsa.ca.gov/
mailto:j.mcginnis@emsa.ca.gov,


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COMMISSION ON EMS 

September 18, 2024 
Wyndham San Diego Bayside  

1355 North Harbor Drive 
San Diego, CA 92101 

 
MINUTES 

 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: 
Sean Burrows, Chair, Marc Gautreau, M.D., Vice Chair, Steve Barrow,  
David Ghilarducci, M.D., Travis Kusman, Julie Marquez, M.D., Ken Miller, M.D., 
Ph.D., Lori Morgan, M.D., Lamont Nguyen, Masaru “Rusty” Oshita, M.D., Jodie 
Pierce, James Pierson, Carole Snyder, and Atilla Uner, M.D. 
 
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 
Thomas Giandomenico, Lydia Lam, M.D., Todd Rausser, and Kristin Thompson 
 
EMS AUTHORITY STAFF PRESENT: 
Elizabeth Basnett, Director 
Hernando Garzon, M.D., Acting Medical Director  
Nicole Mixon, EMS Personnel Standards Unit 
Tim Reed, Chief, Disaster Medical Services Division 
Diane Sabonis, PDRB Special Advisor 
Ashley Williams, Deputy Director of Legislative and External Affairs  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTORS: 
Mike Noone, Orange County EMS 
Ray Ramirez, California Fire Chiefs Association 
Amanda Ward, Crafton Hills College 

1.  CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Chair Sean Burrows called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. Fourteen 
Commissioners were present. He led the Pledge of Allegiance and reviewed the 
meeting protocols and meeting agenda. 

Chair Burrows introduced Julie Marquez and welcomed her to the Commission. 

2.  REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF JUNE 12, 2024, MINUTES 
Commissioner Barrow stated action items and Commissioner questions should 
be addressed in the following meetings’ Director’s Reports. 



2 

 

Elizabeth Basnett, Director, stated staff makes note of items that need to be 
addressed and works with the Administrative Committee to either put requested 
information on following agendas or send them out by email. 

Action:  Commissioner Morgan made a motion, seconded by Commissioner 
Snyder, that: 

• The Commission approves the June 12, 2024, Commission on Emergency 
Medical Services (EMS) Meeting Minutes as presented. 

Motion carried 12 yes, 0 no, and 1 abstain, per roll call vote as follows: 

The following Commissioners voted “Yes”: Commissioners Barrow, Ghilarducci, 
Kusman, Marquez, Miller, Morgan, Nguyen, Oshita, Pierson, Snyder, and Uner, 
and Vice Chair Gautreau. 

The following Commissioner abstained: Commissioner Pierce. 

3. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
A. CA EMS System Strategic Plan Update 

Director Basnett stated the strategic planning process was initiated in June of 
2022. She provided an overview, with a slide presentation, of the vision and 
mission statements, guiding principles, and strategic priorities of the California 
EMS System Strategic Plan for 2023-33. She reviewed the short-, intermediate-, 
and long-term objectives and tasks that were put in place to accomplish each 
strategic priority, such as creating definitions for equity, transparency, and 
resilience, and defining an equity metrics framework. She stated the EMS 
Authority (EMSA) will be hosting three equity forums across California and a 
statewide virtual town hall in early 2025 to gather feedback on definitions of 
equity in EMS and an equity framework assessment. 

Director Basnett stated she is committed to updating the strategic plan with the 
Strategic Planning Advisory Committee and EMS partners every two years. 

Discussion 

Commissioner Barrow asked if Commissioners can attend the Chapter 1 EMSA 
EMS Policy Advisory Committee (EPAC) meetings. 

Director Basnett stated members of the public are not invited to attend Chapter 
1 meetings, but Commissioners can attend update meetings for any of the other 
regulations and the equity forums, as long as no more than two Commissioners 
are present, as required by the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act. 

Chair Burrows thanked Director Basnett for the thorough report. He stated 
appreciation for the work that staff has done on the strategic plan and today’s 
update.  



3 

 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. Administrative and Personnel Report 
B. Legal Report 
C. Enforcement Report 

Chair Burrows asked for a motion to approve the Consent Calendar. 

Action:  Commissioner Ghilarducci made a motion, seconded by Commissioner 
Pierson, that: 

• The Commission approves all items on the Consent Calendar as 
presented. 

Motion carried 14 yes, 0 no, and 0 abstain, per roll call vote as follows: 

The following Commissioners voted “Yes”: Commissioners Barrow, Ghilarducci, 
Kusman, Marquez, Miller, Morgan, Nguyen, Oshita, Pierce, Pierson, Snyder, and 
Uner, Vice Chair Gautreau, and Chair Burrows. 

REGULAR CALENDAR 

5. EMS ADMINISTRATION 
A. Legislative Report 

Ashley Williams, Deputy Director of Legislative and External Affairs, reviewed the 
EMSA Legislative Update of the bills currently being tracked and analyzed by 
staff, which was included in the meeting materials and posted on the website. 

Discussion 

Commissioner Uner asked if the EMSA has a position on Proposition 35. 

Deputy Director Williams stated it does not. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

B. Regulations Update 
Deputy Director Williams stated the Regulations update was covered in the 
Director’s Report. She highlighted that the Regulations re-chaptering was 
approved by the Office of Administrative Law (OAL). The updated Regulations 
are expected to be published in October of 2024. She noted that a cross-
reference of the old and new reference numbers was included in the meeting 
materials. 

Discussion 

Commissioner Ghilarducci asked if any substantive additional comments were 
submitted during the public comment period. 



4 

 

Deputy Director Williams stated there were none. 

Chair Burrows asked if hospitals have submitted their plans by the deadline as 
required by Assembly Bill (AB) 40. 

Director Basnett stated the EMSA has been receiving submittals from hospitals 
statewide. Staff is working with the California Hospital Association (CHA) to cross-
reference the facilities that should be sending their information to the EMSA. 

Commissioner Snyder asked about minutes and sign-in sheets from the AB 40 
Work Group meeting.  

Director Basnett stated there were no minutes, but the sign-in sheet from the 
virtual meeting will be shared with Commissioners and Work Group participants. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

C. PDRB Report 
Diane Sabonis, Paramedic Disciplinary Review Board (PDRB) Special Advisor, 
stated she is recruiting to backfill her recently vacated PDRB Attorney position. 
She provided an overview, with a slide presentation, of the background, criteria 
for paramedic license revocation, suspension, and probation, revised criteria for 
consideration, and PDRB changes made to progressive discipline violations. She 
stated AB 450 mandated the PDRB to develop and implement progressive 
discipline criteria to aid in making final determinations, and review and revise 
the criteria for the revocation and suspension of a paramedic license, the 
probation of EMT-P personnel, and the appeal of a licensure decision by the 
EMSA to the board so that the criteria are consistent with the above mandates. 
She noted that the PDRB’s highest priority is protection of the public. 

Ms. Sabonis stated the PDRB has completed the AB 450 mandate. She stated 
the PDRB staff and EMSA Regulations team will next update the Recommended 
Guidelines for Disciplinary Orders and Conditions of Probation with the revised 
criteria, recommended changes to the progressive discipline, and other 
revisions as necessary to bring it into compliance with AB 450. 

Discussion 

Commissioner Ghilarducci referred to the yellow text under Item 8 in Slide 7 and 
stated the previous criterion held that there was an actual or potential harm 
from an error, omission, or deviation from standard of care. The term “potential” 
has been removed from the revised criterion; the new standard requires an 
objective connection between the patient’s outcome and that error or 
omission. He asked if he was interpreting this correctly. 

Ms. Sabonis stated she was not present when this criterion was revised. The 
criterion now limits the consideration to actual harm. 



5 

 

Commissioner Ghilarducci noted for the record that in many cases it is almost 
impossible to make a direct link between an error in omission and the actual 
outcome. Sometimes the outcome is preordained. He gave the example of a 
severe trauma case where survival was not likely either way, but the error or 
omission certainly did not help with the outcome. Establishing a direct 
connection can be difficult. He stated the need to consider those factors when 
reviewing cases. 

Ms. Sabonis stated these criteria are now set forth in statute and can only be 
changed by legislative action. The PDRB and decision makers at the appeal 
level will use these revised criteria. 

Commissioner Ghilarducci referred to the second violation, conviction of any 
crime, in the list of seven violations on Slide 18 that the PDRB found that the 
progressive discipline was sufficient to protect the public and asked if there are 
guidelines on how the PDRB would consider licensure or discipline based on an 
accusation versus a conviction. 

Ms. Sabonis stated this question is more for Enforcement or Legal. She noted that 
there is a requirement to prove that there is a substantial relationship between 
the crime and the violation. 

Vice Chair Gautreau echoed Commissioner Ghilarducci’s concerns with respect 
to actual versus potential harm. He referred to the recommended discipline on 
Slide 13, the progressive discipline of the violation of incompetence, and stated 
concern that removal of the 30-day suspension removes the period of time 
during which remediation and education can be developed and implemented. 

Ms. Sabonis stated an individual on suspension cannot perform their duties as a 
paramedic. She stated the PDRB struggled with situations where a period of 
incompetence could be quickly addressed. The Board felt that a 30-day 
suspension would delay addressing incompetence and that the addition of a 
three-year probation would allow for protection of the public during the 
probationer’s period of building new skills. She noted that these 
recommendations will be presented to the Commission for review and approval 
in the future. 

Commissioner Morgan referred to Slides 16 and 17, Unprofessional Conduct, and 
stated the approach to unprofessional conduct is not commensurate to what 
other professions do in the state of California. It is disappointingly light. 

Commissioner Barrow stated decisions made in the Legislature are not based on 
knowledge. It is important for professionals to weigh in on standards and 
guidelines. 



6 

 

Commissioner Barrow spoke against the loss of income during suspensions and 
stated the need for individuals to continue working while they are being 
corrected and retrained. 

Commissioner Ghilarducci agreed and added the need to consider if the 
employer is willing to continue to employ that person while they are under 
suspension. He stated the need to ensure that any suspension or other discipline 
is directed toward the best outcome for all parties involved. 

Commissioner Uner asked who has the burden of proof in cases of actual harm 
to the patient. 

Ms. Sabonis stated the EMSA has the burden of proof. 

Commissioner Uner noted that that will be a steep hill to climb. 

Public Comment 

Ray Ramirez, California Fire Chiefs Association (CalChiefs), speaking as an 
individual, asked if the existing Government Code Section 11522 that deals with 
appeals for licensure actions will be replaced by the new appeals process. 

Ms. Sabonis stated the Administrative Procedure Act has a process to address 
appeals of petitions for reinstatement. She suggested a discussion on this topic 
at a future meeting. 

Mr. Ramirez stated Government Code Section 1799.112 is currently in the 
immunities section of the EMS Code with the Good Samaritan Act. This is not in 
the right location and is often overlooked. The notification requirements 
between the statute and the Act are not synchronized and there are multiple 
definitions. He stated the need to clarify the trigger events for notification and 
who the employer is required to notify. 

Ms. Sabonis stated she has developed an internal policy to address this issue. 
She suggested a discussion on this topic at a future meeting. 

Chair Burrows asked that these two issues be put on the agenda for the next 
Commission meeting. 

Mike Noone, Orange County EMS, asked about the relationship between the 
revised language and the EMT-level Model Disciplinary Orders (MDOs) and if 
they will mirror each other. 

Director Basnett stated this is a great question but it cannot be answered today. 
Disciplinary chapter working groups will need to be set up to look at mirroring 
and how they interact in the two-tier system. 

Ms. Sabonis suggested going to the EMSA website and reviewing by violation 
how decision makers consider all of these factors to arrive at the right level of 
progressive discipline. 



7 

 

6. EMS SYSTEMS 
A. E-bike Report 

Hernando Garzon, Chief Medical Officer, EMSA, stated E-bike injury data from 
the California EMS Information System (CEMSIS) was agendized per 
Commissioner request at the June Commission meeting. He noted that the 
National EMS Information System (NEMSIS) pick list for Mechanism of Injury has 82 
options with two pedal cyclist-related items on the list that show up in CEMSIS 
data, but none of those include a specific E-bike category. 

Dr. Garzon stated the EMS Authority conducted a data query in the CEMSIS 
database for the Cause of Injury data element for all Primary Impressions of 
Traumatic Injury for the first quarter of 2024, with approximately 150,000 
incidents. Since the EMSA has never proposed a standardized pick list for this 
data element, there were only 471 distinct entries, 320 of which were 
combinations of multiple causes of injury that were reported in 10 or fewer 
incidents each. 

Dr. Garzon stated E-bike injury categories will be added in the future. He 
suggested noting E-bike injury categories and working with the data advisory 
group to select and define a pick list for Mechanism of Injury that can be 
socialized in the system to hopefully get improved documentation for better 
results on that and other causes of injury. 

Discussion 

Commissioner Barrow stated E-bikes are one of the top priorities of the state’s 
Unintentional Injury Prevention Strategic Plan coming out in November. He 
stated the importance of tracking E-bike injuries and whether the individual was 
wearing a helmet. This information is needed to plan for policy changes in the 
state to help keep individuals safe, especially children. 

Vice Chair Gautreau agreed that this is worth understanding better. Identifying 
E-bike versus E-scooter, helmet versus no helmet, and even the kind of E-bike 
often matters because some are more powerful than others. He asked if law 
enforcement keeps records of types of vehicles involved in accidents. 

Commissioner Barrow stated law enforcement does what it can but does not 
have the right kind of collection instruments in the field. 

Commissioner Ghilarducci stated he had asked for this agenda item at the last 
meeting because many conversations are happening in counties on this issue 
but the data is incomplete. He stated his organization is getting mostly 
anecdotal data from the university health center. 



8 

 

Commissioner Kusman stated this is a known problem that needs to be 
addressed through legislation and education. It is important to begin this work 
immediately as opposed to waiting to create or fix a data system. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

7.  EMS PERSONNEL 
A. Childcare Provider Training Update 

Nicole Mixon, Manager, Standards and Training Unit, stated this status report on 
the EMSA Childcare Provider Training Program was requested at the last 
Commission meeting. She reviewed the background and summary of the 
program and fiscal impact of sending staff to evaluate training program 
providers on-site, which was included in the meeting materials. She stated it is 
anticipated that on-site evaluation would require an additional $193,000 
annually. 

Discussion 

Commissioner Barrow stated he asked for this agenda item at the last meeting 
because his organization is advocating for additional funding to oversee the 
training of new childcare providers. There are over 600,000 children in childcare 
in California and only 60,000 to 70,000 licensed childcare providers. He stated 
the need for 200,000 trained and licensed childcare providers and the funding 
to audit that training. 

Commissioner Ghilarducci asked if the EMSA has influence on the content of the 
curriculum. 

Ms. Mixon stated it does. 

Commissioner Ghilarducci stated many Commissioners saw a compelling 
presentation yesterday about the benefits of continuous running water for burns. 
A cumulative 20 minutes of treatment with just running water had much better 
outcomes. He suggested that this simple intervention be included in the 
curriculum. 

Ms. Mixon agreed. 

Director Basnett noted that this would be included in what is now Chapter 2.1 of 
the Regulations and will be a part of the Chapter 2 update. 

Commissioner Barrow stated the EMSA only has authority to do what the 
Legislature has put into the statute. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 



9 

 

B. EMS Awards Video and Open Nominations 
Deputy Director Williams showed a video of the EMSA 2023 EMS Awards. She 
stated the nominations for the 2024 EMS Awards are now open through January 
10, 2025. She asked everyone to review the revised requirements. She stated 
there is a streamlined nomination process this year where nominations can be 
submitted electronically through a portal on the EMSA website. Three categories 
have been added: Paramedic of the Year, Dispatcher of the Year, and Mobile 
Intensive Care Nurse of the Year. 

Deputy Director Williams stated sponsorships are being accepted to support the 
awards ceremony, which will be held in Southern California in May of 2025 

Discussion 

Commissioner Kusman stated he has attended the awards ceremony for the 
past several years and last year’s event was the best so far. He congratulated 
the team and stated he looks forward to seeing how this year’s event might be 
even better. He encouraged nominating individuals for their years of service 
and noted that it is an incredible experience to be recognized in this 
environment. 

Public Comment 

Amanda Ward, Crafton Hills College, thanked staff for the work that went into 
putting on this amazing, beautiful event. 

8. DMS 
 A. Fire Updates / CalMAT Deployments 
Tim Reed, Chief, Disaster Medical Services Division, reviewed the 2024 fire season 
updates, California Medical Assistance Teams (CalMAT) deployments, and 
Ambulance Strike Team Leader training updates, which were included in the 
meeting materials. He stated the critical need for adequate staffing and 
resources to ensure comprehensive emergency medical services during 
widespread emergencies, and enhanced preparedness and leadership 
capabilities to ensure effective coordination during emergency response 
operations. 

Discussion 

Vice Chair Gautreau suggested deploying a virtual team to be available by 
telemedicine as an option for lower-level medical events such as poison oak 
management in instances where a team cannot be deployed physically due to 
the lack of personnel. 

Commissioner Uner asked if 2024 was the first time that the EMSA had to decline 
requests for CalMAT deployments. 



10 

 

Chief Reed stated it was not the first time but it was more visible in 2024 due to 
the increased number of denied requests. 

Commissioner Barrow stated there is a bill on the Governor’s desk that expands 
telehealth in rural areas and includes resources through telehealth that may 
possibly help back up the in-person program. He stated he will send the bill 
number to staff. 

Chair Burrows asked about the limitations and barriers to expanding the 
program. 

Chief Reed stated the two largest limitations are personnel and funding. He 
stated the need for a funded team of permanent, intermittent employees who 
will be on call for two weeks out of the year. 

Vice Chair Gautreau asked if physicians in training, such as EMS fellows, are 
qualified to join the CalMAT team. 

Dr. Garzon stated only licensed physicians in California can be part of the 
CalMAT team. 

Commissioner Kusman asked if the lead instructors for the Ambulance Strike 
Team Leader trainings are EMSA staff. 

Chief Reed stated they are. Two EMSA staff go out, one at a time, to teach 
these classes. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

9. FOLLOW-UP ON PREVIOUS ITEMS 
Chair Burrows stated presentations on the APOT data by hospital and 
autonomous vehicles will be heard at the December meeting. 

Chair Burrows asked for motions to include additional suggestions for follow-up 
items. 

Action:  Commissioner Barrow made a motion, seconded by Commissioner 
Morgan, that: 

• The Commission approves including an Emergency Medical Services for 
Children (EMSC) program update at the December Commission meeting. 

Motion carried 14 yes, 0 no, and 0 abstain, per roll call vote as follows: 

The following Commissioners voted “Yes”: Commissioners Barrow, Ghilarducci, 
Kusman, Marquez, Miller, Morgan, Nguyen, Oshita, Pierce, Pierson, Snyder, and 
Uner, Vice Chair Gautreau, and Chair Burrows. 

10.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA  



11 

 

Chair Burrows asked Commissioners for suggestions for the next agenda. 

No items were offered. 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Mr. Ramirez referred to his earlier comment on the PDRB Report and stated he 
was not asking for an immediate response. He stated he asked about 
notification requirements because employers are required to notify the Local 
EMS Agency (LEMSA) and the EMSA. He shared his personal experience of 
having three investigations ongoing at the same time. It is important to clarify 
the process because employers are penalized for non-notification. He 
suggested developing a flow chart of who is required to do what to help 
highlight areas of potential conflict. 

Mr. Ramirez referred to Commissioner Ghilarducci’s suggestion to include the 
continuous running water intervention for burns in the childcare training 
materials and suggested updating the EMSA Regulations on required course 
content for pediatric first aid, which currently includes burn information. 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 12:03 p.m. 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE 
2ND FLOOR 
RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 
(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 

 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 
 
 
MEETING DATE: December 11, 2024 ITEM NUMBER: 4A 
 
SUBJECT: Administration and Personnel Report  
 
PRESENTER: Craig Johnson, Administration/HR Division Chief 
  
 
CONSENT:  _X__   ACTION: ____  INFORMATION: __  
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Receive information on Emergency Medical Services Authority’s (EMSA) budget 
and current staffing levels. 
 
SUMMARY 
EMSA Budget: 
The 2024-25 California State Budget includes $64.3 million in expenditure 
authority and 121 positions. Of the amount, $40.6 million is allocated for state 
operations, and $23.7 million is designated for local assistance. Notably, the 
state operations budget includes a $9.6 million reappropriation for the Electronic 
Physician Orders for Life Sustaining Treatment (ePOLST) Registry Project, the 
Central Registry Replacement, and California Emergency Medical Services 
Information System (CEMSIS) re-procurement. Additionally, $2.6 million is 
allocated to support chaptered bills, including Ambulance Patient Offload Time 
(AB 40), Community Paramedicine or Triage to Alternate Destination Act (AB 
767), Emergency Medical Transportation “No Surprises” Rate Reporting (AB 716), 
and Emergency Medical Services: Liability Limitation (AB 1376). 

 
As of November 2024, accounting records show that the department has 
expended or encumbered $16.1million, or 36.9%, of all available expenditure 
authority. This includes $12.6 million, or 39.2%, of state operations expenditure 
authority and $3.5 million, or 30.5%, of the local assistance expenditure authority. 
 
EMSA will continue to monitor expenditures and adjust state operations and 
local assistance budgets as needed to align with changing program priorities. 



Commission on Emergency Medical Services 
December 11, 2024 
Item #4A 
Page 2 
 
EMSA Staffing Levels: 
The department staffing level includes 121 permanent positions and 14 
temporary (blanket and retired annuitant) positions. As of November 21, 2024, 26 
authorized positions and 2 temporary positions are vacant.  
  

EMSA  
Admin DMS EMS EMSP Total 

Authorized 41.0 26.0 29.0 25.0 121.0 
Temporary Staff 10.0 2.0 0.0 2.0 14.0 
Staffing Level 51.0 28.0 29.0 27.0 135.0 
Authorized (Vacant) -7.0 -5.0 -9.0 -3.0 -24.0 
Temporary (Vacant) -1.0 0.0 0.0 -1.0 -2.0 
Current Staffing Level 43.0 23.0 20.0 23.0 109.0 

 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 INTERNATIONAL DR., SUITE 200 
RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 
(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 

 
 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 
 
 
MEETING DATE: December 11, 2024 ITEM NUMBER: 4B 
 
SUBJECT: Legal Report   
 

PRESENTER: Erin Brennan, Chief Counsel 
  
 
CONSENT:  _X__   ACTION: ____  INFORMATION : ___ 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
Receive information on the status and updates related to ongoing litigation and 
paramedic (EMT-P) disciplinary actions. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
No fiscal impact. 
 
DISCUSSION 
EMT-P Disciplinary Cases: 
From August 31, 2024 to November 22, 2024, EMSA has: 

• Issued eight new Accusations against existing paramedic licenses 
including two issued concurrently with a Temporary Suspension Order 
(TSO).  

• Issued one denial letter to an applicant for licensure; the applicant has 
appealed, and a Statement of Issues is pending.  

• Resolved six cases through Stipulated Settlement Agreements, including 
four that resulted in probationary terms, two that resulted in license 
surrender, and two that resulted in administrative fines.  

• Set fourteen cases for hearing before the Office of Administrative 
Hearings.  

• Granted one petition for reduction in penalty and denied one petition for 
reinstatement.   

• Closed one matter with a warning letter.  
  

As of November 22, 2024, EMSA has 114 open active disciplinary cases in its legal 
office.  



 
Litigation: 
EMSA vs. Orange County Partnership Regional Health Information Organization 
Case Number: Orange County Superior Court #30-2023-01310464-CU-BC-
NJCClaims: Breach of Contract, Unjust Enrichment, Fraud and Deceit, Negligent 
Misrepresentation, and Alter Ego Liability.   

• Action filed: March 1, 2023.   
• Default judgment: Entered in favor of EMSA on April 18, 2024.  
• Status: Enforcement of judgment is pending. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
1120 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE 
2ND FLOOR 
RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670  
(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 

 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 
 
 
MEETING DATE: December 11, 2024 ITEM NUMBER: 4C 
 
SUBJECT: ENFORCEMENT REPORT    
 

PRESENTER: Alexander Bourdaniotis, Enforcement Branch Chief   
 
CONSENT:  ___   ACTION: ___  INFORMATION: __x_ 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Receive information on Enforcement Unit activities. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
No fiscal impact.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Investigations: 
The Enforcement Unit currently has 222 cases in “open” status. 
 
As of November 1, 2024, there are 116 cases that have been in “open” status for 
180 days or longer, including:  

• 13 Firefighters’ Bill of Rights (FFBOR) cases; 
• 9 cases awaiting fitness for duty evaluations, which involves respondents 

being directed to physicians specializing in addiction medicine for 
examinations or reviews related to alcohol or other substance abuse. 

 
The 222 cases are divided among five Special Investigators and one retired 
annuitant AGPA. These cases are at various stages of the investigative process. 
These stages include awaiting documents, preparing for and/or setting up 
interviews, report writing and corrections to be made, awaiting action by local 
law enforcement jurisdictions, the courts, etc. 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE 
2ND FLOOR 
RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 
(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 

 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 
 
 
MEETING DATE: December 11, 2024  ITEM NUMBER: 4D   
 
SUBJECT: Paramedic Disciplinary Review Board (PDRB)    
 
PRESENTER: Diane Sabonis 
  
 
CONSENT:  __X_   ACTION: ____  INFORMATION: ___  
 

 
BACKGROUND 
AB 450 Chapter 463, chaptered on October 4, 2021, created PDRB to act on 
appeals regarding the Emergency Medical Services Authority (EMSA) denials of 
licensure and decisions to impose licensure actions on and after January 1, 
2023.  
 
DISCUSSION/SUMMARY 
September 12, 2024 PDRB Meeting 
This meeting was cancelled to conserve state funds, as there were no 
administrative law judge proposed decisions requiring review or final decision by 
the board.  
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE 
2ND FLOOR 
RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 
(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 

 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 
 
 
MEETING DATE: December 11, 2024 ITEM NUMBER: 5A 
 
SUBJECT: Legislative Update    
 
PRESENTER: Ashley Williams 
                    Deputy Director of Legislative and External Affairs  
  
 
CONSENT:  ___   ACTION: ____  INFORMATION: X_  
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Receive information regarding current bills potentially affecting EMS.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
No fiscal impact.  
 
DISCUSSION 
Due to the dynamic nature of the legislative process, the Legislative Report to 
the Commission on EMS will be posted on the EMSA website at 
https://emsa.ca.gov/legislative_activity/ . 
 
 
 

https://emsa.ca.gov/legislative_activity/


STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE 
2ND FLOOR 
RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 
(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 

 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 
 
 
MEETING DATE: December 11, 2024 ITEM NUMBER: 5B 
 
SUBJECT: Regulations Update    
 
PRESENTER: Ashley Williams 
                    Deputy Director of Legislative and External Affairs  
  
 
CONSENT:  ___   ACTION: ____  INFORMATION: X_  
 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
The following information is an update to the Emergency Medical Services 
Authority (EMSA) rulemaking. In accordance with California Health and Safety 
Code § 1797.107, the EMSA is promulgating the following regulations: 
 
• Re-chaptering of California Code of Regulation Title 22, Division 9. 

▪ Status: The re-chaptering has been approved by OAL and will take 
effect January 1, 2025.  
▪ Purpose: Better align regulations for future updates and modifications. 
 

• Delivering Equitable and Person-Centered Care - Chapter 1 
▪ Status: The EMSA Policy Advisory Committee (EPAC) met on December 3 
to workshop draft regulations.  
▪ Purpose: Provide a framework centered on equity principles and 
high quality of care, ensuring accessibility by addressing deficiencies in 
definitions, statutory interpretations, and the structure, approval, and 
delivery of EMS services. The framework also aims to ensure consistent 
quality assurance oversight across administrative, clinical, and operational 
domains.  
 

• Specialty Programs - Chapter 6 (Trauma, STEMI, Stroke, EMS-C) 
▪ Status: EMSA is currently routing the submission packet for approval. 
EMSA anticipates it will be available for public comment early 2025.   
▪ Purpose: General Update.  



Commission on Emergency Medical Services 
December 11, 2024 
Item #5B 
Page 2 
 

 
• Professional Standards - Chapter 3 (EMT, EMT-A, Paramedics) 

▪ Status: EMSA is in the initial stages of reviewing Chapter 3, Professional 
Standards, to identify areas that need updating. Workgroups will be 
established, with efforts anticipated to begin mid-2025.  
▪ Purpose: General Update.  
 

• AB 40 – Ambulance Patient Offload Times 
▪ Status: EMSA held its first workshop for AB 40 implementation on 
September 12, followed by a second workshop on October 4. Draft 
regulations have been developed based on the discussions during these 
workshops.  
▪ Purpose: Draft regulations to meet the requirements of AB 40.   
 

• AB 716 – Ambulance Billing 
▪ Status: EMSA hosted a workshop October 16 to discuss implementation.  
▪ Purpose: Draft regulations to meet the requirements of AB 716.   
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE 
2nd FLOOR 
RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 
(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 

 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 
 
 
MEETING DATE : December 11, 2024 ITEM NUMBER : 6A 
 
SUBJECT: Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT)   
 

PRESENTER:  Tom McGinnis, Quality and Planning Division Chief 
  
 
CONSENT:  ___   ACTION: ____  INFORMATION : _X_ 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
No action recommended. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
No fiscal impact. 
 
DISCUSSION 
EMSA is monitoring APOT using the California EMS Information System (CEMSIS) 
ran data since 2023 for all participating LEMSAs. LEMSAs with limited CEMSIS 
participation are providing EMSA with quarterly reports until their CEMSIS 
participation is deemed sufficient to calculate APOT.   

  
EMSA has been running monthly APOT reports sourced from CEMSIS for all 
participating LEMSAs using the updated APOT specifications from Fall 
2022.  Following internal EMSA review, each LEMSA has been receiving a 
monthly APOT report outlining their APOT representation in CEMSIS. LEMSAs are 
encouraged to continue to monitor APOT locally and engage EMSA if they 
identify any discrepancies in their CEMSIS representation. EMSA updated the 
APOT specifications using the NEMSIS 3.5 data dictionary and can be found on 
the website; www.emsa.ca.gov/APOT. EMSA is continuing to run monthly APOT 
reports using NEMSIS 3.5.  
  
ATTACHMENT(S) 
December 2024 Report to Commission: Ambulance Patient Offload Delays 

http://www.emsa.ca.gov/APOT


   
 

   
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Report to Commission: Ambulance 
Patient Offload Delays 

 
 
 
 

 

 
Emergency Medical Services Authority  
California Health and Human Services Agency 
December 2024 
Elizabeth Basnett, Director 
Hernando Garzon, MD, Interim Chief Medical Officer 

  

 

 

 



   
 

 
Page 2 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 

This report was prepared by the California Emergency Medical Services 
Authority Staff: 

 

Adam Davis, Ambulance Patient Offload Time Research Data Specialist 

Adrienne Kim, Data Technologies Unit Manager 

 

This report was reviewed and approved by the California Emergency Medical 
Services Authority Executives:  

Elizabeth Basnett, Director 
Hernando Garzon, MD, Interim Chief Medical Officer 
Tom McGinnis, EMS Quality and Planning Division  
 

 

 

If you have any questions or comments about this report, please contact: 

APOT@emsa.ca.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:APOT@emsa.ca.gov


   
 

 
Page 3 

Table of Contents 

Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT) Specifications ........................................ 4 

California Counties with a LEMSA 90th Percentile APOT Greater than 30 minutes 
over a 6-Month Period (April 2024 – September 2024) ............................................. 6 

CEMSIS Sourced Statewide APOT Trend Graph (April 2024 – September 2024) … 7 

CEMSIS Sourced APOT-1: LEMSA Count of Offloads and 90th Percentile Offload 
Times (April 2024 – September 2024) .......................................................................... 8 

CEMSIS Sourced APOT-2: Percent of Offloads by APOT-2 Time Intervals (April 2024 
– September 2024) ........................................................................................................ 9 

CEMSIS Sourced Statewide APOT “Heat” Table (April 2024 – September 2024)...10 

CEMSIS Sourced Cumulative APOT Greater than 30 minutes by LEMSA for April 
2024 – September 2024 (6 Months) ........................................................................... 11 

CEMSIS Sourced Cumulative APOT Greater than 30 minutes by LEMSA (April 
2024) ............................................................................................................................. 12  

CEMSIS Sourced Cumulative APOT Greater than 30 minutes by LEMSA (May 
2024) ............................................................................................................................. 13 

CEMSIS Sourced Cumulative APOT Greater than 30 minutes by LEMSA (June 
2024) ............................................................................................................................. 14 

CEMSIS Sourced Cumulative APOT Greater than 30 minutes by LEMSA (July 2024) 
....................................................................................................................................... 15 

CEMSIS Sourced Cumulative APOT Greater than 30 minutes by LEMSA (August 
2024) ............................................................................................................................. 16 

CEMSIS Sourced Cumulative APOT Greater than 30 minutes by LEMSA 
(September 2024)........................................................................................................ 17  

CEMSIS Sourced APOT 1 (April 2024 – September 2024): Licensed Emergency 
Department 90th Percentile APOT (1 of 5)............................................................... 18 

CEMSIS Sourced (April 2024 – September 2024): Licensed Emergency 
Department Monthly Cumulative Hours of Delay for Offloads Greater Than 30 
Minutes (1 of 5) ............................................................................................................ 23 



   
 

 
Page 4 

Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT) Specifications  

This report was generated using California Emergency Medical Services 
Information System (CEMSIS) records meeting the ambulance patient offload 
time specification described below. EMSA updated APOT Specifications for 
NEMSIS version 3.5 for 2024 data.   

The APOT Specifications outlined below can be found in full detail at 
https://emsa.ca.gov/apot/. The APOT qualifying record population for a given 
timeframe, for both APOT-1 and APOT-2, is defined as emergency medical 
services (EMS) records which meet the following National Emergency Medical 
Services Information System (NEMSIS) criteria: 

• All events for which eResponse.05 “Type of Service Requested” with the value 
of 2205001 “Emergency Response (Primary Response Area); AND  
•All events in eDisposition.30 “Transport Disposition” with the value of 4230001 
“Transport by This EMS Unit (This Crew Only)” or 4230003 “Transport by This EMS 
Unit, With a Member of Another Crew” AND   
• All events in eDisposition.21 “Type of Destination” with the value of 4221003, 
“Hospital-Emergency Department”; AND  
• eTimes.11 “Patient Arrived at Destination Date/Time” values are logical and 
present AND  
• eTimes.12 “Destination Patient Transfer of Care Date/Time” values are logical 
and present  

APOT-1 identifies the count of offloads meeting the APOT specification criteria 
and, based on those same records, the 90th percentile APOT time for a given 
time frame. APOT-1 is reported by general acute care facility or aggregated at 
a LEMSA level. 

APOT-2 identifies the count of offloads meeting the same APOT specification 
criteria as APOT-1 and based on those same records, counts the number of 
records found within the five time intervals for a given time frame. The time 
intervals are as follows: 

2.1: What count of patients transported by EMS personnel experience a transfer 
of care within 20 minutes of arrival at the Hospital Emergency Department?   
2.2: What count of patients transported by EMS personnel experience a transfer 
of care between 20:01-60 minutes of arrival at the Hospital Emergency 
Department?   
2.3:  What count of patients transported by EMS personnel experience a transfer 
of care between 60:01-120 minutes after arrival at the Hospital Emergency 
Department?   
2.4:  What count of patients transported by EMS personnel experience a transfer 

https://emsa.ca.gov/apot/


   
 

 
Page 5 

of care between 120:01-180 minutes after arrival at the Hospital Emergency 
Department?   
2.5:  What count of patients transported by EMS personnel experience a transfer 
of care more than 180:01 minutes after arrival at the Hospital Emergency 
Department? 

 
Qualifying Record Exclusion Criteria: 

EMS records which meet the APOT specification criteria and have a negative 
calculated time between eTimes.11 and eTimes.12 do not qualify as being part 
of the APOT record population and have been excluded from this report. 

EMS records which meet the APOT specification criteria and have a calculated 
time between eTimes.11 and eTimes.12 exceeding 8 hours do not qualify as 
being part of the APOT record population and have been excluded from this 
report. 

EMS records which meet the APOT specification criteria and have an 
eDisposition.02 “Destination Code” (CEMSIS Facility ID) recorded for as “Blank, 
Not Recorded, Not Reported, Not Available, or Null” do not qualify as being part 
of the APOT record population and have been excluded from this report. 

EMS records represented in this report are based on the specifications which 
may include duplicate records, records from non-transport providers, and 
facilities which are not general acute care hospitals or do not have an 
emergency department. These records which fall into one of the above 
categories are included in this report due to provider documentation, a 
limitation of the NEMSIS Data Standards, or as a limitation of the APOT 
Specifications used for this report. 

Report Notes: 

All APOT record counts and times are associated with the destination 
county/LEMSA using NEMSIS element eDisposition.06 “Destination County.” 
Record counts and 90th Percentile APOT calculation include records from all 
LEMSA to that facility. 

All 34 LEMSAs are represented in this report however, representation may be 
limited. 



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 6 

California Counties with a LEMSA 90th Percentile APOT Greater than 30 minutes 
over A 6-Month Period (April 2024 – September 2024)  

 



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS records are populated by participating EMS 
providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). 
Not all EMS providers in all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and records meeting APOT 
criteria. 

 
Page 7 

CEMSIS Sourced Statewide APOT Trend Graph (April 2024 – September 2024)   

 

  



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS records are populated by participating EMS 
providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). 
Not all EMS providers in all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and records meeting APOT 
criteria. 

 
Page 8 

CEMSIS Sourced APOT 1 (April 2024 – September 2024): LEMSA Count of Offloads and 90th Percentile APOT 

 
Local EMS Agency 

(LEMSA)
 April 2024 

Count 
April 2024 

APOT
 May 2024 

Count 
May 2024 

APOT
 June 2024 

Count 
June 2024 

APOT
 July 2024 

Count 
July 2024 

APOT
 August 

2024 Count 
August 2024 

APOT
 September 
2024 Count 

September 
2024 APOT

Alameda 7,913            0:48:59 8,813            0:52:06 8,483            0:48:47 8,782            0:48:28 8,833            0:44:47 8,655                0:43:56
Central California 13,941         0:49:23 14,792         0:48:14 14,818         0:48:19 15,620         0:48:10 15,249         0:47:43 14,674              0:47:21
Coastal Valleys 3,636            0:18:51 3,714            0:18:24 3,818            0:19:15 4,128            0:19:46 3,901            0:19:13 3,782                0:18:27
Contra Costa 7,182            0:45:19 7,762            0:50:14 7,519            0:51:22 7,809            0:49:25 7,512            0:47:20 6,861                0:46:47
El Dorado 775               0:12:19 808               0:14:02 830               0:12:21 884               0:12:08 804               0:13:03 814                   0:14:06
Imperial 689               0:26:03 757               0:30:56 816               0:31:05 837               0:32:42 815               0:30:25 723                   0:30:18
Inland Counties 14,495         0:46:31 15,213         0:45:48 15,051         0:43:54 15,774         0:42:40 15,901         0:43:01 15,178              0:42:41
Kern 5,700            0:54:16 6,248            0:54:41 6,639            0:56:03 7,194            0:57:46 6,835            0:52:48 6,866                0:48:45
Los Angeles 35,220         0:45:34 37,093         0:45:00 38,203         0:47:00 39,613         0:46:40 38,087         0:46:43 35,998              0:46:46
Marin 1,294            0:13:24 1,463            0:13:36 1,456            0:13:32 1,412            0:12:40 1,366            0:12:13 1,241                0:11:35
Merced 1,730            0:51:12 1,814            0:51:14 1,788            0:52:15 1,994            0:55:00 1,907            0:45:36 1,830                0:45:50
Monterey 1,504            0:19:22 1,642            0:19:02 2,068            0:19:53 2,341            0:19:38 2,275            0:20:08 2,158                0:18:45
Mountain Counties 534               0:12:00 620               0:11:00 642               0:12:00 710               0:12:00 652               0:12:00 625                   0:12:36
Napa 705               0:13:18 695               0:15:52 733               0:13:00 801               0:13:00 774               0:13:01 735                   0:11:14
Northern California 374               0:05:42 392               0:05:00 423               0:06:00 451               0:05:00 376               0:05:00 376                   0:05:00
North Coast 1,491            0:08:00 1,636            0:08:49 1,707            0:08:12 1,773            0:09:52 1,661            0:08:31 1,581                0:09:12
Orange 17,033         0:26:37 18,063         0:26:37 18,003         0:26:45 18,412         0:28:07 18,469         0:27:23 17,913              0:26:22
Riverside 14,749         0:41:49 15,214         0:42:01 15,173         0:45:00 15,806         0:46:37 16,036         0:41:52 15,163              0:40:11
Sacramento 9,710            0:54:26 10,202         0:53:07 9,699            0:53:31 10,504         0:54:14 10,113         0:44:38 9,923                0:41:04
San Benito 217               0:12:06 196               0:10:11 223               0:10:27 200               0:11:46 225               0:13:06 212                   0:12:21
San Diego 6,561            0:52:18 6,769            0:46:24 6,798            0:49:55 8,379            0:49:27 8,461            0:47:17 8,285                0:46:49
San Francisco 6,532            0:43:50 6,874            0:44:37 6,447            0:44:43 6,741            0:43:38 6,867            0:41:20 6,447                0:39:06
San Joaquin 5,871            0:40:55 6,024            0:42:52 5,383            0:43:40 5,933            0:45:21 5,630            0:41:49 5,248                0:46:04
San Luis Obispo 1,336            0:15:16 1,464            0:14:56 1,386            0:15:27 1,472            0:15:00 1,468            0:15:03 1,296                0:15:15
San Mateo 3,014            0:17:45 3,082            0:19:30 2,810            0:19:05 3,054            0:18:43 2,950            0:18:02 2,805                0:16:51
Santa Barbara 2,544            0:13:43 2,547            0:14:02 2,615            0:13:29 2,669            0:13:29 2,795            0:13:45 2,575                0:13:18
Santa Clara 8,915            0:32:00 9,389            0:32:01 8,952            0:30:00 9,431            0:30:29 9,034            0:29:49 8,992                0:29:33
Santa Cruz 1,252            0:22:02 1,301            0:20:01 1,272            0:18:25 1,398            0:19:45 1,388            0:19:42 1,281                0:20:20
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 10,728         0:31:47 11,435         0:26:10 11,376         0:25:56 12,033         0:25:23 11,385         0:25:51 10,925              0:25:53
Solano 2,849            0:25:03 3,099            0:26:20 2,929            0:24:27 3,066            0:24:52 1,386            0:26:59 394                   0:33:02
Stanislaus County 5,052            0:39:20 5,308            0:43:52 5,281            0:47:58 5,610            0:45:24 5,167            0:39:49 5,148                0:38:39
Tuolumne 462               0:14:26 538               0:13:00 494               0:10:10 573               0:13:02 592               0:10:38 531                   0:10:00
Ventura 4,101            0:28:02 4,372            0:26:15 4,317            0:25:17 4,529            0:25:52 4,632            0:25:54 4,174                0:23:01
Yolo 769               0:37:02 794               0:34:12 778               0:30:57 755               0:30:14 780               0:34:06 660                   0:35:49
Statewide Total 198,878       0:41:34 210,133       0:41:24 208,930       0:41:56 220,688       0:41:53 214,326       0:40:15 204,069            0:39:30



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 9 

CEMSIS Sourced APOT 2 (April 2024 – September 2024): Percent of Offloads by 
APOT-2 Time Intervals 

Local EMS Agency 
(LEMSA)

<=20 
Minute 
Offload

20:01-60 
Minute 
Offload

60:01-120 
Minute 
Offload

120:01-180 
Minute 
Offload

>180 Minute 
Offload Total Offloads

Alameda 48.90% 45.73% 5.00% 0.33% 0.03% 51,479
Central California 48.81% 46.41% 4.51% 0.22% 0.05% 89,094
Coastal Valleys 91.26% 8.22% 0.48% 0.03% 0.01% 22,979
Contra Costa 44.92% 49.22% 5.12% 0.63% 0.11% 44,645
El Dorado 95.48% 4.31% 0.20% 0.00% 0.00% 4,915
Imperial 75.09% 22.62% 1.98% 0.24% 0.06% 4,637
Inland Counties 55.68% 40.13% 3.98% 0.19% 0.02% 91,612
Kern 34.76% 57.73% 6.58% 0.67% 0.26% 39,482
Los Angeles 62.17% 31.94% 4.85% 0.75% 0.28% 224,214
Marin 98.46% 1.49% 0.05% 0.00% 0.00% 8,232
Merced 44.92% 49.13% 5.60% 0.34% 0.01% 11,063
Monterey 91.16% 8.43% 0.40% 0.02% 0.00% 11,988
Mountain Counties 97.65% 2.22% 0.13% 0.00% 0.00% 3,783
Napa 95.32% 4.52% 0.14% 0.02% 0.00% 4,443
Northern California 99.25% 0.67% 0.04% 0.00% 0.04% 2,392
North Coast 97.90% 1.96% 0.11% 0.00% 0.03% 9,849
Orange 82.57% 15.95% 1.37% 0.10% 0.01% 107,893
Riverside 60.33% 34.46% 4.07% 0.83% 0.31% 92,141
Sacramento 49.75% 43.71% 5.52% 0.71% 0.31% 60,151
San Benito 98.43% 1.57% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 1,273
San Diego 54.60% 39.19% 5.41% 0.64% 0.15% 45,253
San Francisco 55.78% 40.10% 3.52% 0.45% 0.15% 39,908
San Joaquin 50.51% 45.86% 3.39% 0.22% 0.02% 34,089
San Luis Obispo 94.59% 5.11% 0.27% 0.02% 0.01% 8,422
San Mateo 92.16% 7.71% 0.13% 0.00% 0.00% 17,715
Santa Barbara 97.09% 2.86% 0.04% 0.00% 0.01% 15,745
Santa Clara 75.19% 22.94% 1.60% 0.22% 0.05% 54,713
Santa Cruz 90.31% 9.40% 0.29% 0.00% 0.00% 7,892
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 81.65% 17.05% 1.18% 0.09% 0.02% 67,882
Solano 77.79% 21.70% 0.47% 0.02% 0.02% 13,723
Stanislaus County 64.15% 31.02% 4.31% 0.44% 0.08% 31,566
Tuolumne 96.46% 3.29% 0.25% 0.00% 0.00% 3,190
Ventura 82.58% 16.47% 0.83% 0.07% 0.03% 26,125
Yolo 67.13% 31.94% 0.84% 0.02% 0.07% 4,536
Statewide Total 64.27% 31.71% 3.49% 0.40% 0.13% 1,257,024



   
 

   
All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 14, 2023.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS Providers in 
all LEMSA are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 10 

CEMSIS Sourced Statewide APOT “Heat” Table (April 2024 – September 2024) 

 

LEMSAs with red text and a red highlighted cell had a 90th Percentile APOT 
greater than 30 minutes for the month listed. The Statewide 90th Percentile APOT 
for each month between April 2024 and September 2024 exceeded 39 minutes.  

Local EMS Agency 
(LEMSA)

April 2024 
APOT

May 2024 
APOT

June 2024 
APOT

July 2024 
APOT

August 
2024 APOT

September 
2024 APOT

Alameda 0:48:59 0:52:06 0:48:47 0:48:28 0:44:47 0:43:56
Central California 0:49:23 0:48:14 0:48:19 0:48:10 0:47:43 0:47:21
Coastal Valleys 0:18:51 0:18:24 0:19:15 0:19:46 0:19:13 0:18:27
Contra Costa 0:45:19 0:50:14 0:51:22 0:49:25 0:47:20 0:46:47
El Dorado 0:12:19 0:14:02 0:12:21 0:12:08 0:13:03 0:14:06
Imperial 0:26:03 0:30:56 0:31:05 0:32:42 0:30:25 0:30:18
Inland Counties 0:46:31 0:45:48 0:43:54 0:42:40 0:43:01 0:42:41
Kern 0:54:16 0:54:41 0:56:03 0:57:46 0:52:48 0:48:45
Los Angeles 0:45:34 0:45:00 0:47:00 0:46:40 0:46:43 0:46:46
Marin 0:13:24 0:13:36 0:13:32 0:12:40 0:12:13 0:11:35
Merced 0:51:12 0:51:14 0:52:15 0:55:00 0:45:36 0:45:50
Monterey 0:19:22 0:19:02 0:19:53 0:19:38 0:20:08 0:18:45
Mountain Counties 0:12:00 0:11:00 0:12:00 0:12:00 0:12:00 0:12:36
Napa 0:13:18 0:15:52 0:13:00 0:13:00 0:13:01 0:11:14
Northern California 0:05:42 0:05:00 0:06:00 0:05:00 0:05:00 0:05:00
North Coast 0:08:00 0:08:49 0:08:12 0:09:52 0:08:31 0:09:12
Orange 0:26:37 0:26:37 0:26:45 0:28:07 0:27:23 0:26:22
Riverside 0:41:49 0:42:01 0:45:00 0:46:37 0:41:52 0:40:11
Sacramento 0:54:26 0:53:07 0:53:31 0:54:14 0:44:38 0:41:04
San Benito 0:12:06 0:10:11 0:10:27 0:11:46 0:13:06 0:12:21
San Diego 0:52:18 0:46:24 0:49:55 0:49:27 0:47:17 0:46:49
San Francisco 0:43:50 0:44:37 0:44:43 0:43:38 0:41:20 0:39:06
San Joaquin 0:40:55 0:42:52 0:43:40 0:45:21 0:41:49 0:46:04
San Luis Obispo 0:15:16 0:14:56 0:15:27 0:15:00 0:15:03 0:15:15
San Mateo 0:17:45 0:19:30 0:19:05 0:18:43 0:18:02 0:16:51
Santa Barbara 0:13:43 0:14:02 0:13:29 0:13:29 0:13:45 0:13:18
Santa Clara 0:32:00 0:32:01 0:30:00 0:30:29 0:29:49 0:29:33
Santa Cruz 0:22:02 0:20:01 0:18:25 0:19:45 0:19:42 0:20:20
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 0:31:47 0:26:10 0:25:56 0:25:23 0:25:51 0:25:53
Solano 0:25:03 0:26:20 0:24:27 0:24:52 0:26:59 0:33:02
Stanislaus County 0:39:20 0:43:52 0:47:58 0:45:24 0:39:49 0:38:39
Tuolumne 0:14:26 0:13:00 0:10:10 0:13:02 0:10:38 0:10:00
Ventura 0:28:02 0:26:15 0:25:17 0:25:52 0:25:54 0:23:01
Yolo 0:37:02 0:34:12 0:30:57 0:30:14 0:34:06 0:35:49
Statewide Total 0:41:34 0:41:24 0:41:56 0:41:53 0:40:15 0:39:30



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 11 

CEMSIS Sourced Cumulative APOT Greater than 30 minutes by LEMSA for April 
2024 – September 2024 (6 Months) 

  

Local EMS Agency (LEMSA)
Percent of Total 

Records 
> 30 Minutes

Total Hours, 
Minutes and 

Seconds of Delay 
> 30 minutes

Alameda 28.3% 4472:35:35
Central California 28.9% 7431:49:07
Coastal Valleys 3.9% 235:34:40
Contra Costa 30.6% 4387:05:30
El Dorado 2.0% 22:35:27
Imperial 10.5% 161:47:40
Inland Counties 22.8% 6185:46:17
Kern 38.1% 5022:43:25
Los Angeles 21.3% 20747:06:24
Marin 0.3% 6:39:09
Merced 30.8% 1045:47:48
Monterey 3.1% 91:56:24
Mountain Counties 0.9% 8:16:09
Napa 2.0% 17:22:46
Northern California 0.3% 4:46:13
North Coast 0.9% 27:51:22
Orange 8.0% 2609:28:58
Riverside 19.7% 7834:43:57
Sacramento 27.6% 6496:08:56
San Benito 0.3% 0:09:31
San Diego 24.9% 4294:41:43
San Francisco 22.3% 2897:04:54
San Joaquin 25.3% 2252:48:36
San Luis Obispo 2.5% 54:03:54
San Mateo 2.1% 60:43:53
Santa Barbara 0.6% 15:34:35
Santa Clara 10.7% 1774:14:55
Santa Cruz 2.8% 46:37:39
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 7.5% 1482:43:09
Solano 6.0% 161:26:08
Stanislaus County 19.0% 2226:13:59
Tuolumne 1.5% 12:16:35
Ventura 6.9% 482:03:36
Yolo 14.2% 133:04:16
Statewide Total 18.8% 82703:53:10



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 12 

CEMSIS Sourced Cumulative APOT Greater than 30 minutes by LEMSA (April 
2024) 

  

Local EMS Agency 
(LEMSA)

Percent of Total 
Records 

> 30 Minutes

Total Hours, 
Minutes and 

Seconds of Delay 
> 30 minutes

Alameda 30.8% 734:50:07
Central California 29.9% 1271:45:48
Coastal Valleys 3.8% 36:14:44
Contra Costa 26.9% 612:04:50
El Dorado 2.1% 3:53:49
Imperial 7.1% 12:56:05
Inland Counties 25.5% 1109:58:27
Kern 37.3% 702:48:17
Los Angeles 20.5% 3181:32:55
Marin 0.4% 0:21:09
Merced 30.1% 174:21:19
Monterey 2.5% 9:32:30
Mountain Counties 1.5% 1:38:33
Napa 1.3% 1:35:45
Northern California 0.0% 0:00:00
North Coast 0.7% 3:16:20
Orange 7.8% 391:51:13
Riverside 18.7% 1144:09:41
Sacramento 29.8% 1287:02:14
San Benito 0.5% 0:02:11
San Diego 26.8% 738:54:57
San Francisco 24.1% 468:44:28
San Joaquin 23.7% 314:42:06
San Luis Obispo 2.0% 9:12:02
San Mateo 2.0% 10:41:59
Santa Barbara 0.8% 3:13:01
Santa Clara 11.7% 316:22:01
Santa Cruz 4.1% 10:32:04
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 11.2% 376:14:13
Solano 5.0% 27:01:50
Stanislaus County 17.0% 269:48:04
Tuolumne 1.9% 2:52:19
Ventura 8.7% 104:02:14
Yolo 16.1% 32:23:04
Statewide Total 19.1% 13364:40:19



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 13 

CEMSIS Sourced Cumulative APOT Greater than 30 minutes by LEMSA (May 2024) 

  

Local EMS Agency 
(LEMSA)

Percent of Total 
Records 

> 30 Minutes

Total Hours, 
Minutes and 

Seconds of Delay 
> 30 minutes

Alameda 31.8% 937:51:28
Central California 29.0% 1243:06:47
Coastal Valleys 3.4% 41:07:36
Contra Costa 30.3% 830:06:36
El Dorado 3.2% 7:32:33
Imperial 11.0% 25:54:28
Inland Counties 24.9% 1158:00:41
Kern 37.6% 772:36:47
Los Angeles 20.7% 3175:36:12
Marin 0.5% 3:39:14
Merced 32.3% 177:15:16
Monterey 2.7% 9:54:53
Mountain Counties 0.5% 0:37:00
Napa 3.0% 5:12:35
Northern California 0.3% 1:24:13
North Coast 1.3% 6:09:36
Orange 7.9% 445:08:23
Riverside 19.5% 1234:57:17
Sacramento 29.7% 1200:51:11
San Benito 0.0% 0:00:00
San Diego 23.1% 575:07:13
San Francisco 24.5% 549:06:46
San Joaquin 24.0% 387:51:42
San Luis Obispo 2.2% 8:53:48
San Mateo 2.3% 10:00:06
Santa Barbara 0.5% 2:10:47
Santa Clara 12.0% 337:43:39
Santa Cruz 2.9% 8:44:51
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 7.0% 248:15:46
Solano 6.8% 41:13:50
Stanislaus County 20.3% 374:25:27
Tuolumne 1.5% 0:47:12
Ventura 7.2% 69:23:23
Yolo 15.1% 23:24:31
Statewide Total 19.1% 13914:11:47



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 14 

CEMSIS Sourced Cumulative APOT Greater than 30 minutes by LEMSA (June 
2024) 

  

Local EMS Agency 
(LEMSA)

Percent of Total 
Records 

> 30 Minutes

Total Hours, 
Minutes and 

Seconds of Delay 
> 30 minutes

Alameda 29.2% 778:03:11
Central California 29.4% 1248:56:35
Coastal Valleys 4.0% 34:54:10
Contra Costa 33.2% 827:31:34
El Dorado 1.3% 2:45:45
Imperial 10.8% 34:27:13
Inland Counties 23.4% 992:01:42
Kern 39.6% 921:49:52
Los Angeles 22.1% 3725:55:08
Marin 0.3% 1:03:35
Merced 32.2% 178:11:32
Monterey 3.2% 16:11:02
Mountain Counties 1.2% 1:09:04
Napa 2.2% 2:36:43
Northern California 0.7% 0:43:00
North Coast 1.1% 8:40:06
Orange 8.1% 433:04:10
Riverside 20.8% 1414:51:20
Sacramento 29.8% 1272:55:31
San Benito 0.0% 0:00:00
San Diego 26.7% 699:45:55
San Francisco 23.2% 465:01:25
San Joaquin 25.6% 367:54:15
San Luis Obispo 2.5% 6:02:23
San Mateo 2.2% 10:12:48
Santa Barbara 0.5% 4:47:17
Santa Clara 10.0% 227:38:00
Santa Cruz 1.9% 4:09:54
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 6.8% 203:29:41
Solano 4.6% 26:47:50
Stanislaus County 22.3% 500:54:32
Tuolumne 0.8% 0:48:48
Ventura 6.9% 100:03:57
Yolo 11.1% 16:38:33
Statewide Total 19.4% 14530:06:31



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 15 

CEMSIS Sourced Cumulative APOT Greater than 30 minutes by LEMSA (July 2024) 

 
  

Local EMS Agency 
(LEMSA)

Percent of Total 
Records 

> 30 Minutes

Total Hours, 
Minutes and 

Seconds of Delay 
> 30 minutes

Alameda 28.1% 766:31:02
Central California 28.6% 1296:37:02
Coastal Valleys 4.1% 45:42:44
Contra Costa 31.5% 833:44:13
El Dorado 1.7% 3:24:45
Imperial 12.1% 43:06:17
Inland Counties 21.0% 983:37:37
Kern 41.6% 1080:23:58
Los Angeles 21.9% 3723:27:39
Marin 0.3% 1:12:37
Merced 34.1% 238:55:52
Monterey 3.1% 15:04:51
Mountain Counties 0.8% 1:42:00
Napa 1.5% 1:26:52
Northern California 0.0% 0:00:00
North Coast 0.8% 2:38:13
Orange 8.7% 516:22:18
Riverside 21.9% 1657:47:16
Sacramento 30.4% 1342:03:05
San Benito 0.0% 0:00:00
San Diego 25.0% 814:33:17
San Francisco 22.5% 564:35:04
San Joaquin 27.3% 440:10:21
San Luis Obispo 2.8% 11:02:15
San Mateo 2.3% 15:26:24
Santa Barbara 0.4% 2:38:15
Santa Clara 10.6% 297:02:55
Santa Cruz 3.0% 10:09:30
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 6.6% 236:53:19
Solano 5.5% 34:38:49
Stanislaus County 20.8% 482:01:13
Tuolumne 2.6% 4:51:53
Ventura 6.8% 71:06:38
Yolo 10.1% 13:54:59
Statewide Total 19.3% 15552:53:13



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 16 

CEMSIS Sourced Cumulative APOT Greater than 30 minutes by LEMSA (August 
2024)  

  

Local EMS Agency 
(LEMSA)

Percent of Total 
Records 

> 30 Minutes

Total Hours, 
Minutes and 

Seconds of Delay 
> 30 minutes

Alameda 26.1% 653:08:54
Central California 29.4% 1216:32:08
Coastal Valleys 4.1% 38:19:49
Contra Costa 30.8% 686:46:54
El Dorado 1.7% 2:24:50
Imperial 10.7% 24:19:26
Inland Counties 21.4% 1002:34:37
Kern 38.4% 843:40:43
Los Angeles 21.4% 3639:44:07
Marin 0.1% 0:07:10
Merced 29.4% 146:39:36
Monterey 3.9% 22:34:21
Mountain Counties 0.3% 1:06:32
Napa 2.2% 2:50:34
Northern California 0.0% 0:00:00
North Coast 0.9% 4:54:41
Orange 8.2% 422:20:52
Riverside 19.3% 1240:03:45
Sacramento 24.7% 749:37:35
San Benito 0.4% 0:01:39
San Diego 25.1% 752:55:13
San Francisco 21.1% 464:08:29
San Joaquin 24.6% 336:37:18
San Luis Obispo 2.7% 6:45:14
San Mateo 2.0% 7:59:39
Santa Barbara 0.7% 1:14:27
Santa Clara 9.8% 267:21:57
Santa Cruz 2.0% 5:07:21
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 7.0% 218:41:51
Solano 7.6% 18:07:50
Stanislaus County 17.6% 320:42:53
Tuolumne 1.2% 1:40:54
Ventura 7.4% 96:50:34
Yolo 14.9% 20:21:15
Statewide Total 18.5% 13216:23:08



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 17 

CEMSIS Sourced Cumulative APOT Greater than 30 minutes by LEMSA 
(September 2024) 

Local EMS Agency 
(LEMSA)

Percent of Total 
Records 

> 30 Minutes

Total Hours, 
Minutes and 

Seconds of Delay 
> 30 minutes

Alameda 24.4% 603:10:31
Central California 26.9% 1154:50:47
Coastal Valleys 3.8% 39:15:37
Contra Costa 30.5% 597:10:43
El Dorado 1.8% 2:33:45
Imperial 10.7% 21:04:11
Inland Counties 20.6% 939:54:41
Kern 33.9% 701:23:48
Los Angeles 21.4% 3305:04:21
Marin 0.2% 0:15:24
Merced 26.5% 130:24:13
Monterey 3.0% 18:38:47
Mountain Counties 1.1% 2:03:00
Napa 1.6% 3:40:17
Northern California 0.8% 2:39:00
North Coast 0.7% 2:12:26
Orange 7.5% 410:34:29
Riverside 17.9% 1144:06:37
Sacramento 21.2% 643:52:02
San Benito 0.9% 0:05:41
San Diego 23.5% 713:25:08
San Francisco 18.6% 386:00:55
San Joaquin 26.7% 405:32:54
San Luis Obispo 2.5% 12:08:12
San Mateo 1.6% 6:22:57
Santa Barbara 0.6% 1:30:48
Santa Clara 9.7% 328:06:23
Santa Cruz 3.2% 7:53:59
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 7.0% 203:53:17
Solano 14.2% 13:35:59
Stanislaus County 16.0% 289:02:06
Tuolumne 0.8% 1:15:29
Ventura 4.6% 40:36:50
Yolo 18.8% 26:21:54
Statewide Total 17.5% 12158:47:11



   
 

   
All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 14, 2023.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS Providers in 
all LEMSA are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 18 

CEMSIS Sourced APOT 1 (April 2024 – September 2024): Licensed Emergency 
Department 90th Percentile APOT (1 of 5) 

 

Note: Monthly 90th percentile offload times greater than 30 minutes are 
highlighted in red.  

Hospital LEMSA
CEMSIS 
Facility ID CEMSIS Facility Name

April 2024 
APOT

May 2024 
APOT

June 2024 
APOT

July 2024 
APOT

August 2024 
APOT

September 
2024 APOT

Alameda 20004 Alameda County Medical Center, Highland 1:00:49 1:02:25 1:02:04 0:59:27 0:51:01 1:03:18
Alameda 20005 Alameda Hospital 0:26:23 0:28:54 0:22:47 0:23:49 0:24:59 0:25:55
Alameda 20008 Alta Bates Summit Medical Center, Alta Bates Campus 0:47:08 0:45:45 0:44:05 0:43:19 0:39:37 0:42:56
Alameda 20059 Children's Hospital & Research Center Oakland 0:37:28 0:32:31 0:35:25 0:25:59 0:31:52 0:30:57
Alameda 20112 Eden Medical Center 0:43:38 0:50:44 0:50:43 0:44:04 0:47:32 0:38:47
Alameda 20185 Kaiser Permanente, Fremont 0:41:38 0:57:55 0:41:21 0:39:54 0:39:12 0:37:40
Alameda 20190 Kaiser Permanente, Oakland Medical Center 1:03:12 0:53:19 0:56:43 0:52:05 0:52:54 0:51:02
Alameda 62356 Kaiser Permanente, San Leandro Medical Center 0:50:15 0:59:31 0:55:08 0:56:16 0:49:05 0:46:28
Alameda 20463 Saint Rose Hospital 0:47:00 0:57:18 0:42:11 0:54:17 0:39:13 0:33:33
Alameda 20393 San Leandro Hospital 0:46:00 0:48:41 0:49:27 0:44:29 0:44:23 0:41:18
Alameda 20515 Stanford Health Care - ValleyCare 0:54:46 0:48:21 0:45:49 0:45:04 0:42:05 0:35:48
Alameda 20525 Washington Hospital, Fremont 0:44:41 0:54:41 0:47:05 0:51:02 0:43:41 0:48:19
Central California 20001 Adventist  Health Hanford 0:39:35 0:41:07 0:39:20 0:44:30 0:40:05 0:40:00
Central California 20427 Adventist  Health Reedley 0:23:27 0:28:53 0:24:06 0:21:59 0:22:31 0:23:06
Central California 20410 Adventist  Health Selma 0:24:55 0:23:36 0:24:48 0:25:14 0:25:53 0:21:25
Central California 20070 Clovis Community Medical Center 0:47:02 0:53:19 0:47:22 0:43:11 0:44:02 0:41:03
Central California 20071 Coalinga Regional Medical Center 0:09:10 0:14:42 0:13:15 0:09:57 0:17:22 0:17:43
Central California 20085 Community Regional Medical Center, Fresno 0:58:06 0:52:15 0:48:25 0:51:09 0:50:39 0:50:44
Central California 20186 Kaiser Permanente, Fresno 0:53:24 0:56:23 0:58:24 0:57:48 0:48:25 1:00:04
Central California 20219 Kaweah Delta Medical Center 0:53:21 0:50:54 0:58:10 0:58:18 0:56:02 0:56:31
Central California 20443 Saint Agnes Medical Center 0:46:06 0:45:23 0:45:37 0:44:28 0:46:53 0:44:25
Central California 20429 Sierra View Medical Center 0:48:16 0:47:02 0:49:42 0:45:07 0:44:27 0:43:56
Central California 20500 Tulare Regional Medical Center 0:48:20 0:48:13 0:51:23 0:50:00 0:48:37 0:45:09
Central California 20061 Valley Children's Hospital 0:22:50 0:23:59 0:27:28 0:23:59 0:23:23 0:22:55
Coastal Valleys 20132 Adventist  Health Howard Memorial 0:06:42 0:09:00 0:08:00 0:08:59 0:07:00 0:08:05
Coastal Valleys 20277 Adventist  Health Mendocino Coast 0:06:00 0:06:00 0:06:00 0:06:00 0:06:00 0:06:00
Coastal Valleys 20506 Adventist  Health Ukiah Valley 0:08:30 0:09:00 0:08:00 0:08:02 0:08:00 0:09:00
Coastal Valleys 20157 Healdsburg District Hospital 0:11:00 0:13:22 0:11:43 0:12:05 0:10:26 0:11:00
Coastal Valleys 20203 Kaiser Permanente, Santa Rosa 0:19:47 0:18:11 0:23:06 0:22:34 0:19:07 0:18:29
Coastal Valleys 20343 Petaluma Valley Hospital 0:11:57 0:11:44 0:13:59 0:12:59 0:14:00 0:10:24
Coastal Valleys 20402 Santa Rosa Memorial Hospital, Montgomery 0:19:00 0:18:02 0:18:30 0:20:04 0:19:35 0:18:23
Coastal Valleys 20436 Sonoma Valley Hospital 0:08:43 0:11:02 0:10:54 0:10:00 0:10:02 0:08:31
Coastal Valleys 20478 Sutter Santa Rosa Regional Hospital 0:25:42 0:28:52 0:25:59 0:26:27 0:30:00 0:30:53
Contra Costa 20087 Contra Costa Regional Medical Center 0:43:25 0:42:22 0:48:25 0:48:03 0:48:41 0:44:10
Contra Costa 20179 John Muir Medical Center, Concord 0:30:00 0:35:02 0:39:22 0:35:55 0:35:55 0:34:46
Contra Costa 20180 John Muir Medical Center, Walnut Creek 0:55:26 1:04:15 0:59:32 1:03:09 0:55:16 0:53:10
Contra Costa 20214 Kaiser Permanente, Antioch 0:47:06 0:49:56 0:58:26 0:52:13 0:45:47 0:45:37
Contra Costa 20194 Kaiser Permanente, Richmond 0:58:02 1:02:46 1:05:32 0:59:37 0:58:23 0:55:52
Contra Costa 20208 Kaiser Permanente, Walnut Creek 0:37:59 0:36:47 0:38:53 0:36:57 0:35:08 0:37:01
Contra Costa 20396 San Ramon Regional Medical Center 0:16:11 0:17:03 0:14:54 0:15:13 0:16:02 0:13:51
Contra Costa 20474 Sutter Delta Medical Center 0:38:17 0:44:42 0:43:10 0:45:40 0:43:14 0:42:00
El Dorado 20033 Barton Memorial Hospital 0:07:19 0:09:49 0:09:04 0:09:59 0:10:46 0:08:33
El Dorado 20272 Marshall Medical Center 0:13:33 0:14:36 0:12:50 0:12:47 0:13:10 0:15:31
ICEMA 20019 Arrowhead Regional Medical Center 0:32:58 0:28:21 0:22:55 0:23:35 0:23:45 0:27:32
ICEMA 20032 Barstow Community Hospital 0:15:22 0:14:14 0:14:04 0:14:23 0:15:15 0:14:35
ICEMA 20034 Bear Valley Community Healthcare District 0:16:32 0:16:01 0:14:10 0:15:17 0:13:58 0:12:42
ICEMA 20066 Chino Valley Medical Center 0:40:21 0:39:16 0:43:37 0:46:46 0:31:33 0:30:22
ICEMA 20077 Colorado River Medical Center 0:03:42 0:03:58 0:03:45 0:04:50 0:04:04 0:04:34
ICEMA 20083 Community Hospital of San Bernardino 0:51:13 0:50:31 0:49:12 0:45:11 0:51:01 0:47:13
ICEMA 20098 Desert Valley Hospital 1:04:52 0:56:40 0:54:21 0:53:45 0:46:37 0:48:59
ICEMA 20165 Hi-Desert Medical Center 0:20:49 0:20:11 0:18:02 0:19:56 0:22:01 0:19:00
ICEMA 20184 Kaiser Permanente, Fontana 0:40:16 0:45:17 0:41:33 0:39:54 0:40:38 0:36:24
ICEMA 20555 Kaiser Permanente, Ontario 0:46:08 0:46:12 0:49:09 0:46:33 0:51:24 0:38:06
ICEMA 64989 Loma Linda University Children's Hospital 0:37:05 0:31:10 0:25:42 0:28:26 0:25:59 0:27:09
ICEMA 20252 Loma Linda University Medical Center 0:50:05 0:48:38 0:42:52 0:43:16 0:46:41 0:42:52
ICEMA 20266 Mammoth Hospital 0:09:25 0:09:22 0:09:51 0:12:47 0:08:22 0:11:13
ICEMA 20300 Montclair Hospital Medical Center 0:29:04 0:29:36 0:29:51 0:25:32 0:24:34 0:27:03
ICEMA 20303 Mountains Community Hospital 0:12:06 0:13:21 0:12:11 0:15:01 0:13:34 0:14:35
ICEMA 20314 Northern Inyo Hospital 0:05:21 0:07:44 0:18:35 0:12:36 0:13:25 0:14:26
ICEMA 20366 Redlands Community Hospital 0:38:28 0:38:01 0:34:40 0:29:56 0:30:42 0:29:05
ICEMA 20382 San Antonio Regional Hospital 0:40:30 0:44:31 0:39:33 0:32:46 0:30:37 0:33:46
ICEMA 20440 Southern Inyo Hospital 0:01:24 0:03:00 0:04:18 0:03:35 0:03:00 0:01:00
ICEMA 20444 St. Bernardine Medical Center 0:29:09 0:31:57 0:33:26 0:30:18 0:32:03 0:33:00
ICEMA 20461 St. Mary Medical Center 1:04:28 1:05:04 0:59:41 1:09:35 1:06:10 1:08:43
ICEMA 20520 Victor Valley Global Medical Center 1:00:23 1:01:18 1:06:26 0:57:19 1:00:11 0:53:09
Imperial 20117 El Centro Regional Medical Center 0:27:49 0:31:44 0:38:27 0:37:43 0:33:56 0:32:20
Imperial 20344 Pioneers Memorial Hospital 0:19:48 0:28:54 0:22:05 0:22:43 0:25:00 0:21:56
Kern 20389 Adventist  Health Bakersfield 1:02:59 1:01:09 0:58:49 1:01:43 1:01:25 0:53:51
Kern 20488 Adventist  Health Tehachapi Valley 0:39:24 0:39:21 0:51:48 0:36:04 0:47:20 0:45:26



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 19 

CEMSIS Sourced APOT 1 (April 2024 – September 2024): Licensed Emergency 
Department 90th Percentile APOT (2 of 5) 

 

Note: Monthly 90th percentile offload times greater than 30 minutes are 
highlighted in red.  

Hospital LEMSA
CEMSIS 
Facility ID CEMSIS Facility Name

April 2024 
APOT

May 2024 
APOT

June 2024 
APOT

July 2024 
APOT

August 2024 
APOT

September 
2024 APOT

Kern 20027 Bakersfield Heart Hospital 0:46:19 0:44:14 0:44:31 0:41:11 0:38:30 0:39:42
Kern 20028 Bakersfield Memorial Hospital 0:58:33 0:49:28 1:02:18 1:08:17 0:59:45 0:57:21
Kern 20096 Delano Regional Medical Center 0:44:36 0:40:22 0:53:21 0:38:33 0:41:37 0:34:36
Kern 20224 Kern Medical 0:49:49 1:00:35 0:55:15 0:55:08 0:46:21 0:44:42
Kern 20225 Kern Valley Healthcare District 0:25:52 0:21:35 0:28:36 0:29:58 0:24:23 0:26:03
Kern 20281 Mercy Hospital 0:50:00 0:56:46 0:51:51 1:01:53 0:45:34 0:37:21
Kern 20287 Mercy Hospital SW - Bakersfield 0:44:46 0:54:01 0:58:48 0:56:45 0:46:55 0:40:10
Kern 20372 Ridgecrest Regional Hospital 0:35:08 0:32:32 0:34:11 0:34:43 0:33:48 0:59:29
Los Angeles 20144 Adventist  Health Glendale 0:44:40 0:44:18 0:41:00 0:44:00 0:43:01 0:40:30
Los Angeles 20531 Adventist  Health White Memorial 1:16:29 1:02:34 2:02:36 1:20:02 1:29:10 1:15:09
Los Angeles 20007 Alhambra Hospital 0:19:00 0:17:00 0:22:00 0:23:00 0:20:54 0:20:51
Los Angeles 20018 Antelope Valley Hospital 1:07:41 1:02:45 1:03:02 1:00:31 0:58:09 2:13:57
Los Angeles 20038 Beverly Hospital 1:27:21 1:20:24 1:35:21 1:12:34 1:31:25 0:58:12
Los Angeles 20045 California Hospital Medical Center 0:49:25 0:53:23 0:57:28 0:51:11 0:51:53 1:02:01
Los Angeles 20053 Catalina Island Medical Center 0:06:02 0:10:54
Los Angeles 20054 Cedars-Sinai Medical Center 0:58:02 0:51:46 0:56:00 0:58:57 0:49:00 0:54:33
Los Angeles 20055 Centinela Hospital Medical Center 0:38:47 0:36:43 0:38:33 0:38:59 0:39:31 0:49:32
Los Angeles 20062 Children's Hospital Los Angeles 0:17:23 0:17:17 0:15:22 0:18:49 0:14:56 0:17:00
Los Angeles 20068 Citrus Valley Medical Center, Queen of the Valley Campus 0:48:58 0:41:14 0:36:17 0:40:00 0:50:06 0:53:35
Los Angeles 20073 Coast Plaza Hospital 1:25:33 1:20:10 1:15:55 1:46:24 1:25:55 1:09:23
Los Angeles 20328 College Medical Center 0:55:24 0:43:30 1:19:00 0:43:30 0:39:36 0:40:00
Los Angeles 20081 Community Hospital of Huntington Park 1:20:45 1:07:10 1:18:43 1:07:29 1:11:46 1:15:50
Los Angeles 20108 East Los Angeles Doctors Hospital 0:49:41 0:50:52 0:42:33 0:38:08 0:45:00 0:40:02
Los Angeles 20067 Emanate Health- InterCommunity Hospital 0:56:27 0:44:39 0:45:07 0:45:36 0:43:13 0:48:08
Los Angeles 20120 Encino Hospital Medical Center 0:14:56 0:14:14 0:16:04 0:18:37 0:17:06 0:18:00
Los Angeles 20129 Foothill Presbyterian Hospital 0:55:57 0:55:09 0:57:33 0:56:20 0:56:30 1:13:03
Los Angeles 20140 Garfield Medical Center 0:15:02 0:16:24 0:19:53 0:14:00 0:14:06 0:16:00
Los Angeles 20145 Glendale Memorial Hospital and Health Center 0:34:00 0:32:00 0:29:00 0:29:52 0:26:54 0:39:06
Los Angeles 20149 Good Samaritan Hospital, Los Angeles 0:34:51 0:36:30 0:43:45 0:37:27 0:38:31 0:39:43
Los Angeles 20152 Greater El Monte Community Hospital 0:51:16 0:51:23 0:49:15 0:50:59 0:58:29 1:00:28
Los Angeles 20240 Harbor UCLA Medical Center 0:22:46 0:42:29 1:00:45 1:08:18 1:12:09 0:59:20
Los Angeles 20163 Henry Mayo Newhall Memorial Hospital 0:45:29 0:40:38 0:33:36 0:40:02 0:38:56 0:48:22
Los Angeles 20171 Hollywood Presbyterian Medical Center 0:40:56 0:40:13 0:47:57 0:45:10 0:40:22 0:51:48
Los Angeles 20173 Huntington Memorial Hospital 0:37:00 0:29:22 0:30:49 0:34:00 0:32:42 0:34:00
Los Angeles 20183 Kaiser Permanente, Baldwin Park 1:03:58 1:19:56 1:32:16 1:31:59 1:23:03 1:04:09
Los Angeles 20215 Kaiser Permanente, Downey 1:28:46 1:28:31 1:25:29 1:25:04 1:29:26 1:32:55
Los Angeles 20207 Kaiser Permanente, Los Angeles 0:40:42 0:34:36 0:38:13 0:36:15 0:28:06 0:36:19
Los Angeles 20191 Kaiser Permanente, Panorama City 0:27:47 0:29:42 0:32:54 0:29:39 0:32:25 0:33:33
Los Angeles 20204 Kaiser Permanente, South Bay 0:34:10 0:37:59 0:31:24 0:40:53 0:35:22 0:34:34
Los Angeles 20209 Kaiser Permanente, West Los Angeles 1:02:28 1:01:24 0:49:00 0:58:15 0:49:20 0:55:21
Los Angeles 20210 Kaiser Permanente, Woodland Hills 0:34:33 0:35:15 0:44:48 0:37:35 0:33:22 0:36:00
Los Angeles 20242 LAC USC Medical Center 0:32:55 0:32:59 0:32:12 0:31:11 0:35:44 0:32:22
Los Angeles 20244 Lakewood Regional Medical Center 1:29:54 1:13:25 1:29:20 1:43:53 1:38:22 1:29:52
Los Angeles 20257 Los Angeles Community Hospital 0:13:58 0:19:36 0:22:08 0:25:48 0:05:36 0:08:48
Los Angeles 20270 Marina Del Rey Hospital 0:42:59 0:46:31 0:46:55 0:43:48 0:45:08 0:44:04
Los Angeles 60988 Mart in Luther King, Jr. Community Hospital 0:23:39 0:26:12 0:24:43 0:21:41 0:23:17 0:24:24
Los Angeles 20276 Memorial Hospital Of Gardena 0:25:01 0:23:17 0:27:00 0:25:06 0:30:43 0:29:15
Los Angeles 20255 MemorialCare Long Beach Medical Center 0:41:00 0:48:37 0:51:30 0:52:00 0:50:00 0:46:00
Los Angeles 20289 Methodist  Hospital of Southern California 0:43:30 0:36:08 0:39:03 0:38:46 0:42:58 0:49:46
Los Angeles 20294 Mission Community Hospital 0:24:02 0:27:47 0:29:00 0:26:14 0:24:46 0:26:12
Los Angeles 20301 Monterey Park Hospital 0:26:46 0:22:06 0:19:54 0:18:28 0:20:18 0:21:43
Los Angeles 20315 Northridge Hospital Medical Center 0:34:16 0:33:22 0:31:57 0:31:53 0:29:58 0:32:58
Los Angeles 20316 Norwalk Community Hospital 1:09:49 0:42:52 0:56:46 0:49:38 0:48:41 0:46:50
Los Angeles 20258 Olive View UCLA Medical Center 0:31:36 0:27:38 0:27:39 0:36:48 0:34:37 0:26:08
Los Angeles 20331 Pacifica Hospital of the Valley 0:14:55 0:15:57 0:13:28 0:18:32 0:18:20 0:17:34
Los Angeles 20333 Palmdale Regional Medical Center 0:43:41 0:42:18 0:49:23 0:46:05 0:55:25 1:43:15
Los Angeles 20106 PIH Health Hospital, Downey 1:28:12 1:00:30 1:26:47 1:07:07 1:08:06 0:50:56
Los Angeles 20350 PIH Health Hospital, Whitt ier 0:54:46 0:58:08 1:01:21 0:57:49 0:58:11 0:56:41
Los Angeles 20348 Pomona Valley Hospital Medical Center 0:52:12 0:55:14 0:51:46 0:58:06 0:59:39 0:49:00
Los Angeles 20354 Providence Holy Cross Medical Center 0:19:53 0:19:27 0:21:07 0:21:55 0:22:58 0:23:25
Los Angeles 20356 Providence Litt le Company of Mary Medical Center, San Pedro 0:41:51 0:42:12 0:45:25 0:38:36 0:31:48 0:44:31
Los Angeles 20357 Providence Litt le Company of Mary Medical Center, Torrance 0:48:04 0:51:16 1:11:47 1:03:59 0:58:24 0:53:54
Los Angeles 20451 Providence Saint John's Health Center 0:39:37 0:46:32 0:51:43 0:47:41 0:47:27 0:53:05
Los Angeles 20360 Providence Saint Joseph Medical Center 0:41:00 0:38:37 0:40:44 0:44:04 0:40:20 0:38:05
Los Angeles 20361 Providence Tarzana Medical Center 0:34:25 0:38:03 0:38:57 0:34:43 0:31:51 0:31:41
Los Angeles 20377 Ronald Reagan UCLA Medical Center 0:32:42 0:37:07 0:42:05 0:35:33 0:39:40 0:35:54
Los Angeles 20446 Saint Francis Medical Center 0:56:12 1:09:57 1:02:36 1:07:21 1:22:54 1:29:04
Los Angeles 20385 San Dimas Community Hospital 0:48:44 0:43:54 0:38:59 0:43:33 1:13:44 0:43:41
Los Angeles 20387 San Gabriel Valley Medical Center 0:42:46 0:27:00 0:26:06 0:25:24 0:34:04 0:30:22
Los Angeles 20401 Santa Monica - UCLA Medical Center and Orthopaedic Hospital 0:39:15 0:28:02 0:33:07 0:38:21 0:55:51 0:39:11



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 20 

CEMSIS Sourced APOT 1 (April 2024 – September 2024): Licensed Emergency 
Department 90th Percentile APOT (3 of 5) 

 

Note: Monthly 90th percentile offload times greater than 30 minutes are 
highlighted in red.  

Hospital LEMSA
CEMSIS 
Facility ID CEMSIS Facility Name

April 2024 
APOT

May 2024 
APOT

June 2024 
APOT

July 2024 
APOT

August 2024 
APOT

September 
2024 APOT

Los Angeles 20424 Sherman Oaks Hospital 0:30:32 0:25:39 0:29:19 0:26:01 0:32:25 0:27:50
Los Angeles 20042 Southern California Hospital at Culver City 0:54:14 0:46:08 0:50:47 0:56:58 1:01:36 0:51:51
Los Angeles 20460 St. Mary Medical Center, Long Beach 0:44:00 0:46:00 0:45:00 0:47:00 0:50:54 0:48:00
Los Angeles 20496 Torrance Memorial Medical Center 0:38:12 0:55:22 1:08:24 1:00:03 0:54:06 0:49:46
Los Angeles 20518 USC Verdugo Hills Hospital 0:49:16 1:10:41 1:01:32 0:57:48 0:55:30 1:03:33
Los Angeles 20514 Valley Presbyterian Hospital 0:23:30 0:26:44 0:25:47 0:21:10 0:25:49 0:25:08
Los Angeles 20528 West Hills Hospital and Medical Center 0:46:24 0:48:22 0:43:04 0:40:28 0:37:38 0:44:19
Los Angeles 20532 Whitt ier Hospital Medical Center 0:28:38 0:29:20 0:28:38 0:29:50 0:31:18 0:28:11
Marin 20201 Kaiser Permanente, San Rafael 0:14:12 0:14:59 0:15:07 0:12:43 0:12:23 0:11:45
Marin 20269 Marin Health Medical Center 0:13:25 0:13:34 0:13:44 0:13:06 0:12:36 0:12:00
Marin 20317 Novato Community Hospital 0:09:52 0:08:55 0:10:00 0:09:18 0:09:00 0:08:48
Merced 20274 Memorial Hospital Los Banos 0:43:18 0:40:33 0:37:59 0:40:34 0:38:59 0:34:26
Merced 20283 Mercy Medical Center, Merced 0:54:06 0:53:50 0:53:40 0:58:30 0:48:01 0:47:26
Monterey 20080 Community Hospital of the Monterey Peninsula 0:16:00 0:16:39 0:17:59 0:16:23 0:17:01 0:15:16
Monterey 20143 George L. Mee Memorial Hospital 0:10:42 0:06:56 0:11:38 0:08:28 0:08:48 0:07:58
Monterey 20306 Natividad Medical Center 0:22:00 0:21:42 0:23:24 0:22:39 0:23:59 0:23:11
Monterey 20381 Salinas Valley Memorial Hospital 0:13:09 0:10:16 0:19:41 0:20:30 0:21:15 0:19:51
Mountain Counties 20176 John C Fremont Healthcare District 0:10:18 0:25:33 0:20:09 0:19:12 0:11:56 0:13:07
Mountain Counties 20271 Mark Twain Medical Center 0:10:00 0:10:00 0:10:00 0:10:00 0:10:00 0:10:00
Mountain Counties 20469 Sutter Amador Hospital 0:14:00 0:12:00 0:12:00 0:12:00 0:13:00 0:13:12
Napa 20448 Adventist  Health St. Helena 0:06:27 0:11:00 0:10:00 0:10:53 0:09:05 0:10:00
Napa 20362 Queen Of The Valley Medical Center 0:14:12 0:16:24 0:13:24 0:13:02 0:13:58 0:11:49
NorCal 20030 Banner Lassen Medical Center 0:06:06 0:04:00 0:05:28 0:04:00 0:05:00 0:05:00
NorCal 20111 Eastern Plumas Hospital, Portola Campus 0:04:48 0:05:00 0:05:00 0:05:00 0:05:00 0:05:00
NorCal 20298 Modoc Medical Center 0:03:18 0:04:00 0:03:00 0:02:00 0:02:00 0:02:00
NorCal 20346 Plumas District Hospital 0:05:36 0:08:00 0:10:48 0:08:00 0:06:30 0:07:30
NorCal 20412 Seneca District Hospital 0:05:22 0:07:00 0:05:00 0:05:00 0:03:00 0:04:54
NorCal 20468 Surprise Valley Community Hospital 0:08:00 0:03:36 0:04:00 0:03:24 0:04:36 0:02:00
NorCal 20499 Trinity Hospital 0:04:00 0:12:17 0:07:06 0:11:07 0:05:00 0:08:48
North Coast 20449 Adventist  Health Clearlake 0:14:49 0:18:59 0:16:35 0:17:42 0:17:21 0:16:52
North Coast 20174 Jerold Phelps Community Hospital 0:02:21 0:01:02 0:01:33 0:02:22 0:04:40 0:03:41
North Coast 20264 Mad River Community Hospital 0:03:16 0:03:25 0:04:27 0:04:26 0:04:00 0:04:31
North Coast 20367 Redwood Memorial Hospital 0:03:48 0:04:41 0:04:17 0:04:40 0:04:45 0:04:44
North Coast 20454 Saint Joseph Hospital, Eureka 0:06:00 0:06:07 0:06:03 0:06:03 0:06:38 0:06:43
North Coast 20472 Sutter Coast Hospital 0:02:08 0:00:02 0:15:02 0:04:56 0:00:00 0:00:00
North Coast 20476 Sutter Lakeside Hospital 0:08:39 0:08:26 0:06:47 0:06:51 0:07:39 0:07:21
Orange 20002 AHMC Anaheim Regional Medical Center 0:28:48 0:34:38 0:30:19 0:31:55 0:33:28 0:39:01
Orange 20530 Anaheim Global Medical Center 0:31:43 0:38:59 0:32:08 0:33:46 0:33:15 0:31:31
Orange 20063 Children's Hospital of Orange County 0:14:02 0:13:37 0:11:25 0:11:28 0:11:42 0:13:08
Orange 20308 Foothill Regional Medical Center 0:44:44 0:29:34 0:24:21 0:36:04 0:28:35 0:26:15
Orange 20130 Fountain Valley Regional Hospital and Medical Center, Euclid 0:29:46 0:32:24 0:24:11 0:26:42 0:23:43 0:29:41
Orange 20139 Garden Grove Hospital and Medical Center 0:29:44 0:29:44 0:29:45 0:41:13 0:36:41 0:44:26
Orange 20166 Hoag Hospital I rvine 0:19:17 0:15:48 0:17:37 0:18:04 0:16:35 0:15:45
Orange 20167 Hoag Hospital Newport Beach 0:14:17 0:14:08 0:14:00 0:14:00 0:14:20 0:14:07
Orange 20172 Huntington Beach Hospital 0:29:42 0:29:51 0:35:03 0:28:32 0:31:39 0:34:29
Orange 20560 Kaiser Permanente, Anaheim 0:36:41 0:34:15 0:39:24 0:39:22 0:36:04 0:40:07
Orange 20188 Kaiser Permanente, Irvine 0:27:31 0:23:59 0:31:57 0:31:49 0:30:58 0:28:00
Orange 20239 La Palma Intercommunity Hospital 0:52:41 0:38:05 0:49:32 1:01:16 0:43:04 0:38:18
Orange 20256 Los Alamitos Medical Center 0:46:56 0:54:03 0:51:03 0:52:14 0:48:57 0:40:55
Orange 20379 MemorialCare Saddleback Medical Center 0:18:48 0:18:05 0:19:35 0:20:21 0:19:17 0:19:37
Orange 20296 Mission Hospital 0:23:09 0:21:39 0:21:57 0:23:22 0:24:01 0:22:30
Orange 20295 Mission Hospital Laguna Beach 0:26:51 0:25:33 0:31:52 0:24:35 0:27:21 0:25:27
Orange 20325 Orange Coast Memorial Medical Center 0:25:57 0:22:01 0:22:45 0:24:24 0:21:38 0:18:56
Orange 20529 Orange County Global Medical Center 0:20:18 0:21:17 0:19:47 0:18:24 0:18:46 0:21:55
Orange 20345 Placentia-Linda Hospital 0:20:21 0:17:13 0:16:21 0:18:37 0:20:12 0:21:54
Orange 20074 South Coast Global Medical Center 0:27:17 0:26:54 0:25:40 0:28:11 0:28:52 0:26:34
Orange 20455 St. Joseph Hospital, Orange 0:26:57 0:28:51 0:24:04 0:27:20 0:25:11 0:24:35
Orange 20458 St. Jude Medical Center 0:31:39 0:30:42 0:37:03 0:35:17 0:35:30 0:30:10
Orange 20509 University of California, Irvine Medical Center 0:33:56 0:31:15 0:30:57 0:31:10 0:31:37 0:30:10
Orange 20527 West Anaheim Medical Center 0:32:34 0:37:30 0:38:30 0:44:44 0:39:58 0:34:40
Riverside 20090 Corona Regional Medical Center 1:24:15 0:46:56 1:22:25 1:36:08 1:08:41 1:07:53
Riverside 20097 Desert Regional Medical Center 0:23:09 0:23:06 0:21:30 0:24:18 0:22:53 0:22:15
Riverside 20114 Eisenhower Medical Center 0:18:49 0:20:17 0:18:57 0:19:22 0:18:10 0:18:29
Riverside 20162 Hemet Valley Medical Center 0:54:13 1:06:27 0:55:07 1:10:31 1:05:29 0:57:12
Riverside 20442 Inland Valley Medical Center 0:54:16 0:58:12 1:02:53 1:29:14 1:10:16 0:55:35
Riverside 20177 JFK - John F Kennedy Memorial Hospital 0:16:19 0:16:52 0:15:35 0:15:28 0:16:39 0:14:55
Riverside 20211 Kaiser Permanente, Moreno Valley 0:59:56 0:54:02 0:58:21 0:55:37 0:44:57 0:45:14
Riverside 20195 Kaiser Permanente, Riverside 0:46:34 0:51:24 0:49:26 1:01:22 0:44:59 0:52:07
Riverside 20535 Loma Linda University Medical Center, Murrieta 0:58:42 0:54:15 0:52:51 0:48:15 0:34:33 0:35:23
Riverside 20278 Menifee Valley Medical Center 0:30:42 0:38:19 0:35:31 0:41:51 0:36:56 0:39:02



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 21 

CEMSIS Sourced APOT 1 (April 2024 – September 2024): Licensed Emergency 
Department 90th Percentile APOT (4 of 5) 

 
 

Note: Monthly 90th percentile offload times greater than 30 minutes are 
highlighted in red.  

Hospital LEMSA
CEMSIS 
Facility ID CEMSIS Facility Name

April 2024 
APOT

May 2024 
APOT

June 2024 
APOT

July 2024 
APOT

August 2024 
APOT

September 
2024 APOT

Riverside 20334 Palo Verde Hospital 0:15:00 0:11:17 0:13:33 0:15:00 0:12:42 0:13:25
Riverside 20339 Parkview Community Hospital Medical Center 0:34:07 0:30:39 0:29:52 0:27:19 0:26:56 0:28:49
Riverside 20441 Rancho Springs Medical Center 0:35:40 0:40:32 0:47:13 1:03:42 0:45:19 0:50:00
Riverside 20374 Riverside Community Hospital 0:41:51 0:46:37 0:55:10 0:45:15 0:47:35 0:48:31
Riverside 20375 Riverside University Health System Medical Center 0:27:25 0:30:50 0:29:56 0:32:34 0:32:17 0:30:45
Riverside 20388 San Gorgonio Memorial Hospital 1:21:36 1:06:28 1:07:04 0:40:27 0:34:50 0:29:56
Riverside 20559 Temecula Valley Hospital 0:55:40 0:59:53 0:56:14 1:13:04 0:46:57 1:04:24
Sacramento 20197 Kaiser Permanente, Sacramento Medical Center 1:03:19 0:52:50 0:54:12 0:55:06 0:50:23 0:52:23
Sacramento 20205 Kaiser Permanente, South Sacramento Medical Center 0:51:05 1:08:40 1:01:02 1:02:57 0:42:05 0:39:17
Sacramento 20280 Mercy General Hospital 0:55:29 0:51:52 0:53:54 0:53:33 0:48:38 0:45:32
Sacramento 20282 Mercy Hospital of Folsom 0:36:50 0:39:50 0:38:31 0:43:11 0:33:18 0:30:13
Sacramento 20286 Mercy San Juan Medical Center 1:02:54 1:00:32 1:04:30 1:10:12 0:54:37 0:26:19
Sacramento 20288 Methodist  Hospital of Sacramento 0:35:25 0:32:05 0:33:47 0:35:52 0:35:37 0:32:01
Sacramento 20475 Sutter Medical Center - Sacramento 0:59:05 0:55:20 0:55:28 0:51:15 0:46:37 0:46:13
Sacramento 20508 UC Davis Medical Center 0:52:53 0:43:45 0:57:01 0:47:46 0:36:58 0:40:18
San Benito 20156 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital 0:12:06 0:10:11 0:10:27 0:11:46 0:13:06 0:12:21
San Diego 62989 Kaiser San Marcos Medical Center 1:16:45 0:46:30 0:53:28 1:14:27 0:52:37 1:17:35
San Diego 20198 Kaiser Permanente, San Diego 0:42:13 0:28:47 0:35:56 0:53:52 0:41:48 0:49:03
San Diego 62393 Kaiser Permanente, San Diego Medical Center 0:34:29 0:34:52 0:27:23 0:31:13 0:38:58 0:28:59
San Diego 20561 Palomar Medical Center 0:53:03 0:41:07 0:38:19 0:41:20 0:45:59 0:40:41
San Diego 20337 Paradise Valley Hospital 0:55:50 0:57:30 1:12:33 0:55:39 1:13:13 1:09:42
San Diego 20347 Pomerado Hospital 0:51:55 0:45:55 1:03:20 0:43:30 0:54:44 0:55:58
San Diego 20364 Rady Children's Hospital 0:35:12 0:32:01 0:26:26 0:28:50 0:34:57 0:31:58
San Diego 20406 Scripps Memorial Hospital, Encinitas 0:49:42 0:38:28 0:56:51 0:53:57 0:49:36 0:52:10
San Diego 20407 Scripps Memorial Hospital, La Jolla 0:31:54 0:28:32 0:42:37 0:31:11 0:39:41 0:29:41
San Diego 20408 Scripps Mercy Hospital 0:35:56 0:38:33 0:43:07 0:42:19 0:45:24 0:38:19
San Diego 20409 Scripps Mercy Hospital, Chula Vista 0:45:15 0:46:03 0:40:21 0:31:03 0:32:35 0:33:37
San Diego 20416 Sharp Chula Vista Medical Center 1:04:05 1:00:53 0:51:02 1:11:07 0:48:42 0:55:10
San Diego 20417 Sharp Coronado Hospital and Healthcare Center 0:40:51 0:39:04 1:21:51 1:13:59 0:41:41 0:44:07
San Diego 20153 Sharp Grossmont Hospital 0:48:51 0:47:52 0:53:19 0:46:14 0:47:57 0:42:14
San Diego 20419 Sharp Memorial Hospital 1:04:55 1:04:20 1:04:16 0:58:42 1:00:25 0:55:09
San Diego 20497 Tri-City Medical Center 1:19:15 0:51:22 1:01:46 0:49:45 1:22:30 1:46:56
San Diego 62998 UC San Diego Health East Campus Medical Center 0:53:40 1:00:00 1:03:33 0:53:45 1:04:56 1:02:43
San Diego 20510 University of California, San Diego Medical Center 1:01:19 0:49:03 1:02:45 0:47:40 0:52:00 0:52:28
San Francisco 20048 California Pacific Medical Center, Davies Campus Hospital 0:40:40 0:40:58 0:38:02 0:36:35 0:35:32 0:31:21
San Francisco 20065 Chinese Hospital 0:35:29 0:26:13 0:32:11 0:24:09 0:23:40 0:22:51
San Francisco 20050 CPMC Mission Bernal Campus 0:43:14 0:40:29 0:42:15 0:37:59 0:36:23 0:34:31
San Francisco 62636 CPMC-Van Ness 0:49:02 0:50:04 0:52:00 0:50:45 0:44:57 0:43:11
San Francisco 20199 Kaiser Permanente, San Francisco 0:45:11 0:56:08 0:51:04 0:53:58 0:51:03 0:53:00
San Francisco 20447 Saint Francis Memorial Hospital 0:35:01 0:41:36 0:40:18 0:38:14 0:37:08 0:33:59
San Francisco 20462 St. Mary's Medical Center, San Francisco 0:37:58 0:33:39 0:32:23 0:31:00 0:30:00 0:30:00
San Francisco 62338 UCSF Medical Center at Mission Bay 0:25:27 0:24:19 0:22:30 0:20:52 0:19:23 0:19:09
San Francisco 20504 UCSF Medical Center at Parnassus 1:00:25 1:03:19 1:02:42 1:18:23 1:07:40 1:03:43
San Francisco 20386 Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital and Trauma Center 0:38:00 0:38:23 0:36:17 0:37:02 0:35:27 0:33:10
San Joaquin 20247 Adventist  Health Lodi Memorial 0:40:19 0:36:17 0:41:33 0:35:56 0:34:28 0:38:25
San Joaquin 20094 Dameron Hospital 0:38:59 0:36:57 0:36:44 0:33:27 0:31:34 0:33:32
San Joaquin 20099 Doctors Hospital of Manteca 0:32:56 0:28:50 0:32:27 0:41:50 0:40:49 0:31:53
San Joaquin 20212 Kaiser Permanente, Manteca 0:32:16 0:33:53 0:36:09 0:41:38 0:37:00 0:38:30
San Joaquin 20391 San Joaquin General Hospital 0:45:47 0:53:05 0:51:09 0:51:29 0:43:29 0:57:07
San Joaquin 20457 St. Joseph's Medical Center of Stockton 0:41:53 0:43:58 0:45:04 0:49:58 0:46:23 0:49:16
San Joaquin 20484 Sutter Tracy Community Hospital 0:33:26 0:38:54 0:44:35 0:34:41 0:41:12 0:32:43
San Luis Obispo 20020 Arroyo Grande Community Hospital 0:13:01 0:13:34 0:12:52 0:12:40 0:13:33 0:12:19
San Luis Obispo 20135 French Hospital Medical Center 0:18:51 0:19:01 0:23:05 0:19:35 0:16:00 0:18:54
San Luis Obispo 20431 Sierra Vista Regional Medical Center 0:17:55 0:16:51 0:18:27 0:17:23 0:17:18 0:19:00
San Luis Obispo 20502 Twin Cit ies Community Hospital 0:11:44 0:13:05 0:12:02 0:11:53 0:11:17 0:12:49
San Mateo 20192 Kaiser Permanente, Redwood City 0:17:18 0:15:58 0:21:10 0:23:09 0:16:37 0:15:47
San Mateo 20206 Kaiser Permanente, South San Francisco 0:18:51 0:18:26 0:17:56 0:15:09 0:16:23 0:14:21
San Mateo 20342 Mills-Peninsula Medical Center 0:18:43 0:21:36 0:21:24 0:20:58 0:20:34 0:19:28
San Mateo 20291 Mills-Peninsula Medical Center, San Mateo Campus 0:41:39 0:21:46 0:09:16 0:20:43 0:18:24
San Mateo 20413 Sequoia Hospital 0:13:25 0:14:29 0:14:22 0:16:48 0:14:31 0:16:01
San Mateo 20414 Seton Medical Center 0:21:00 0:20:06 0:17:48 0:17:07 0:16:50 0:14:07
Santa Barbara 20147 Goleta Valley Cottage Hospital 0:11:30 0:09:51 0:09:55 0:09:46 0:11:52 0:10:37
Santa Barbara 20253 Lompoc Valley Medical Center 0:12:31 0:12:31 0:10:31 0:11:53 0:11:16 0:10:20
Santa Barbara 20267 Marian Regional Medical Center 0:10:40 0:11:30 0:12:48 0:11:48 0:11:39 0:12:54
Santa Barbara 20398 Santa Barbara Cottage Hospital 0:16:01 0:16:21 0:14:48 0:15:53 0:15:39 0:14:54
Santa Barbara 20404 Santa Ynez Valley Cottage Hospital 0:08:33 0:10:23 0:08:57 0:09:17 0:10:22 0:11:30
Santa Clara 20115 El Camino Hospital 0:26:07 0:25:34 0:25:42 0:24:38 0:23:55 0:23:00
Santa Clara 20116 El Camino Hospital Los Gatos 0:30:36 0:28:23 0:26:18 0:24:56 0:24:11 0:22:46
Santa Clara 20150 Good Samaritan Hospital, San Jose 0:30:33 0:33:54 0:31:36 0:31:50 0:28:17 0:29:21
Santa Clara 20200 Kaiser Permanente, San Jose 0:29:34 0:28:23 0:27:50 0:29:56 0:27:05 0:25:44



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 22 

CEMSIS Sourced APOT 1 (April 2024 – September 2024): Licensed Emergency 
Department Count of Offloads and 90th Percentile APOT (5 of 5) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note: Monthly 90th percentile offload times greater than 30 minutes are 
highlighted in red.  

Hospital LEMSA
CEMSIS 
Facility ID CEMSIS Facility Name

April 2024 
APOT

May 2024 
APOT

June 2024 
APOT

July 2024 
APOT

August 2024 
APOT

September 
2024 APOT

Santa Clara 20202 Kaiser Permanente, Santa Clara Medical Center and Medical Offices 0:44:21 0:39:23 0:36:04 0:34:06 0:37:42 0:32:16
Santa Clara 20321 O'Connor Hospital, San Jose 0:32:20 0:31:31 0:30:36 0:34:24 0:30:59 0:30:02
Santa Clara 20368 Regional Medical Center of San Jose 0:28:26 0:29:38 0:29:01 0:27:21 0:25:16 0:25:16
Santa Clara 20400 Santa Clara Valley Medical Center 0:59:14 1:05:06 0:48:12 0:58:39 0:56:16 1:11:58
Santa Clara 20459 St. Louise Regional Hospital 0:22:03 0:23:16 0:19:45 0:22:46 0:25:39 0:22:43
Santa Clara 20465 Stanford Health Care 0:17:36 0:18:27 0:17:38 0:18:37 0:17:42 0:17:34
Santa Cruz 20105 Dominican Hospital, Santa Cruz 0:24:21 0:21:06 0:19:10 0:20:00 0:20:16 0:20:46
Santa Cruz 20526 Watsonville Community Hospital 0:15:00 0:17:36 0:16:36 0:16:49 0:16:12 0:17:58
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20371 Adventist  Health Rideout 0:22:05 0:20:22 0:23:15 0:24:23 0:30:25 0:21:34
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20078 Colusa Medical Center 0:16:11 0:17:47 0:20:55 0:20:15 0:22:38 0:25:50
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20122 Enloe Medical Center, Esplanade 0:11:11 0:11:26 0:12:33 0:13:30 0:12:33 0:11:37
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20124 Fairchild Medical Center 0:04:00 0:05:00 0:04:00 0:04:00 0:04:00 0:04:40
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20146 Glenn Medical Center 0:04:23 0:04:12 0:10:00 0:06:59 0:04:32 0:07:45
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20196 Kaiser Permanente, Roseville Medical Center 0:53:14 0:25:52 0:27:35 0:26:26 0:24:42 0:27:49
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20273 Mayers Memorial Hospital District 0:06:31 0:03:00 0:06:30 0:03:00 0:04:00 0:03:00
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20285 Mercy Medical Center, Mt. Shasta 0:05:00 0:05:00 0:05:00 0:05:00 0:05:00 0:06:00
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20284 Mercy Medical Center, Redding 0:51:55 0:48:49 0:49:54 0:42:53 0:43:00 0:45:00
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20040 Orchard Hospital 0:11:18 0:09:39 0:12:57 0:11:35 0:11:57 0:11:07
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20326 Oroville Hospital 0:15:08 0:16:02 0:17:02 0:18:05 0:17:48 0:14:58
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20423 Shasta Regional Medical Center 0:41:09 0:50:53 0:36:00 0:38:02 0:31:10 0:37:20
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20428 Sierra Nevada Memorial Hospital 0:07:00 0:06:00 0:10:00 0:08:00 0:07:00 0:06:00
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20445 St. Elizabeth Community Hospital 0:10:00 0:11:00 0:08:00 0:09:00 0:10:00 0:11:00
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20470 Sutter Auburn Faith Hospital 0:22:35 0:22:38 0:22:08 0:22:43 0:24:16 0:23:28
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20481 Sutter Roseville Medical Center 0:30:58 0:28:50 0:28:11 0:28:59 0:30:28 0:29:01
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20486 Tahoe Forest Hospital 0:05:53 0:05:21 0:05:35 0:05:00 0:05:57 0:05:00
Solano 20216 Kaiser Permanente, Vacaville 0:29:58 0:34:22 0:30:01 0:28:01 0:36:57 0:38:25
Solano 20193 Kaiser Permanente, Vallejo 0:21:29 0:22:50 0:21:46 0:21:26 0:20:48 0:17:02
Solano 20309 NorthBay Medical Center 0:25:22 0:25:22 0:24:02 0:26:10 0:26:13 0:44:59
Solano 20310 NorthBay VacaValley Hospital 0:21:47 0:20:45 0:24:03 0:22:10 0:18:56 0:16:29
Solano 20482 Sutter Solano Medical Center 0:23:06 0:25:02 0:22:53 0:23:50 0:25:14 0:30:56
Stanislaus County 20099 Doctors Hospital of Manteca 0:32:56 0:28:50 0:32:27 0:41:50 0:40:49 0:31:53
Stanislaus County 20119 Emanuel Medical Center 0:40:02 0:53:11 0:58:36 0:43:40 0:39:30 0:33:14
Stanislaus County 20213 Kaiser Permanente, Modesto 0:33:32 0:32:24 0:32:03 0:31:44 0:30:54 0:30:35
Stanislaus County 20275 Memorial Medical Center, Modesto 0:39:55 0:44:00 0:48:59 0:47:29 0:39:26 0:36:27
Stanislaus County 20319 Oak Valley Hospital 0:22:40 0:26:55 0:14:58 0:18:48 0:19:27 0:18:32
Tuolumne 20438 Adventist  Health Sonora, Greenley 0:14:26 0:13:00 0:10:10 0:13:02 0:10:38 0:10:00
Ventura 20434 Adventist  Health Simi Valley 0:21:04 0:19:17 0:18:55 0:19:25 0:18:58 0:16:49
Ventura 20084 Community Memorial Hospital, San Buenaventura 0:33:31 0:27:39 0:27:55 0:29:27 0:27:06 0:26:38
Ventura 20261 Los Robles Hospital & Medical Center 0:37:20 0:34:17 0:30:21 0:31:06 0:32:30 0:25:22
Ventura 20323 Ojai Valley Community Hospital 0:14:01 0:12:54 0:16:00 0:13:06 0:13:03 0:13:43
Ventura 20452 Saint John's Pleasant Valley Hospital 0:18:10 0:19:43 0:18:39 0:19:13 0:20:05 0:15:07
Ventura 20453 Saint John's Regional Medical Center 0:28:27 0:27:15 0:26:59 0:26:13 0:29:38 0:25:40
Ventura 20516 Ventura County Medical Center 0:22:13 0:18:19 0:24:58 0:23:06 0:21:55 0:21:03
Ventura 20517 Ventura County Medical Center - Santa Paula Hospital 0:15:35 0:13:37 0:16:48 0:15:54 0:16:29 0:17:11
Yolo 20473 Sutter Davis Hospital 0:36:24 0:33:19 0:30:39 0:32:25 0:33:57 0:34:53
Yolo 20533 Woodland Memorial Hospital 0:37:04 0:34:49 0:31:14 0:29:08 0:35:20 0:36:28



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 23 

CEMSIS Sourced (April 2024 – September 2024): Licensed Emergency 
Department Monthly Cumulative Hours of Delay for Offloads Greater Than 30 
Minutes (1 of 5)

  

Hospital LEMSA
CEMSIS 
Facility ID CEMSIS Facility Name

April 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

May 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

June 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

July 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

August 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

September 
2024 Hours of 

Delay

6-Month Total 
Hours of 
Delay

Alameda 20004 Alameda County Medical Center, Highland 311:12:58 166:41:05 147:13:11 143:47:28 108:11:09 147:36:53 1024:42:44
Alameda 20005 Alameda Hospital 15:41:21 7:17:02 5:16:18 4:53:03 6:48:28 3:23:53 43:20:05
Alameda 20008 Alta Bates Summit Medical Center, Alta Bates Campus 101:50:34 31:13:43 31:55:45 28:05:39 19:41:41 24:25:25 237:12:47
Alameda 20059 Children's Hospital & Research Center Oakland 17:08:54 4:45:49 3:20:12 0:39:13 3:30:53 2:24:00 31:49:01
Alameda 20112 Eden Medical Center 157:50:43 101:00:19 96:48:48 67:18:21 90:45:31 39:10:36 552:54:18
Alameda 20185 Kaiser Permanente, Fremont 61:49:31 62:34:23 28:53:35 25:19:59 26:48:31 22:34:13 228:00:12
Alameda 20190 Kaiser Permanente, Oakland Medical Center 294:47:06 90:06:44 103:35:50 73:45:57 83:15:18 69:58:43 715:29:38
Alameda 62356 Kaiser Permanente, San Leandro Medical Center 192:32:29 113:29:47 93:04:30 89:17:13 60:10:42 56:20:47 604:55:28
Alameda 20463 Saint Rose Hospital 95:46:41 59:18:39 27:56:05 47:01:52 21:22:01 10:54:27 262:19:45
Alameda 20393 San Leandro Hospital 122:34:57 51:29:53 45:22:42 39:51:40 34:33:03 29:11:47 323:04:02
Alameda 20515 Stanford Health Care - ValleyCare 181:51:13 61:55:37 56:37:52 57:19:04 50:07:58 27:29:23 435:21:07
Alameda 20525 Washington Hospital, Fremont 174:37:10 111:53:41 75:10:57 105:24:59 78:07:19 90:43:17 635:57:23
Central California 20001 Adventist  Health Hanford 137:09:27 52:13:33 46:50:28 64:13:22 46:31:18 40:49:32 387:47:40
Central California 20427 Adventist  Health Reedley 5:29:51 1:51:29 2:01:35 1:58:13 3:06:18 1:03:02 15:30:28
Central California 20410 Adventist  Health Selma 8:52:10 1:19:41 3:20:45 2:07:39 1:45:15 1:09:54 18:35:24
Central California 20070 Clovis Community Medical Center 381:29:16 206:36:09 141:05:14 115:28:45 125:05:45 91:36:57 1061:22:06
Central California 20071 Coalinga Regional Medical Center 0:00:00 0:01:06 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:09:55 0:08:23 0:19:24
Central California 20085 Community Regional Medical Center, Fresno 1272:00:47 424:20:40 370:25:42 429:21:06 406:31:34 398:47:33 3301:27:22
Central California 20186 Kaiser Permanente, Fresno 198:52:37 108:15:04 105:09:32 104:08:50 74:16:42 121:17:17 712:00:02
Central California 20219 Kaweah Delta Medical Center 571:50:11 193:40:01 303:03:00 319:22:55 280:24:04 264:06:34 1932:26:45
Central California 20443 Saint Agnes Medical Center 567:47:41 178:59:00 199:53:53 186:12:50 213:45:21 167:06:09 1513:44:54
Central California 20429 Sierra View Medical Center 128:39:23 49:55:08 43:08:37 39:03:05 37:43:25 37:06:16 335:35:54
Central California 20500 Tulare Regional Medical Center 21:38:20 17:45:39 18:42:07 21:49:26 17:13:33 18:55:53 116:04:58
Central California 20061 Valley Children's Hospital 15:24:00 2:22:29 6:01:43 2:15:54 3:43:37 3:28:47 33:16:30
Coastal Valleys 20132 Adventist  Health Howard Memorial 0:56:50 0:17:01 0:08:36 0:07:06 0:00:00 0:00:00 1:29:33
Coastal Valleys 20277 Adventist  Health Mendocino Coast 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00
Coastal Valleys 20506 Adventist  Health Ukiah Valley 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:32:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:32:00
Coastal Valleys 20157 Healdsburg District Hospital 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00
Coastal Valleys 20203 Kaiser Permanente, Santa Rosa 27:53:03 7:54:07 12:48:16 14:57:47 6:32:56 4:53:03 74:59:12
Coastal Valleys 20343 Petaluma Valley Hospital 5:35:11 0:09:56 3:05:24 4:01:22 2:10:19 0:46:19 15:48:31
Coastal Valleys 20402 Santa Rosa Memorial Hospital, Montgomery 38:26:42 8:05:52 11:21:08 17:09:40 15:25:26 7:21:07 97:49:55
Coastal Valleys 20436 Sonoma Valley Hospital 0:00:00 0:24:19 1:54:59 0:28:17 0:03:00 0:57:28 3:48:03
Coastal Valleys 20478 Sutter Santa Rosa Regional Hospital 32:22:58 24:14:17 5:35:47 8:26:32 14:08:08 25:17:40 110:05:22
Contra Costa 20087 Contra Costa Regional Medical Center 78:34:06 24:36:42 44:25:19 45:34:33 48:37:33 39:46:55 281:35:08
Contra Costa 20179 John Muir Medical Center, Concord 68:23:29 43:11:21 62:13:13 47:00:22 43:49:36 29:31:34 294:09:35
Contra Costa 20180 John Muir Medical Center, Walnut Creek 331:05:16 225:04:40 175:37:10 219:49:01 144:37:20 133:37:46 1229:51:13
Contra Costa 20214 Kaiser Permanente, Antioch 214:19:10 103:09:53 139:37:16 111:45:34 74:33:58 61:48:43 705:14:34
Contra Costa 20194 Kaiser Permanente, Richmond 392:03:29 207:07:53 187:04:15 196:02:54 181:15:48 154:15:17 1317:49:36
Contra Costa 20208 Kaiser Permanente, Walnut Creek 153:17:49 41:41:16 48:31:24 42:01:51 29:53:56 30:33:24 345:59:40
Contra Costa 20396 San Ramon Regional Medical Center 10:54:32 3:20:34 0:20:31 1:27:40 3:18:45 2:42:26 22:04:28
Contra Costa 20474 Sutter Delta Medical Center 150:23:19 90:49:53 67:58:39 97:17:01 67:53:34 63:48:34 538:11:00
El Dorado 20033 Barton Memorial Hospital 0:00:00 0:20:31 0:04:20 0:14:06 0:47:12 0:12:33 1:38:42
El Dorado 20272 Marshall Medical Center 11:53:49 7:12:02 2:21:45 3:10:39 1:34:23 2:21:12 28:33:50
ICEMA 20019 Arrowhead Regional Medical Center 120:11:45 23:23:20 8:00:28 8:13:06 7:48:27 17:34:49 185:11:55
ICEMA 20032 Barstow Community Hospital 4:59:25 1:38:15 2:24:32 0:26:56 0:37:41 0:57:11 11:04:00
ICEMA 20034 Bear Valley Community Healthcare District 4:13:19 0:08:11 1:10:58 1:13:36 0:14:10 0:17:25 7:17:39
ICEMA 20066 Chino Valley Medical Center 51:57:05 17:45:44 24:46:48 29:00:00 7:06:47 10:40:58 141:17:22
ICEMA 20077 Colorado River Medical Center 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00
ICEMA 20083 Community Hospital of San Bernardino 158:58:49 58:06:32 53:57:57 46:13:38 57:43:52 44:17:38 419:18:26
ICEMA 20098 Desert Valley Hospital 381:22:53 115:32:03 122:19:20 109:30:11 77:33:02 89:31:25 895:48:54
ICEMA 20165 Hi-Desert Medical Center 7:19:22 1:42:48 1:20:14 2:04:47 2:24:25 3:02:10 17:53:46
ICEMA 20184 Kaiser Permanente, Fontana 194:47:05 98:34:04 81:14:48 89:20:51 82:41:07 55:40:56 602:18:51
ICEMA 20555 Kaiser Permanente, Ontario 149:22:57 67:51:13 76:44:47 68:04:57 104:55:59 38:13:37 505:13:30
ICEMA 64989 Loma Linda University Children's Hospital 20:34:08 2:58:29 2:00:45 2:47:02 1:47:51 1:13:44 31:21:59
ICEMA 20252 Loma Linda University Medical Center 379:39:27 143:44:46 88:02:44 93:51:11 133:28:59 87:14:42 926:01:49
ICEMA 20266 Mammoth Hospital 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:28:51 0:03:30 0:32:21
ICEMA 20300 Montclair Hospital Medical Center 19:39:53 4:52:43 4:48:53 4:29:22 3:56:12 3:36:54 41:23:57
ICEMA 20303 Mountains Community Hospital 0:00:00 0:11:43 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:02:31 0:14:14
ICEMA 20314 Northern Inyo Hospital 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 1:07:37 1:07:37
ICEMA 20366 Redlands Community Hospital 135:07:47 42:38:50 27:19:52 17:54:21 21:15:00 20:02:19 264:18:09
ICEMA 20382 San Antonio Regional Hospital 250:41:13 161:18:35 102:15:52 62:31:14 42:03:43 80:10:59 699:01:36
ICEMA 20440 Southern Inyo Hospital 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00
ICEMA 20444 St. Bernardine Medical Center 92:56:09 32:11:51 41:22:43 27:14:50 37:41:59 40:30:27 271:57:59
ICEMA 20461 St. Mary Medical Center 668:41:07 265:27:15 208:15:56 310:34:25 314:25:06 362:30:46 2129:54:35
ICEMA 20520 Victor Valley Global Medical Center 307:39:23 117:28:08 142:12:21 103:43:06 103:24:03 80:51:05 855:18:06
Imperial 20117 El Centro Regional Medical Center 28:14:17 13:41:57 27:40:40 36:07:16 19:53:37 18:00:35 143:38:22
Imperial 20344 Pioneers Memorial Hospital 9:11:48 12:12:31 6:30:39 6:59:01 4:25:49 3:03:36 42:23:24
Kern 20389 Adventist  Health Bakersfield 666:46:50 246:58:20 255:05:52 329:40:09 304:58:59 227:09:14 2030:39:24
Kern 20488 Adventist  Health Tehachapi Valley 37:54:37 13:45:08 32:20:01 16:54:25 27:19:49 18:33:19 146:47:19



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 24 

CEMSIS Sourced (April 2024 – September 2024): Licensed Emergency 
Department Monthly Cumulative Hours of Delay for Offloads Greater Than 30 
Minutes (2 of 5) 

  

Hospital LEMSA
CEMSIS 
Facility ID CEMSIS Facility Name

April 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

May 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

June 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

July 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

August 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

September 
2024 Hours of 

Delay

6-Month Total 
Hours of 
Delay

Kern 20027 Bakersfield Heart Hospital 34:45:22 9:43:14 14:50:47 11:58:10 10:57:51 9:21:51 91:37:15
Kern 20028 Bakersfield Memorial Hospital 441:12:31 167:26:38 277:02:34 324:56:43 278:32:55 249:16:06 1738:27:27
Kern 20096 Delano Regional Medical Center 3:16:29 16:01:36 32:14:23 18:51:37 20:06:57 7:35:11 98:06:13
Kern 20224 Kern Medical 287:33:54 171:55:46 151:41:10 181:06:36 100:58:22 96:01:37 989:17:25
Kern 20225 Kern Valley Healthcare District 13:18:21 0:24:04 3:46:12 4:20:57 2:45:29 3:09:01 27:44:04
Kern 20281 Mercy Hospital 132:17:27 70:48:25 56:59:20 109:54:51 48:27:00 28:23:53 446:50:56
Kern 20287 Mercy Hospital SW - Bakersfield 122:17:23 65:19:02 87:13:39 75:56:14 40:47:41 26:10:26 417:44:25
Kern 20372 Ridgecrest Regional Hospital 27:25:23 10:14:34 10:35:54 6:44:16 8:03:00 35:43:10 98:46:17
Los Angeles 20144 Adventist  Health Glendale 147:26:59 52:12:26 47:46:55 48:07:50 47:10:34 43:44:49 386:29:33
Los Angeles 20531 Adventist  Health White Memorial 88:10:00 24:39:34 77:37:07 39:41:41 80:03:46 47:09:54 357:22:02
Los Angeles 20007 Alhambra Hospital 4:31:08 1:41:07 3:25:03 2:17:38 0:55:20 2:06:45 14:57:01
Los Angeles 20018 Antelope Valley Hospital 704:50:32 326:48:32 319:18:10 294:15:52 134:47:42 54:15:47 1834:16:35
Los Angeles 20038 Beverly Hospital 224:07:43 140:51:31 173:06:52 93:51:36 147:23:07 84:08:21 863:29:10
Los Angeles 20045 California Hospital Medical Center 110:32:20 57:05:21 66:15:19 53:11:39 62:50:56 78:51:03 428:46:38
Los Angeles 20053 Catalina Island Medical Center 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00
Los Angeles 20054 Cedars-Sinai Medical Center 245:41:08 97:54:37 137:13:02 165:16:16 97:57:27 136:03:17 880:05:47
Los Angeles 20055 Centinela Hospital Medical Center 107:56:54 31:37:32 32:10:15 40:48:59 52:05:50 170:21:01 435:00:31
Los Angeles 20062 Children's Hospital Los Angeles 0:00:00 0:13:40 0:35:45 0:54:56 0:00:00 0:05:18 1:49:39
Los Angeles 20068 Citrus Valley Medical Center, Queen of the Valley Campus 141:11:02 51:26:48 29:41:29 50:40:43 78:53:31 90:08:33 442:02:06
Los Angeles 20073 Coast Plaza Hospital 94:18:22 40:10:23 42:04:35 58:26:43 39:20:02 41:10:22 315:30:27
Los Angeles 20328 College Medical Center 51:20:44 35:20:02 42:53:12 21:05:25 24:08:32 24:28:24 199:16:19
Los Angeles 20081 Community Hospital of Huntington Park 229:38:26 99:21:40 110:46:28 93:29:14 92:55:09 128:34:17 754:45:14
Los Angeles 20108 East Los Angeles Doctors Hospital 59:17:23 37:11:00 28:20:47 24:28:54 48:28:15 17:48:31 215:34:50
Los Angeles 20067 Emanate Health- InterCommunity Hospital 113:53:17 30:40:00 31:49:17 25:00:45 25:39:47 32:45:12 259:48:18
Los Angeles 20120 Encino Hospital Medical Center 4:22:51 1:50:46 0:24:36 4:41:34 0:54:24 2:42:24 14:56:35
Los Angeles 20129 Foothill Presbyterian Hospital 89:02:23 43:10:14 50:10:02 46:18:45 42:24:29 71:05:31 342:11:24
Los Angeles 20140 Garfield Medical Center 11:13:07 2:22:33 1:45:11 5:43:19 10:43:30 3:47:26 35:35:06
Los Angeles 20145 Glendale Memorial Hospital and Health Center 42:07:25 18:07:17 10:26:26 9:04:49 10:16:23 22:36:03 112:38:23
Los Angeles 20149 Good Samaritan Hospital, Los Angeles 102:45:12 34:21:01 64:30:22 46:52:29 52:55:40 50:55:51 352:20:35
Los Angeles 20152 Greater El Monte Community Hospital 53:14:11 28:19:37 32:32:33 21:12:55 41:14:46 36:35:52 213:09:54
Los Angeles 20240 Harbor UCLA Medical Center 19:37:40 43:40:22 150:13:44 170:41:32 154:00:07 133:17:12 671:30:37
Los Angeles 20163 Henry Mayo Newhall Memorial Hospital 19:20:59 4:46:04 17:38:42 77:25:12 44:29:52 4:36:16 168:17:05
Los Angeles 20171 Hollywood Presbyterian Medical Center 90:52:20 34:37:37 57:59:37 44:08:40 32:45:05 63:26:18 323:49:37
Los Angeles 20173 Huntington Memorial Hospital 140:52:28 28:10:33 34:28:51 42:32:28 47:00:53 52:10:57 345:16:10
Los Angeles 20183 Kaiser Permanente, Baldwin Park 85:34:20 79:30:59 84:36:14 90:11:32 82:48:00 56:19:28 479:00:33
Los Angeles 20215 Kaiser Permanente, Downey 180:12:00 118:42:54 106:59:22 125:43:00 124:30:21 129:06:22 785:13:59
Los Angeles 20207 Kaiser Permanente, Los Angeles 49:02:34 14:41:49 14:46:11 14:09:09 5:51:26 13:41:49 112:12:58
Los Angeles 20191 Kaiser Permanente, Panorama City 12:48:51 5:02:33 8:20:40 4:57:52 8:34:59 11:04:58 50:49:53
Los Angeles 20204 Kaiser Permanente, South Bay 41:39:48 17:20:21 11:57:00 22:14:22 14:23:49 15:02:06 122:37:26
Los Angeles 20209 Kaiser Permanente, West Los Angeles 156:19:28 74:42:21 50:36:11 66:57:07 46:25:15 51:32:49 446:33:11
Los Angeles 20210 Kaiser Permanente, Woodland Hills 20:28:43 8:20:43 13:23:44 9:28:20 10:09:08 8:27:22 70:18:00
Los Angeles 20242 LAC USC Medical Center 179:25:45 58:26:37 55:11:27 57:18:43 81:52:52 59:27:41 491:43:05
Los Angeles 20244 Lakewood Regional Medical Center 169:54:42 104:24:29 129:42:02 168:46:36 150:09:59 125:52:13 848:50:01
Los Angeles 20257 Los Angeles Community Hospital 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:03:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:03:00
Los Angeles 20270 Marina Del Rey Hospital 80:54:25 34:51:40 38:19:59 29:40:18 27:44:42 26:04:29 237:35:33
Los Angeles 60988 Mart in Luther King, Jr. Community Hospital 37:42:18 15:06:06 16:47:55 7:50:39 21:41:08 16:18:03 115:26:09
Los Angeles 20276 Memorial Hospital Of Gardena 35:55:58 5:33:50 13:11:14 5:45:31 20:34:37 16:14:19 97:15:29
Los Angeles 20255 MemorialCare Long Beach Medical Center 221:48:38 157:47:37 211:41:06 229:26:20 203:15:23 192:25:53 1216:24:57
Los Angeles 20289 Methodist  Hospital of Southern California 190:52:51 63:06:52 64:01:16 67:31:00 81:40:11 102:52:41 570:04:51
Los Angeles 20294 Mission Community Hospital 5:18:35 7:41:58 8:30:25 3:48:57 3:00:04 3:41:49 32:01:48
Los Angeles 20301 Monterey Park Hospital 8:21:35 2:14:04 1:19:55 0:09:53 3:44:28 2:47:56 18:37:51
Los Angeles 20315 Northridge Hospital Medical Center 124:50:56 47:41:57 34:46:28 36:41:13 34:56:22 48:47:03 327:43:59
Los Angeles 20316 Norwalk Community Hospital 26:55:36 9:32:51 19:50:35 13:51:44 10:26:49 9:29:19 90:06:54
Los Angeles 20258 Olive View UCLA Medical Center 26:34:32 5:41:46 6:33:57 13:23:59 13:49:24 5:16:56 71:20:34
Los Angeles 20331 Pacifica Hospital of the Valley 1:49:52 0:47:11 0:34:05 1:38:53 0:15:52 0:32:04 5:37:57
Los Angeles 20333 Palmdale Regional Medical Center 205:16:34 63:01:06 133:35:09 96:11:26 71:52:50 11:49:48 581:46:53
Los Angeles 20106 PIH Health Hospital, Downey 189:02:38 66:46:40 137:58:26 102:11:43 94:04:01 54:36:36 644:40:04
Los Angeles 20350 PIH Health Hospital, Whitt ier 228:16:28 100:53:48 149:47:33 120:48:44 134:34:02 117:07:16 851:27:51
Los Angeles 20348 Pomona Valley Hospital Medical Center 364:36:51 185:55:14 154:26:25 206:32:26 260:24:01 149:07:27 1321:02:24
Los Angeles 20354 Providence Holy Cross Medical Center 16:18:30 8:37:17 8:13:42 12:23:51 11:01:15 11:59:06 68:33:41
Los Angeles 20356 Providence Litt le Company of Mary Medical Center, San Pedro 36:28:46 18:20:26 10:22:05 9:35:45 10:21:29 16:30:49 101:39:20
Los Angeles 20357 Providence Litt le Company of Mary Medical Center, Torrance 82:06:41 39:47:33 81:16:40 106:11:49 73:51:27 58:21:59 441:36:09
Los Angeles 20451 Providence Saint John's Health Center 69:55:30 47:10:34 51:25:27 54:06:36 45:22:04 48:31:53 316:32:04
Los Angeles 20360 Providence Saint Joseph Medical Center 175:49:26 51:48:50 61:04:30 79:19:21 60:45:16 55:59:57 484:47:20
Los Angeles 20361 Providence Tarzana Medical Center 35:39:56 16:49:40 21:17:16 8:52:44 9:32:06 9:56:22 102:08:04
Los Angeles 20377 Ronald Reagan UCLA Medical Center 63:28:49 36:11:33 43:30:29 29:35:33 38:12:14 29:12:45 240:11:23
Los Angeles 20446 Saint Francis Medical Center 109:15:00 129:40:26 77:06:34 90:28:57 119:32:50 140:50:56 666:54:43
Los Angeles 20385 San Dimas Community Hospital 27:35:47 19:03:02 10:41:45 17:20:43 38:01:38 13:13:25 125:56:20
Los Angeles 20387 San Gabriel Valley Medical Center 38:27:00 8:32:02 4:16:43 9:46:53 10:57:58 8:28:10 80:28:46
Los Angeles 20401 Santa Monica - UCLA Medical Center and Orthopaedic Hospita 26:18:05 12:56:51 12:30:12 13:49:21 20:28:58 11:22:40 97:26:07



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 25 

CEMSIS Sourced (April 2024 – September 2024): Licensed Emergency 
Department Monthly Cumulative Hours of Delay for Offloads Greater Than 30 
Minutes (3 of 5) 

 

Hospital LEMSA
CEMSIS 
Facility ID CEMSIS Facility Name

April 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

May 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

June 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

July 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

August 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

September 
2024 Hours of 

Delay

6-Month Total 
Hours of 
Delay

Los Angeles 20424 Sherman Oaks Hospital 34:08:05 5:12:04 6:51:15 7:24:42 12:19:41 9:39:10 75:34:57
Los Angeles 20042 Southern California Hospital at Culver City 92:43:10 27:34:00 35:09:14 52:07:36 51:42:30 34:45:50 294:02:20
Los Angeles 20460 St. Mary Medical Center, Long Beach 164:48:41 85:19:15 82:56:00 82:11:31 113:35:30 79:03:43 607:54:40
Los Angeles 20496 Torrance Memorial Medical Center 58:40:48 54:26:29 106:18:48 99:47:01 59:19:00 47:25:32 425:57:38
Los Angeles 20518 USC Verdugo Hills Hospital 28:14:25 24:46:36 18:36:59 15:16:15 23:47:38 30:16:12 140:58:05
Los Angeles 20514 Valley Presbyterian Hospital 16:32:18 9:20:53 5:51:32 5:56:39 11:28:31 12:22:37 61:32:30
Los Angeles 20528 West Hills Hospital and Medical Center 123:26:32 42:09:58 38:41:26 27:08:09 23:48:25 37:13:40 292:28:10
Los Angeles 20532 Whitt ier Hospital Medical Center 17:22:58 6:06:01 5:53:50 6:38:02 11:37:58 12:01:21 59:40:10
Marin 20201 Kaiser Permanente, San Rafael 0:00:00 1:34:12 0:01:36 0:52:55 0:00:00 0:01:32 2:30:15
Marin 20269 Marin Health Medical Center 2:15:48 2:05:02 1:01:59 0:19:42 0:07:10 0:00:00 5:49:41
Marin 20317 Novato Community Hospital 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00
Merced 20274 Memorial Hospital Los Banos 52:44:33 14:29:58 15:03:05 16:54:27 12:58:06 7:50:52 120:01:01
Merced 20283 Mercy Medical Center, Merced 379:09:46 161:03:18 162:18:27 221:51:25 133:37:24 121:38:21 1179:38:41
Monterey 20080 Community Hospital of the Monterey Peninsula 5:28:59 1:40:37 1:02:21 0:35:18 1:31:52 1:16:11 11:35:18
Monterey 20143 George L. Mee Memorial Hospital 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00
Monterey 20306 Natividad Medical Center 22:33:31 8:14:16 10:10:55 5:32:51 11:34:52 8:04:42 66:11:07
Monterey 20381 Salinas Valley Memorial Hospital 0:00:00 0:00:00 4:57:46 8:56:42 8:55:18 8:17:21 31:07:07
Mountain Counties 20176 John C Fremont Healthcare District 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:32 0:00:00 0:00:32
Mountain Counties 20271 Mark Twain Medical Center 0:37:00 0:00:00 0:25:00 0:05:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 1:07:00
Mountain Counties 20469 Sutter Amador Hospital 3:37:33 0:37:00 0:44:04 1:12:00 0:00:00 1:29:00 7:39:37
Napa 20448 Adventist  Health St. Helena 0:00:00 0:18:29 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:18:29
Napa 20362 Queen Of The Valley Medical Center 6:05:45 4:54:06 2:36:43 1:26:01 2:50:34 3:40:17 21:33:26
NorCal 20030 Banner Lassen Medical Center 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:43:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:43:00
NorCal 20111 Eastern Plumas Hospital, Portola Campus 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00
NorCal 20298 Modoc Medical Center 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00
NorCal 20346 Plumas District Hospital 0:00:00 1:24:13 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 1:24:13
NorCal 20412 Seneca District Hospital 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00
NorCal 20468 Surprise Valley Community Hospital 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00
NorCal 20499 Trinity Hospital 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 2:39:00 2:39:00
North Coast 20449 Adventist  Health Clearlake 4:40:05 2:49:02 0:55:19 0:46:11 0:39:07 0:15:59 10:05:43
North Coast 20174 Jerold Phelps Community Hospital 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:54 0:00:00 0:00:54
North Coast 20264 Mad River Community Hospital 0:00:00 0:41:00 0:42:00 0:48:00 0:02:00 0:00:00 2:13:00
North Coast 20367 Redwood Memorial Hospital 0:50:51 0:25:51 3:37:10 0:00:00 0:14:10 0:34:24 5:42:26
North Coast 20454 Saint Joseph Hospital, Eureka 0:37:12 2:04:42 3:16:06 0:13:18 2:50:21 0:00:00 9:01:39
North Coast 20472 Sutter Coast Hospital 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00
North Coast 20476 Sutter Lakeside Hospital 0:36:58 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:36:58
Orange 20002 AHMC Anaheim Regional Medical Center 32:51:42 18:06:42 11:15:17 16:36:45 15:56:03 28:52:31 123:39:00
Orange 20530 Anaheim Global Medical Center 18:21:00 12:26:06 7:25:40 7:37:06 6:52:42 8:57:46 61:40:20
Orange 20063 Children's Hospital of Orange County 3:37:14 1:28:54 0:12:19 0:33:03 1:27:14 0:17:20 7:36:04
Orange 20308 Foothill Regional Medical Center 16:21:57 5:37:13 1:45:17 5:53:45 2:01:59 6:12:27 37:52:38
Orange 20130 Fountain Valley Regional Hospital and Medical Center, Euclid 62:33:17 27:26:33 12:56:13 17:29:56 8:40:04 22:23:09 151:29:12
Orange 20139 Garden Grove Hospital and Medical Center 37:07:43 21:38:50 11:39:18 51:12:48 23:19:28 35:03:41 180:01:48
Orange 20166 Hoag Hospital I rvine 13:48:21 2:16:00 1:04:34 1:09:10 1:05:26 0:40:39 20:04:10
Orange 20167 Hoag Hospital Newport Beach 5:20:19 0:46:26 0:52:50 1:32:14 1:02:55 0:23:40 9:58:24
Orange 20172 Huntington Beach Hospital 32:46:19 23:26:56 17:26:06 12:28:56 18:58:21 18:10:14 123:16:52
Orange 20560 Kaiser Permanente, Anaheim 46:32:07 17:56:01 21:00:40 20:31:50 13:41:10 19:11:05 138:52:53
Orange 20188 Kaiser Permanente, Irvine 27:14:19 6:46:05 12:48:13 11:50:39 9:01:42 6:45:36 74:26:34
Orange 20239 La Palma Intercommunity Hospital 38:51:11 9:15:56 24:16:03 32:00:36 15:29:43 14:37:10 134:30:39
Orange 20256 Los Alamitos Medical Center 131:29:02 86:00:27 78:30:37 69:29:01 72:49:34 50:59:25 489:18:06
Orange 20379 MemorialCare Saddleback Medical Center 20:19:19 1:28:56 5:21:31 5:21:41 4:59:34 4:52:01 42:23:02
Orange 20296 Mission Hospital 54:22:16 11:04:52 12:54:44 14:53:40 18:13:56 10:44:40 122:14:08
Orange 20295 Mission Hospital Laguna Beach 24:32:06 5:43:54 10:43:49 3:50:14 8:20:52 5:44:19 58:55:14
Orange 20325 Orange Coast Memorial Medical Center 26:47:31 5:09:51 6:36:10 9:56:10 5:04:56 2:17:33 55:52:11
Orange 20529 Orange County Global Medical Center 34:51:20 17:43:54 12:37:23 11:18:55 8:55:18 19:09:38 104:36:28
Orange 20345 Placentia-Linda Hospital 17:06:05 6:54:28 2:12:58 5:27:52 5:06:18 7:23:45 44:11:26
Orange 20074 South Coast Global Medical Center 23:44:14 7:56:04 6:42:18 8:33:39 10:02:22 6:32:24 63:31:01
Orange 20455 St. Joseph Hospital, Orange 75:29:40 34:30:28 18:22:31 26:23:15 21:39:00 20:01:56 196:26:50
Orange 20458 St. Jude Medical Center 126:17:42 35:17:39 74:22:17 57:22:50 53:10:57 41:14:23 387:45:48
Orange 20509 University of California, Irvine Medical Center 108:04:19 52:35:02 39:57:38 53:03:41 39:23:41 42:59:24 336:03:45
Orange 20527 West Anaheim Medical Center 96:38:10 45:29:06 50:40:52 83:32:13 68:15:37 46:44:25 391:20:23
Riverside 20090 Corona Regional Medical Center 337:52:00 75:13:32 212:02:56 282:55:45 184:41:44 171:54:53 1264:40:50
Riverside 20097 Desert Regional Medical Center 47:27:30 21:33:54 9:48:43 24:11:07 15:31:10 7:18:57 125:51:21
Riverside 20114 Eisenhower Medical Center 24:18:48 5:56:02 4:17:41 6:58:17 5:06:41 4:01:08 50:38:37
Riverside 20162 Hemet Valley Medical Center 395:47:01 245:55:55 217:02:48 316:59:41 283:46:27 193:23:57 1652:55:49
Riverside 20442 Inland Valley Medical Center 237:44:06 164:48:00 162:43:48 254:00:50 211:37:20 147:09:43 1178:03:47
Riverside 20177 JFK - John F Kennedy Memorial Hospital 23:06:51 1:17:46 2:03:30 4:48:30 4:29:13 2:51:22 38:37:12
Riverside 20211 Kaiser Permanente, Moreno Valley 141:15:28 51:13:25 47:58:14 46:08:30 31:01:52 21:07:09 338:44:38
Riverside 20195 Kaiser Permanente, Riverside 110:30:32 56:47:40 62:06:55 78:12:16 53:11:20 64:22:15 425:10:58
Riverside 20535 Loma Linda University Medical Center, Murrieta 230:46:43 109:13:13 106:34:25 85:52:46 31:05:09 54:34:43 618:06:59
Riverside 20278 Menifee Valley Medical Center 21:20:59 18:39:53 21:39:41 38:55:47 21:27:21 22:35:33 144:39:14



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 26 

CEMSIS Sourced (April 2024 – September 2024): Licensed Emergency 
Department Monthly Cumulative Hours of Delay for Offloads Greater Than 30 
Minutes (4 of 5) 

  

Hospital LEMSA
CEMSIS 
Facility ID CEMSIS Facility Name

April 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

May 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

June 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

July 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

August 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

September 
2024 Hours of 

Delay

6-Month Total 
Hours of 
Delay

Riverside 20334 Palo Verde Hospital 0:34:19 0:04:56 0:09:32 0:30:44 1:32:03 0:00:00 2:51:34
Riverside 20339 Parkview Community Hospital Medical Center 68:14:03 15:33:11 19:19:37 18:07:35 13:14:44 13:19:13 147:48:23
Riverside 20441 Rancho Springs Medical Center 56:05:13 31:15:42 55:40:43 92:23:36 52:04:54 76:54:01 364:24:09
Riverside 20374 Riverside Community Hospital 338:32:11 200:03:04 254:29:35 184:29:00 208:35:36 209:19:27 1395:28:53
Riverside 20375 Riverside University Health System Medical Center 67:12:45 28:08:23 20:46:00 33:26:09 37:28:51 23:04:45 210:06:53
Riverside 20388 San Gorgonio Memorial Hospital 258:46:02 118:45:59 125:15:44 43:01:35 21:32:54 12:01:21 579:23:35
Riverside 20559 Temecula Valley Hospital 160:26:47 89:47:09 91:22:43 146:28:24 63:13:29 118:45:16 670:03:48
Sacramento 20197 Kaiser Permanente, Sacramento Medical Center 456:34:22 150:52:06 147:28:41 164:04:44 122:15:48 123:09:34 1164:25:15
Sacramento 20205 Kaiser Permanente, South Sacramento Medical Center 317:16:23 261:28:43 188:21:30 232:05:00 103:13:42 94:29:44 1196:55:02
Sacramento 20280 Mercy General Hospital 287:55:52 100:26:01 105:08:31 101:50:16 76:19:03 65:44:52 737:24:35
Sacramento 20282 Mercy Hospital of Folsom 84:41:36 38:19:59 31:36:33 54:43:41 21:48:35 12:59:51 244:10:15
Sacramento 20286 Mercy San Juan Medical Center 421:19:41 217:30:25 246:54:33 290:21:37 182:28:41 33:14:13 1391:49:10
Sacramento 20288 Methodist  Hospital of Sacramento 96:48:04 20:29:24 22:44:55 35:24:02 25:36:42 12:11:38 213:14:45
Sacramento 20475 Sutter Medical Center - Sacramento 599:13:43 208:25:49 216:35:05 174:29:56 127:23:21 118:26:59 1444:34:53
Sacramento 20508 UC Davis Medical Center 460:40:52 201:27:30 314:04:09 288:55:28 89:55:29 181:35:40 1536:39:08
San Benito 20156 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital 0:32:11 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:01:39 0:05:41 0:39:31
San Diego 20198 Kaiser Permanente, San Diego 132:08:50 26:58:49 42:50:35 85:29:40 38:24:57 90:00:05 415:52:56
San Diego 62393 Kaiser Permanente, San Diego Medical Center 33:07:29 5:49:56 8:38:15 28:15:54 13:58:32 26:18:38 116:08:44
San Diego 62989 Kaiser San Marcos Medical Center 21:54:19 5:09:11 4:10:57 7:18:19 10:47:09 2:41:43 52:01:38
San Diego 20561 Palomar Medical Center 374:47:28 98:29:55 75:37:32 96:59:49 122:52:58 93:32:20 862:20:02
San Diego 20337 Paradise Valley Hospital 31:56:28 19:43:16 25:25:54 16:59:06 32:26:19 31:27:39 157:58:42
San Diego 20347 Pomerado Hospital 26:59:47 8:56:49 27:43:58 9:59:18 14:37:06 15:05:31 103:22:29
San Diego 20364 Rady Children's Hospital 21:29:11 3:31:17 3:15:12 4:09:42 8:41:17 9:55:11 51:01:50
San Diego 20406 Scripps Memorial Hospital, Encinitas 75:51:44 15:15:48 53:48:18 42:45:06 34:05:59 37:21:16 259:08:11
San Diego 20407 Scripps Memorial Hospital, La Jolla 14:09:43 3:47:44 15:31:32 6:37:11 13:28:26 6:05:47 59:40:23
San Diego 20408 Scripps Mercy Hospital 21:20:30 7:40:14 11:01:08 12:15:56 13:57:46 10:58:29 77:14:03
San Diego 20409 Scripps Mercy Hospital, Chula Vista 21:44:54 7:24:06 7:04:43 20:11:04 25:08:22 23:14:44 104:47:53
San Diego 20416 Sharp Chula Vista Medical Center 52:34:24 20:56:21 17:08:12 116:44:13 62:48:41 83:34:20 353:46:11
San Diego 20417 Sharp Coronado Hospital and Healthcare Center 6:19:24 1:42:48 5:50:22 16:35:58 3:56:40 5:27:05 39:52:17
San Diego 20153 Sharp Grossmont Hospital 452:18:36 215:13:55 246:58:52 196:00:05 198:49:13 152:17:06 1461:37:47
San Diego 20419 Sharp Memorial Hospital 165:34:01 67:02:06 73:03:01 73:24:23 72:34:02 56:54:33 508:32:06
San Diego 20497 Tri-City Medical Center 14:21:30 3:24:16 5:17:37 6:11:00 3:25:57 7:56:14 40:36:34
San Diego 62998 UC San Diego Health East Campus Medical Center 83:36:59 40:31:57 51:35:57 38:52:42 44:02:00 36:01:10 294:40:45
San Diego 20510 University of California, San Diego Medical Center 42:22:28 9:57:46 15:39:26 16:54:23 26:06:38 18:22:42 129:23:23
San Francisco 20048 California Pacific Medical Center, Davies Campus Hospital 62:45:31 17:38:12 13:44:46 14:43:45 19:23:12 15:44:38 144:00:04
San Francisco 20065 Chinese Hospital 14:17:21 2:01:58 4:01:27 1:04:22 2:05:19 1:33:50 25:04:17
San Francisco 20050 CPMC Mission Bernal Campus 134:52:44 37:22:45 37:17:42 37:14:56 27:55:27 24:13:37 298:57:11
San Francisco 62636 CPMC-Van Ness 270:58:50 95:14:36 106:25:38 106:53:55 71:09:05 65:05:08 715:47:12
San Francisco 20199 Kaiser Permanente, San Francisco 121:59:04 84:20:20 55:41:12 68:11:30 61:18:54 67:05:50 458:36:50
San Francisco 20447 Saint Francis Memorial Hospital 96:05:53 48:51:52 49:59:35 44:33:09 42:11:49 28:15:27 309:57:45
San Francisco 20462 St. Mary's Medical Center, San Francisco 60:00:08 16:55:40 11:56:51 11:46:15 15:09:54 12:16:13 128:05:01
San Francisco 62338 UCSF Medical Center at Mission Bay 3:22:12 0:21:31 0:55:52 0:05:05 0:20:44 0:32:04 5:37:28
San Francisco 20504 UCSF Medical Center at Parnassus 291:49:02 183:48:50 136:23:22 228:53:47 179:29:30 134:34:01 1154:58:32
San Francisco 20386 Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital and Trauma Center 196:17:42 60:36:31 47:39:02 49:34:17 43:19:22 35:24:20 432:51:14
San Joaquin 20247 Adventist  Health Lodi Memorial 139:00:24 22:06:19 43:01:12 25:24:16 21:46:23 30:19:00 281:37:34
San Joaquin 20094 Dameron Hospital 89:21:30 21:56:26 21:13:30 15:19:41 10:40:00 16:32:34 175:03:41
San Joaquin 20099 Doctors Hospital of Manteca 31:35:56 9:11:44 9:50:17 17:53:29 19:33:27 4:09:54 92:14:47
San Joaquin 20212 Kaiser Permanente, Manteca 29:04:39 10:56:18 12:06:16 15:33:02 8:44:54 13:09:50 89:34:59
San Joaquin 20391 San Joaquin General Hospital 267:39:58 137:19:05 101:19:56 117:35:39 69:53:17 133:35:44 827:23:39
San Joaquin 20457 St. Joseph's Medical Center of Stockton 416:33:54 170:46:30 154:44:07 233:59:03 181:19:32 200:29:02 1357:52:08
San Joaquin 20484 Sutter Tracy Community Hospital 36:20:36 15:29:20 25:31:55 13:43:31 22:40:36 6:20:28 120:06:26
San Luis Obispo 20020 Arroyo Grande Community Hospital 2:56:44 0:08:11 0:10:09 0:55:44 0:08:22 0:00:00 4:19:10
San Luis Obispo 20135 French Hospital Medical Center 12:52:24 4:07:39 3:40:50 3:05:42 2:30:43 2:40:07 28:57:25
San Luis Obispo 20431 Sierra Vista Regional Medical Center 5:54:54 4:01:37 2:11:24 5:39:57 3:37:01 9:19:05 30:43:58
San Luis Obispo 20502 Twin Cit ies Community Hospital 0:58:00 0:36:21 0:00:00 1:20:52 0:29:08 0:09:00 3:33:21
San Mateo 20192 Kaiser Permanente, Redwood City 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:18:42 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:18:42
San Mateo 20206 Kaiser Permanente, South San Francisco 6:58:39 1:22:17 0:47:46 1:10:50 0:17:59 0:11:10 10:48:41
San Mateo 20342 Mills-Peninsula Medical Center 14:13:44 5:40:09 6:10:12 7:57:45 5:33:07 3:06:07 42:41:04
San Mateo 20291 Mills-Peninsula Medical Center, San Mateo Campus 1:49:55 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 1:49:55
San Mateo 20413 Sequoia Hospital 0:30:37 0:02:04 0:01:14 0:44:32 0:03:10 0:31:46 1:53:23
San Mateo 20414 Seton Medical Center 9:58:18 0:32:22 1:45:53 0:46:10 0:41:48 0:55:46 14:40:17
Santa Barbara 20147 Goleta Valley Cottage Hospital 1:16:28 0:00:00 2:53:35 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:01:10 4:11:13
Santa Barbara 20253 Lompoc Valley Medical Center 0:00:00 0:11:19 0:00:00 0:40:48 0:12:45 0:04:30 1:09:22
Santa Barbara 20267 Marian Regional Medical Center 1:41:20 0:05:20 0:16:17 0:22:32 0:16:59 0:23:17 3:05:45
Santa Barbara 20398 Santa Barbara Cottage Hospital 5:18:14 0:10:06 0:09:10 0:30:21 0:44:43 1:01:51 7:54:25
Santa Barbara 20404 Santa Ynez Valley Cottage Hospital 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00
Santa Clara 20115 El Camino Hospital 33:57:33 4:23:02 6:09:41 3:46:32 3:18:28 2:18:50 53:54:06
Santa Clara 20116 El Camino Hospital Los Gatos 13:41:55 5:23:58 2:16:34 3:39:43 3:53:03 3:49:59 32:45:12
Santa Clara 20150 Good Samaritan Hospital, San Jose 67:40:48 27:46:53 24:35:55 24:24:27 10:55:37 17:01:11 172:24:51
Santa Clara 20200 Kaiser Permanente, San Jose 53:33:17 9:38:19 8:38:26 14:46:28 9:48:35 6:20:08 102:45:13



   
 

All data represented in this report is sourced from CEMSIS with a run date of October 10, 2024.  CEMSIS 
records are populated by participating EMS providers documented care in the pre-hospital setting through 
direct transmission into CEMSIS or passed through their local EMS Agency (LEMSA). Not all EMS providers in 
all LEMSAs are CEMSIS participants, therefore this report does not reflect 100% of EMS interactions and 
records meeting APOT criteria. 

 
Page 27 

CEMSIS Sourced (April 2024 – September 2024): Licensed Emergency 
Department Monthly Cumulative Hours of Delay for Offloads Greater Than 30 
Minutes (5 of 5) 

 

Hospital LEMSA
CEMSIS 
Facility ID CEMSIS Facility Name

April 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

May 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

June 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

July 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

August 2024 
Hours of 
Delay

September 
2024 Hours of 

Delay

6-Month Total 
Hours of 
Delay

Santa Clara 20202 Kaiser Permanente, Santa Clara Medical Center and Medical Of 159:33:22 37:03:02 28:53:34 21:07:57 34:24:04 16:57:11 297:59:10
Santa Clara 20321 O'Connor Hospital, San Jose 99:22:43 30:03:11 17:33:53 37:01:12 30:46:57 28:35:26 243:23:22
Santa Clara 20368 Regional Medical Center of San Jose 63:33:18 27:04:11 27:32:09 12:02:09 10:06:36 8:40:33 148:58:56
Santa Clara 20400 Santa Clara Valley Medical Center 329:00:21 188:20:41 107:35:55 175:13:28 157:39:52 240:42:14 1198:32:31
Santa Clara 20459 St. Louise Regional Hospital 9:52:32 1:51:13 0:47:20 2:06:33 1:49:53 1:13:26 17:40:57
Santa Clara 20465 Stanford Health Care 3:51:07 2:56:36 3:02:09 1:59:00 1:42:36 1:03:45 14:35:13
Santa Cruz 20105 Dominican Hospital, Santa Cruz 34:54:22 8:20:57 3:45:52 6:31:29 4:08:06 6:17:10 63:57:56
Santa Cruz 20526 Watsonville Community Hospital 1:07:42 0:23:54 0:24:02 3:38:01 0:59:15 1:36:49 8:09:43
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20371 Adventist  Health Rideout 84:12:53 23:39:44 25:47:06 36:42:33 67:19:52 37:09:15 274:51:23
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20078 Colusa Medical Center 0:00:00 0:05:25 0:00:00 5:33:39 0:00:46 0:05:16 5:45:06
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20122 Enloe Medical Center, Esplanade 1:20:44 0:00:00 0:07:33 0:11:24 0:11:26 0:31:00 2:22:07
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20124 Fairchild Medical Center 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20146 Glenn Medical Center 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:22:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 1:30:29 1:52:29
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20196 Kaiser Permanente, Roseville Medical Center 393:03:17 11:52:10 20:59:50 34:41:13 11:21:39 21:59:28 493:57:37
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20273 Mayers Memorial Hospital District 1:01:10 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 1:01:10
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20285 Mercy Medical Center, Mt. Shasta 1:14:00 0:00:00 0:32:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 1:46:00
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20284 Mercy Medical Center, Redding 269:54:28 122:12:07 105:49:32 88:36:02 84:32:21 84:54:55 755:59:25
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20040 Orchard Hospital 0:35:22 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:15:00 0:00:00 0:50:22
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20326 Oroville Hospital 6:14:37 0:27:44 3:46:45 2:39:29 2:03:44 1:15:47 16:28:06
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20423 Shasta Regional Medical Center 69:42:07 58:19:58 20:57:13 34:04:21 17:14:55 24:15:00 224:33:34
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20428 Sierra Nevada Memorial Hospital 0:37:51 0:00:00 0:12:00 0:36:00 0:00:00 0:07:00 1:32:51
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20445 St. Elizabeth Community Hospital 1:35:00 0:03:41 1:07:00 0:38:00 0:40:00 1:36:00 5:39:41
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20470 Sutter Auburn Faith Hospital 6:07:19 3:17:03 1:34:28 1:32:11 1:59:55 2:12:06 16:43:02
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20481 Sutter Roseville Medical Center 135:37:41 27:53:03 21:28:14 31:31:40 32:36:03 27:31:25 276:38:06
Sierra-Sacramento Valley 20486 Tahoe Forest Hospital 0:58:17 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:03:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 1:01:17
Solano 20216 Kaiser Permanente, Vacaville 36:05:46 15:58:30 8:47:31 8:53:28 7:55:37 4:45:30 82:26:22
Solano 20193 Kaiser Permanente, Vallejo 10:18:39 3:01:01 1:14:35 2:13:25 1:20:02 0:12:00 18:19:42
Solano 20309 NorthBay Medical Center 26:46:58 6:54:25 10:39:18 10:40:22 1:34:46 0:38:54 57:14:43
Solano 20310 NorthBay VacaValley Hospital 1:59:58 0:11:11 0:22:39 0:08:00 0:00:00 0:00:00 2:41:48
Solano 20482 Sutter Solano Medical Center 12:34:20 8:22:52 2:23:06 7:22:26 3:35:27 0:25:14 34:43:25
Stanislaus County 20099 Doctors Hospital of Manteca 31:35:56 9:11:44 9:50:17 17:53:29 19:33:27 4:09:54 92:14:47
Stanislaus County 20119 Emanuel Medical Center 111:41:13 84:51:07 115:14:07 63:28:56 35:59:55 21:59:51 433:15:09
Stanislaus County 20213 Kaiser Permanente, Modesto 56:15:55 13:47:01 16:09:04 13:42:10 12:07:48 14:28:12 126:30:10
Stanislaus County 20275 Memorial Medical Center, Modesto 251:32:23 131:36:10 195:40:15 187:43:50 98:31:36 93:00:02 958:04:16
Stanislaus County 20319 Oak Valley Hospital 3:13:22 2:41:48 0:24:47 0:35:06 1:02:56 0:00:00 7:57:59
Tuolumne 20438 Adventist  Health Sonora, Greenley 7:22:19 0:47:12 0:48:48 4:51:53 1:40:54 1:15:29 16:46:35
Ventura 20434 Adventist  Health Simi Valley 15:56:32 7:00:40 14:11:12 5:05:04 4:01:27 1:41:26 47:56:21
Ventura 20084 Community Memorial Hospital, San Buenaventura 72:17:45 13:19:29 15:27:28 11:24:50 16:09:19 7:01:08 135:39:59
Ventura 20261 Los Robles Hospital & Medical Center 105:27:06 26:56:38 26:23:57 22:18:15 33:48:43 7:42:21 222:37:00
Ventura 20323 Ojai Valley Community Hospital 3:47:07 0:08:24 0:09:33 0:05:24 1:26:00 0:09:45 5:46:13
Ventura 20452 Saint John's Pleasant Valley Hospital 4:52:45 1:49:46 1:05:13 1:17:14 3:33:44 0:01:43 12:40:25
Ventura 20453 Saint John's Regional Medical Center 62:42:25 19:07:14 37:49:12 26:29:37 29:13:33 20:26:17 195:48:18
Ventura 20516 Ventura County Medical Center 14:18:11 0:53:26 4:23:12 4:01:36 8:11:44 2:45:14 34:33:23
Ventura 20517 Ventura County Medical Center - Santa Paula Hospital 2:10:23 0:07:46 0:34:10 0:24:38 0:26:04 0:48:56 4:31:57
Yolo 20473 Sutter Davis Hospital 45:53:17 9:26:53 7:58:49 7:56:33 9:35:44 13:35:26 94:26:42
Yolo 20533 Woodland Memorial Hospital 48:29:47 13:57:38 8:39:44 5:58:26 10:45:31 12:42:39 100:33:45



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE 
2ND FLOOR 
RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 
(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 

 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 
 
 
MEETING DATE: December 11, 2024 ITEM NUMBER: 6B 
 
SUBJECT: Autonomous Vehicles and their effects on EMS 
 
PRESENTER: Julia Friedlander 
  
 
CONSENT:  __   ACTION: ____  INFORMATION: _X_  
 

 
 
DISCUSSION 
Discussion on Autonomous Vehicles and any effects on EMS. 
 
SUMMARY 
Receive information from Julia Friedlander, Senior Manager, Automated Driving 
Policy with the San Francisco Municipal Transportation agency.  
 
Julia Friedlander has worked for the City of San Francisco for more than 25 
years.  She spent 11 years working as General Counsel to the San Francisco 
Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA).  Since 2018, she has worked for the 
SFMTA in a policy capacity focused on federal, state and local policy related to 
the future of automated driving.  Early career experiences working in public 
health for the State of Connecticut and the City of New York gave her an 
enduring appreciation for the essential role of emergency medical service 
providers. 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 INTERNATIONAL DR., SUITE 200 
RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 
(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 

 
 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 
 
 
MEETING DATE : December 11, 2024 ITEM NUMBER : 6C 
 
SUBJECT : EMS for Children Update    
 

PRESENTER : Tom McGinnis, Quality and Planning Division Chief 
  
 
CONSENT :  ___   ACTION : ____  INFORMATION : X 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A  
 
DISCUSSION: Review number of EMSC programs approved, EMSC outreach, the 
National Prehospital pediatric Readiness Project and quarter 3 pediatric data. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): EMSC program PowerPoint. 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE 
2ND FLOOR 
RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 
(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 

 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 
 
 
MEETING DATE: December 11,2024 ITEM NUMBER: 7A 
 
SUBJECT:    Licensure and Certification Trend Report   
 
PRESENTER: Kim Lew, Licensing, Standards, and Training Branch Chief 
  
 
CONSENT:  ___   ACTION: ____  INFORMATION: X  
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
None. Information only. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 
 
BACKGROUND  
In accordance with Health and Safety Code Section (HSC) §1797.172, EMSA is 
responsible for licensing Paramedics (EMT-P) to practice in the State of 
California. EMSA has delegated authority to sixty-four (64) certifying entities 
(CEs), to include thirty-four (34) local emergency medical service agencies 
(LEMSAs), to certify and credential Emergency Medical Technicians (EMTs) and 
Advanced Emergency Medical Technicians (AEMTs). By utilizing an EMSA 
certification and licensing record system, the Central Registry, EMSA monitors, 
collects, and reports on EMT and AEMT certification, Paramedic licensing, and 
accreditation, and demographic data. 

 
The Commission on EMS has requested EMSA provide annual reports, based on 
the State Fiscal Year (SFY) regarding EMT, AEMT, and Paramedic workforce 
trends. These reports include data on licensing, certification, accreditation, 
and demographics of EMS professionals. 
 
SUMMARY 
EMSA has determined the California EMT and EMT-P workforce has rebounded 
post COVID-19 with a total of 92,915 personnel. Utilizing data from SFY 2022/23 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1797.117.


Commission on Emergency Medical Services 
December 10, 2024 
Item # 7A 
Page 2 
 
to 2023/24 Central Registry system EMSA identified a 3% increase in EMT-P 
licenses and EMT certifications. The AEMT workforce continues to remain 
nominal by comparison.  
 
Caucasian male adults aged 21 to 40 make up a significant portion of the EMS 
workforce. 
 
The incorporation of Community Paramedicine and Triage to Alternate 
Destination accreditations have been implemented where local support is 
present. 
 
EMSA recognizes the need for robust data collection and analysis to 
adequately identify workforce trends and guide future policy decisions. As 
EMSA continues working to establish systems and strategies for real-time data 
exchange among partners and promote evidence-based person-centered 
care, further advancements in workforce data collection and comprehensive 
analysis will continue. 
 
DISCUSSION  
None. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S) 
California EMS Personnel Annual Data and Trends 



   
 

Page 1 of 10 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
California EMS Professionals Annual 
Data and Trends 

 
 
 
 

Emergency Medical Services Authority 
California Health and Human Services Agency 
December 2024 
Elizabeth Basnett, Director 

 



   
 

Page 2 of 10 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS  
 

This report was prepared by the California Emergency Medical Services 
Authority staff: 

Nicole Mixon, Supervisor, Training and Workforce 

Laura Little, Supervisor, Licensure & Certification 

Kim Lew, Branch Chief, Licensing, Standards, and Training  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

If you have any questions or comments about this report, please contact: 
Nicole Mixon 

(916) 217-3413 
Nicole.Mixon@emsa.ca.gov 

  

mailto:Nicole.Mixon@emsa.ca.gov


   
 

Page 3 of 10 
 

BACKGROUND            
 
In accordance with Health and Safety Code Section (HSC) §1797.172, the Emergency 
Medical Services Authority (EMSA) is responsible for licensing Paramedics (EMT-P) to 
practice in the State of California (CA). EMSA has delegated authority to sixty-four (64) 
certifying entities (CEs), to include thirty-four (34) local emergency medical service 
agencies (LEMSAs), to certify and credential Emergency Medical Technicians (EMTs) and 
Advanced Emergency Medical Technicians (AEMTs). By utilizing an EMSA certification and 
licensing record system, the Central Registry, EMSA monitors, collects, and reports on EMT 
and AEMT certification, Paramedic licensing and accreditation, and demographic data. 
 
The Commission on EMS has requested EMSA provide State Fiscal Year (SFY) annual 
reports on EMT, AEMT, and Paramedic workforce trends. Workforce data includes EMS 
personnel licensing, certification, accreditation, and demographic data. 
 
An initial applicant may be one of the following: 
• In-State applicant: an applicant who graduated from a California state approved  

emergency medical services (EMS) training program, or 
• Out-of-State applicant: an applicant who graduated from any other government or  

military oversight approved EMS training program, or 
• Challenge applicant: an applicant who graduated from a higher medical training  

program than EMS or is licensed in a higher medical profession and would like to 
substitute the required EMS didactic (classroom) training with their education or 
experience. 

 
Renewal applicants are licensed, or certified, persons due to renew their credentials to 
practice no later than the last day of the month every 2-years from the initial certification 
or license date.  
 
Reinstatement applicants are persons whose certification, or license, has lapsed past their 
required 2-year renewal period and are required to take additional continuing education 
courses and other steps to reinstate (or restore) their credentials to a current and active 
status. 
 
Paramedics are accredited to practice within the LEMSA jurisdiction in which they are 
employed, whereas EMT and AEMTs are authorized to practice statewide. Accreditation 
may also include EMT, AEMT, and paramedic authorized optional scope of practices or 
specialized skills. 

 

LIMITATIONS AND CHALLENGES         
 

EMS workforce analysis depends on the development of compatible data systems 
and standardized data collection regimes at various levels of the EMS system. 
These commonly understood data measures are essential for data driven 
workforce decision making. Ongoing efforts to improve the quality and validity 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1797.117.


   
 

Page 4 of 10 
 

between LEMSA, certifying entity, educator, and EMSA data will increase the 
reliability and usability of the results. Limitations and challenges to reporting EMS 
workforce data are enumerated below. 

 
Participation in Workforce Data Reporting and Workforce Representation 
 
All 34 LEMSAs participated in providing EMS applicant, licensing, accreditation, 
certification, and partial demographic data.  Only a portion of the actual EMS 
workforce accreditations and demographics is represented in this report due to 
LEMSA staffing and resource limitations or local employer and/or educator provider 
participation challenges.   
 

System Limitations 

The Central Registry record system has limited reporting capabilities. Although real-time 
and static data is available, complex relation and correlation data extraction is minimal.   

 

METHODOLOGY  
 
EMSA leveraged applicant certification, license, accreditation, and demographic data to 
conduct a retrospective analysis to identify certification/license patterns. 
 
Future methodologies will include comparison of state data with national data to include 
employment status, wages, on-the-job injuries, and other information. 
 

FINDINGS and CHARTS  
 
EMSA has determined the CA EMT and EMT-P workforce has rebounded1, post COVID-19 
pandemic, to a total of 92,915 personnel. Utilizing data from SFY 2022/23 to 2023/24 in the 
Central Registry record system, EMSA identified a 3% increase in paramedic licenses and 
EMT certifications, respectively. The AEMT workforce continues to remain nominal in 
comparison.  
 
Caucasian male adults are the predominant ethnicity/race and gender2  of all EMS 
professionals among those who elected to disclose their demographic information.  
Hispanic or Latino was the second highest ethnicity, followed by Asian. 
 
The majority of EMT’s are between 21 and 30 yrs. of age whereas, paramedics tend to be 
between 31 and 40 yrs. of age3. Only 16% of all licensed paramedics retain their CA EMT 
certification, suggesting the EMT scope of practice is an entry-level, temporary profession 

 
1 Appendix A, Graph 1 and 2 
2 Appendix C 
3 Appendix C 



   
 

Page 5 of 10 
 

for those moving on to paramedicine. 
 
A key addition to this report is the incorporation of Community Paramedicine (CP) and 
Triage to Alternate Destination (TAD) training and services during the SFY 2023/24. The CA 
system has 67 CP accredited paramedics and 1,007 TAD accredited paramedics. 
 
EMSA recognizes the need for robust data collection and analysis to adequately identify 
workforce trends and make policy decisions moving forward. As EMSA works toward 
establishing systems and strategies to create real-time data exchange among partners 
and promote evidence-based person-centered care, advancements in workforce data 
collection and comprehensive analysis will continue. 
 

  



   
 

Page 6 of 10 
 

Appendix A: EMS Personnel Trends, Data Sets 

Graph 1. 

 

Graph 2. 

 
 

90478

88577

89539
89946

92915

86000

87000

88000

89000

90000

91000

92000

93000

94000

19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24

Total Population of Credentialed EMS Personnel,
by State Fiscal Year

Total Linear (Total)

C
ou

nt
 o

f A
ct

iv
e 

Lic
en

se
s 

or
 C

er
tif

ic
at

io
ns

66475 64618 65215 65087 67413

121 118 113 99 101

23882 23841 24211 24760 25401

0

10000

20000

30000

40000

50000

60000

70000

80000

19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24

Active Licenses and Certifications,
by State Fiscal Year*

EMTs

AEMTs

Paramedics

C
ou

nt
 o

f A
ct

iv
e 

Lic
en

se
s 

or
 C

er
tif

ic
at

io
ns

*Active Count Captured June 30 of Each 



   
 

Page 7 of 10 
 

Appendix B. EMS Personnel Data 

Table 1. 

2019-2024 Fiscal-Year Summary Data, Paramedic 

Year Paramedic 
Renewal 

Paramedic 
Reinstate 

Paramedic 
Initials 

Paramedic 
Current 

2019 10,120 261 1,238 23,882 
2020 10,964 304 1,143 23,841 
2021 13,479 317 1,326 24,211 
2022 10,673 342 1,543 24,760 
2023 11,353 276 1,581 25,401 

Annual Average 11318 300 1366 24419 
 

Table 2. 

2019-2024 Fiscal-Year Summary Data, EMT 

Year EMT 
Renewal 

EMT 
Reinstate 

EMT 
Initials 

EMT 
Current 

2019 17,085 3,455 8,322 66,475 
2020 21,963 4,394 8,869 64,618 
2021 17,843 4,245 8,820 65,215 
2022 19,222 4,254 9,515 65,087 
2023 18,034 4,356 10,792 67,413 

Annual Average 18829 4141 9264 65762 
 

Table 3. 

2019-2024 Fiscal-Year Summary Data, AEMT 

Year AEMT 
Renewal 

AEMT 
Reinstate 

AEMT 
Initials 

AEMT 
Current 

2019 31 13 11 121 
2020 19 20 23 118 
2021 25 12 14 113 
2022 26 12 12 99 
2023 23 10 19 101 

Annual Average 25 13 16 110 
 

 

  



   
 

Page 8 of 10 
 

Appendix C. EMS Personnel Demographic Data 
 

 

 

1%
3% 2%

49%

15%

1%
2%

27%

Current Paramedic Population, by Ethnicity

American Indian
or Alaska Native
Asian

Black/
African American
Caucasian/
White
Hispanic or
Latino
Native Hawaiian or
Other Pacific Islander
Other

Did Not
Identify

10, 0%
4176, 16%

9359, 37%
7433, 29%

4712, 18%

Current Paramedic Population, by Age

18-20

21-30

31-40

41-50

51+ Years
of Age



   
 

Page 9 of 10 
 

 

 

82%

9%

9%

Current Paramedic Population, by Gender

Male

Female

Did Not
Disclose

1% 8%
3%

33%

18%

1%
2%

34%

Current EMT Population, by Ethnicity

American Indian
or Alaska Native
Asian

Black/
African American
Caucasian/
White
Hispanic or
Latino
Native Hawaiian or
Other Pacific Islander
Other

Did Not
Identify



   
 

Page 10 of 10 
 

 

 

7%

44%

23%

14%

12%

Current EMT Population, by Age

18-20

21-30

31-40

41-50

51+ Years
of Age

63%

19%

18%

Current EMT Population, by Gender

Male

Female

Did Not
Disclose



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE 
2ND FLOOR 
RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 
(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 

 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 
 
 
MEETING DATE: December 11, 2024 ITEM NUMBER: 7B 
 
SUBJECT: EMT Denial Report, AB2293  
 
PRESENTER: Kim Lew, Licensing, Standards, and Training Branch Chief 
  
 
CONSENT:  _ __   ACTION: ____  INFORMATION: _X_  
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Receive information on the EMT Certification Denial Report required by 
Assembly Bill 2293. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
EMSA received General Fund support for a fulltime, permanent AGPA to 
collect, analyze, and prepare the annual report. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Effective January 1, 2019, the Health and Safety Code (HSC) 1797.229, 
requires each local EMS Agency (LEMSA) and other certifying entities (CEs) 
to submit annual data to EMSA on EMT I (EMT) or EMT-II (AEMT) applicant 
and certifications, including approvals, denials, and approvals with 
restrictions from the preceding calendar year. Reports for calendar year 
2023 were due to EMSA by July 1, 2024. 

EMSA shall report annually to the EMS Commission an Legislature the extent 
to which prior criminal history may be an obstacle to EMT and AEMT 
certification, based on the submitted data. Reporting shall continue 
through July 1, 2024. 
 
SUMMARY 
In accordance with HSC 1797.229, EMSA collected data during the 2023 
calendar year on EMT and AEMT initial certification applicants. This data, 
submitted by 64 CEs, included information on criminal history, gender, age, 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1797.229


Commission on Emergency Medical Services 
December 6, 2024 
Item #7B 
Page 2 
 
race, and ethnicity. 
 
During this period, the 64 CEs reported a total of 10,232 initial certification 
applications, of which 318 applicants (3.1%) had reported criminal histories.  
EMSA’s analysis found that prior criminal history does not appear to 
represent an obstacle to certification as an EMT or AEMT in California. 

Of the 318 applicants with pending charges or confirmed conviction 
histories, 301 (94.6%) were approved for certification, including 54 
applicants approved with restrictions (probation). Eleven (11) applicants 
were denied certification due to criminal history, including seven (7) 
applicants in accordance to California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 22, 
§100214.3, and four (4) applicants denied according to HSC §1798.200(c).  
Six (6) applications remain pending due to open investigations or 
incomplete application requirements. 
 
Data gathered from 2019 through 2023 shows that an average of 9,218 
EMT and AEMT applications are received annually, with approximately 386 
(4.4%) of applicants identified as having criminal history records. Of these, 
372 (96.4%) are approved and 14 (3.6%) applicants are denied. These 
trends highlight consistency in certification outcomes and demonstrate 
that prior criminal history is not a significant obstacle for most applicants. 
 
DISCUSSION 
After reviewing and analyzing the EMT and AEMT certification data 
collected from 64 CEs for 2023, EMSA concluded that prior criminal history 
does not present a significant obstacle to certification. A summary of data 
from 2019 – 2023 no notable outliers in population totals, indicating reliability 
in its overall consistency. Over the past five (5) years, EMSA has approved an 
average of 96% of applicants with criminal history. The remaining 4% were 
denied certification in accordance with the requirements specified in CCR 
TITLE 22, §100214.3 and HSC  §1798.200(c). 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Criminal History Impact on EMT Certification 2023 
 

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I0DBAA0A95B6211EC9451000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I0DBAA0A95B6211EC9451000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=2.5.&title&part&chapter=7.&article
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I0DBAA0A95B6211EC9451000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=2.5.&title&part&chapter=7.&article


Page 1 of 11 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
Criminal History Impact on EMT 
Certification 2023 

 
 
 
 

Emergency Medical Services Authority 
California Health and Human Services Agency 
December 2024  
Elizabeth Basnett, Director



Page 2 of 11 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
In accordance with Health and Safety Code Section (HSC) 1797.229, the Emergency 
Medical Services Authority (EMSA) collected Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) and 
Advanced Emergency Medical Technician (AEMT) initial certification applicant data from 
64 certifying entities (CEs) during the 2023 calendar year to determine the extent to which 
prior criminal history may be an obstacle to certification. The sixty-four (64) CEs reported 
criminal history, gender, age, race, ethnicity, and certification action data on 10,232 initial 
certification applications. The EMSA found prior criminal history does not appear to 
represent an obstacle to certification as an EMT or AEMT in California.    
 
Data analysis shows 318 applicants were found to have pending charges or confirmed 
conviction history in their background, which represents three percent (3%) of all 
applicants. Of those applicants with reported criminal history, 301 (95%) received approved 
certifications, including 54 applicants approved with restrictions (probation). Only 11 (3%) 
were denied due to criminal history, including seven (7) applicants denied according to 
California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 22, §100214.3 and four (4) applicants denied 
according to HSC §1798.200(c). The remaining 6 (2%) applications are currently pending 
due to open investigations or incomplete application requirements.   
 
Data gathered from 2019 through 2023 shows an average of 9,218 EMT and AEMT 
applications are received per year. An annual average of 386 (4%) applicants are 
identified as having criminal history reports. Of those applicants, an average of 372 (96.4%) 
are approved and 14 (3.6%) applicants are denied per year. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Effective January 1, 2019, the HSC 1797.229,  states that each local EMS Agency (LEMSA) 
and other CEs shall submit to the EMSA data on EMT I (EMT) or EMT-II (AEMT) applicant and 
certification approvals, denials, and approvals with restrictions from the preceding calendar 
year annually. Reporting for calendar year 2023 was due to EMSA by July 1, 2024.  
 
The EMSA shall report annually to the EMS Commission and Legislature the extent to which 
prior criminal history may be an obstacle to EMT and AEMT certification based on the 
submitted data.  The 2023 calendar year is the final reporting year. 
 
SCOPE & METHODOLOGY: 
The EMSA, in collaboration with the LEMSAs, developed a standardized Excel table to be 
used as the reporting tool. The EMSA aggregated and analyzed the data to assess whether 
applicant prior criminal history was an obstacle to certification. Demographic data of 
denied applicants was also collected and reviewed. 
 
In 2023, 64 active agencies submitted data utilizing the provided reporting tool, meeting 
data reporting statutory requirements. The data collected was compiled and analyzed by 
the EMSA and is included in this report. 

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I0DBAA0A95B6211EC9451000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=2.5.&title=&part=&chapter=7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1797.229.


Page 3 of 11 
 

ANALYSIS: 
The EMSA received initial EMT certification data on 10,232 applications. Among those 
received, 318 (3.1%) applicants reported criminal history in their background checks. A total 
of 312 applications were fully processed. The CE’s approved a total of 301 (94.6%) 
applicants, including 54 applicants approved with restrictions (probation) and 247 without 
restrictions. The CE’s denied 11 (3.5%) applications due to criminal history record information. 
Of those denials, seven (7) were denied pursuant to CCR Title 22, §100214.3, requiring a “shall 
deny” action.  The remaining four (4) were denied pursuant to HSC §1798.200(c), which 
states, "[a]ny of the following actions shall be considered evidence of a threat to the public 
health and safety and may result in the denial...". Of the 318 applications including criminal 
history information, six (6) applications remained pending due to open investigations or 
incomplete application requirements. 

 
Demographic Data of Applicants Reporting Criminal History & Denials 
 
Of the data submitted in a format allowing stratification, most applicants that were denied 
certification due to criminal history, identified themselves as male.  
 
Of the 312 applications processed with criminal history information, the data indicates: 

• 82.4% identified as male 
• 14.4% identified as female 
• 3.2% chose not to disclose their gender 

 
Of the eleven (11) applicants denied due to criminal history, the data indicates: 

• six applicants (54.5%) identified as male 
• five applicants (45.5%) identified as female 
• zero applicants (0.0%) chose not to disclose their gender. 

 
Applicants 31 to 40 years of age had the highest number of criminal history reports, 
followed closely by applicants 30 years of age or younger. Of the 11 applicants denied 
certification due to criminal history, the data indicates: 

• five applicants (45.4%) were age 30 or younger 
• four applicants (36.4%) were between 31 and 40 years of age 
• one applicant (9.1%) was between 41 and 50 years of age 
• one applicant (9.1%) was 51+ years of age 

 
Of the demographic data collected for the race or ethnicity of applicants, 
White/Caucasian applicants with criminal history were denied certification the most 
among all applicants with criminal history. The data indicates: 

• 47.1% of applicants with criminal history identified themselves as “White/Caucasian” 
• 25.6% identified as “Hispanic or Latino” 
• 8.7% chose not to identify their race/ethnicity 
• 8.7% identified as “Black/African American” 
• 4.2% identified as “American Indian or Alaskan Native” 
• 3.5% identified as “Asian 
• 2.2% identified as “Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander” 
• 0.0% identified as “Other” 

 

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I0DBAA0A95B6211EC9451000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=2.5.&title=&part=&chapter=7.&article=


Page 4 of 11 
 

 
Of the 11 applicants denied due to criminal history, the data indicates: 

• eight applicants (72.7%) identified as “White/Caucasian” 
• two applicants (18.2%) identified as “Hispanic or Latino” 
• one applicant (9.1%) identified as “Black/African American” 

 
LIMITATIONS: 
Complete data collection was hindered by some unresolved discrepancies and 
incomplete data which affects the efficacy of this analysis.   
 
CONCLUSION: 
After reviewing and analyzing the EMT and AEMT certification data collected from 64 
certifying entities for 2023, the EMSA found prior criminal history is not an obstacle to 
certification. A summary of 2019 – 2023 data shows no significant outliers in population 
totals, indicating reliability in its overall consistency. Over the past five (5) years, the EMSA 
has approved, on average, 96.4% of all applicants with criminal history. The remaining 3.6% 
of applicants with criminal history were denied certification in accordance with the  
requirements specified in CCR TITLE 22, §100214.3 and HSC  §1798.200(c).  
 
  
 

 

 

  

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I0DBAA0A95B6211EC9451000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=2.5.&title=&part=&chapter=7.&article=


Page 5 of 11 
 

Appendix A: All Applicants, Aggregate Data Sets 

 

 
 

 

 
 

10081

54 11 86

Applicants
Approved

Applicants
Approved with

Restrictions

Applicants Denied Applicants
Withdrawn or Left

Incomplete

A.1: All Applications -Total Applicant 
Certification Actions - 2023 

97%

3%

A.2: All Applicants, 
With or Without Criminal History - 2023

Applicants without Prior
Criminal Conviction

Applicants with Prior Criminal
Conviction



Page 6 of 11 
 

 
Appendix B: Applicants With Criminal History, Aggregate Data Sets 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

318
247

54 11 86

Applicants with
Prior Criminal
Conviction

Approved with
No

Restrictions
(Probation)

Approved with
Restrictions
(Probation)

Denied Applicants
Withdrawn or

Left
Incomplete

B.1: Total Applicants w/ Criminal History - 2023 

82%

15%

3%

B.2: Applications Processed Conviction History, 
by Gender - 2023

Male

Female

Applicant - Chose Not to
Identify



Page 7 of 11 
 

 

 

 

   

3%

40%

44%

9%

4%

0%

B3: Applications Processed, w/ Conviction History, 
by Age - 2023

18-20 Years of Age

21-30 Years of Age

31-40 Years of Age

41-50 Years of Age

51+ Years of Age

No Age Provided

4%

3%

26%

2%9%
47%

0%

9%

B.4: Applications Processed w/ Conviction History,by 
Ethnicity - 2023

American Indian or Alaska
Native
Asian

Hispanic or Latino

Native Hawaiian or Other
Pacific Islander
Black/African American

White

Other:

Applicant- Chose Not to
Identify



Page 8 of 11 
 

Appendix B.5: Denial Reasons 

CCR SECTION REASONS FOR DENIAL DUE TO CRIMINAL HISTORY 
TOTAL # of 
SECTIONS 

CITED 
§100214.3(c)* The medical director shall deny or revoke an EMT or AEMT 

certificate if any of the following apply to the applicant: 
9 

§100214.3(c)(3) Has Been Convicted of Two (2) or More Felonies. 4 
§100214.3(c)(6) Has been convicted and released from incarceration for said 

offense during the preceding ten (10) years for any offense 
punishable as a felony. 

3 

§100214.3(c)(7) Has been convicted of two (2) or more misdemeanors within the 
preceding five (5) years for any offense relating to the use, sale, 
possession, or transportation of narcotics or addictive or 
dangerous drugs. 

2 

   
 

   

SECTION REASONS FOR DENIAL DUE TO CRIMINAL HISTORY 
TOTAL # of 
SECTIONS 

CITED 
HSC 
§1798.200(c)* 

Any of the following actions shall be considered evidence of a 
threat to the public health and safety and may result in the 
denial, suspension, or revocation of a certificate or license 
issued under this division, or in the placement on probation of a 
certificate holder or license holder under this division: 

19 

§1798.200(c)(1) Fraud in the procurement of any certificate or license under this 
division. 

3 

§1798.200(c)(5) The commission of any fraudulent, dishonest, or corrupt act that 
is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and duties 
of prehospital personnel. 

2 

§1798.200(c)(6) Conviction of any crime which is substantially related to the 
qualifications, functions, and duties of prehospital personnel. The 
record of conviction or a certified copy of the record shall be 
conclusive evidence of the conviction. 

3 

§1798.200(c)(7) Violating or attempting to violate directly or indirectly, or assisting 
in or abetting the violation of, or conspiring to violate, any 
provision of this division or the regulations adopted by the 
authority pertaining to prehospital personnel. 

2 

§1798.200(c)(9) Addiction to, the excessive use of, or the misuse of, alcoholic 
beverages, narcotics, dangerous drugs, or controlled 
substances. 

8 

§1798.200(c)(11) Demonstration of irrational behavior or occurrence of a physical 
disability to the extent that a reasonable and prudent person 
would have reasonable cause to believe that the ability to 
perform the duties normally expected may be impaired. 

1 

 
 
*: Some denial data cited multiple actions for denial of an applicant under both the “shall” and 
“may” deny categories. 
 

 



Page 9 of 11 
 

 

 

206

33

8

6

5

0

45

7

2

0 50 100 150 200 250

MALE

FEMALE

APPLICANT CHOSE
NOT TO IDENTIFY

B.6: Applicants with Criminal History, by Gender - 2023

Approved w Probation Denied Approved

9

85

115

28

10

0

5

4

1

1

0

1

34

19

0

0

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140

18-20 YEARS OF AGE

21-30 YEARS OF AGE

31-40 YEARS OF AGE

41-50 YEARS OF AGE

51+ YEARS OF AGE

NO AGE PROVIDED

B.7: EMT Certifications with Criminal Background, 
by Age - 2023

Approved w Probation Denied Approved



Page 10 of 11 
 

 

9

9

62

6

23

113

25

0

0

2

0

1

8

0

0

4

2

16

1

3

26

2

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

AMERICAN INDIAN OR
ALASKA NATIVE

ASIAN

HISPANIC OR LATINO

NATIVE HAWAIIAN OR
OTHER PACIFIC ISLANDER

BLACK/AFRICAN AMERICAN

WHITE

OTHER:

APPLICANT CHOSE
NOT TO IDENTIFY

B.8: EMT Certification
with Criminal Background, by Race/Ethnicity -

2023

Approved w Probation Denied Approved



Page 11 of 11 
 

B.9: Aggregate of 2019 - 2022 Annual Population Summary Data 
 

Aggregation of 2019-2023 Calendar-Year Summary Data 

Year Applied Disclosed 
History 

Certified, 
No History 
Disclosed 

Approved 
with 

History 

Approved 
with 

Probation 
(with or 
without 
History) 

Denied  
due to 

Conviction 
History 

2019 9062 433 9026 347 56 17 
2020 8277 393 8254 327 46 17 
2021 9328 399 9231 335 50 14 
2022 9191 367 9059 293 36 12 
2023 10232 318 9914 318 54 11 

Average 9218 382 9097 324 48 14 
Z-Score (Any Z-Score Value >2.0 indicates the datapoint is an outlier) 

Year Applied Disclosed 
History 

Certified, 
No History 
Disclosed 

Approved 
with 

History 

Approved 
with 

Probation 
(with or without 

History) 

Denied  
due to 

Conviction 
History 

2019 -0.25 1.33 -0.13 1.26 1.07 1.13 
2020 -1.51 0.29 -1.59 0.16 -0.34 1.13 
2021 0.18 0.44 0.25 0.60 0.23 -0.08 
2022 -0.04 -0.39 -0.07 -1.70 -1.75 -0.89 
2023 1.62 -1.67 1.54 -0.33 0.79 -1.29 

Standard 
Deviation: 624.63 38.29 529.64 18.20 7.09 2.48 

 

The population summary data gathered for calendar years 2019 through 2023 are free of 
outlier values for all population categories, to include: 

• Total Applicants (z-range = -1.51 – 1.62) 
• Applicants disclosing criminal history (z-range = -1.67 – 1.33) 
• Applicants approved, no criminal history (z-range = -1.59 – .1.54) 
• Applicants approved with criminal history (z-range = -1.7 – 1.26) 
• Applicants approved and placed on probation (z-range = -1.75 – 1.07) 
• Applicants denied (z-range = -1.29 – 1.13) 

All z-scores, or standard1 scores, fall within range -2 < x < 2. This indicates the data trends are 
free of outliers. The greatest variations in population data appeared in 2020 (sum of 
applicants:8,277, z-score = -1.51) and 2023 (sum of applicants: 10,232, z-score = 1.62). In all 
other years, standard scores fall within a range of -.25 – .18. Although the timing of these 
variations indicates the workforce is recovering from the sharp workforce decrease during 
the onset of the COVID-19 in 2020, EMSA was unable to determine any specific causal 
factors. 

 
1 Standard Score: an individual score expressed as the deviation from the mean (average) 
score of the data group in units of standard deviation.  



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE 
2nd Floor 
RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 
(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 

 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 
 
 
MEETING DATE: December 11, 2024 ITEM NUMBER: 8 
 
SUBJECT: Disaster Medical Services Update 
 
PRESENTER: Tim Reed, Chief Disaster Medical Services Division 
 
CONSENT:  __   ACTION: ___  INFORMATION: _X_ 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Receive updates on 2024 Fire Season Response 
 
DISCUSSION 
FIRE SEASON UPDATES 
Recent Deployments: 
The 2024 fire season presented significant challenges, with multiple large-scale 
incidents requiring extensive medical support for firefighting personnel. CalMAT 
teams played a critical role in providing medical care at CalFire base camps, 
ensuring the health and readiness of first responders engaged in fire suppression 
efforts. Below is a summary of CalMAT’s involvement and impact during the 
Mountain Fire and Line Fire, highlighting the average daily medical metrics and 
team compositions. 
 
Mountain Fire 

• Location: Ventura County Fairgrounds and Event Center, Ventura, CA. 
• Dates Reported: November 7–14, 2024. 
• Summary: CalMAT provided medical care to fire department personnel at 

the CalFire base camps, ensuring their health and readiness during fire 
suppression efforts. 

o Total Contacts: 175 
o Total Treated: 54 
o Total Transported: 3 
o Total OTC Dispensed: 3,158 
o Total Pharmaceuticals Dispensed: 862 



Commission on Emergency Medical Services 
December 11, 2024 
Item #8 
Page 2 
 
Line Fire 

• Location: 390 Oak Valley Pkwy, Beaumont, CA, San Bernardino County. 
• Dates Reported: September 9–18, 2024. 
• Summary: CalMAT provided medical care to fire department personnel at 

the CalFire base camps, ensuring their health and readiness during fire 
suppression efforts. 

o Total Contacts: 362 
o Total Treated: 102 
o Total Transported: 4 
o Total OTC Dispensed: 10,834 
o Total Pharmaceuticals Dispensed: 819 

Total Season Numbers 
Total Deployments: 11 
Total Personnel Deployed: 111 

• RN: 39 
• EMT: 27 
• Physicians: 26 
• Administrative Officers: 8 
• Physicians Assistants: 5 
• LVN: 4 
• Nurse Practitioner: 2 

Total Patient Contacts: 4,358 
Total Patients Treated: 1,239 
Total Patients Transported: 60 
Total OTC Dispensed: 64,281 
Total Pharmaceuticals Dispensed: 12,125 
 

Post Season Caches Review 
During the off-season, EMSA will conduct a comprehensive analysis of the data 
collected from all deployments throughout the 2024 fire season. This evaluation 
will focus on identifying trends and lessons learned to ensure that our response 
remains efficient and effective. Particular attention will be given to reviewing the 
formulary and par levels in our caches, making adjustments as needed to better 
align with the medical needs observed during incidents. This process is critical for 
maintaining the readiness and adaptability of CalMAT teams for future 
emergencies. 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE 
2ND FLOOR 
RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 
(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 

 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 
 
 
MEETING DATE: December 11,2024 ITEM NUMBER: 9 
 
SUBJECT: Open Nominations for Election of Officers (March 2025 – March   
…….2026)   
 
PRESENTER:  
  
CONSENT:  ___   ACTION: __X__  INFORMATION: __  
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Open nominations for commission officers for March 2025 – March 2026. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
No fiscal impact. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Nominations for commission officers are opened at the last Commission meeting 
of the year, with the election held at the first meeting of the following year. 
 
The Commission will need to nominate a new Chair, as Commissioner Burrows 
has served two consecutive one-year terms. Per the Commission on EMS By-
Laws, the chair can serve no more than two consecutive one-year terms.  
 
As outlined in the Commission on EMS By-Laws, all commission officers are 
eligible for re-election, except the immediate past chair, who automatically 
becomes a member of the Administrative Committee 
 
Current Commission Officers:  
Chair     Sean Burrows 
Vice Chair    Marc Gautreau 
Administrative Committee Atilla Uner, MD 

Travis Kuzman 
Ken Miller, MD 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE 
2ND FLOOR 
RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 
(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 

 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 
 
 
MEETING DATE: December 11, 2024 ITEM NUMBER: 10 
 
SUBJECT:   Approval of 2026 Meeting Dates   
 
PRESENTER:  
  
 
CONSENT:  ___   ACTION: __X__  INFORMATION: ___  
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the proposed meeting dates for the 2026 calendar year.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The estimated cost for four in-person meetings is approximately $62,000 
annually. 
 
SUMMARY 
The proposed 2026 meeting dates are scheduled to be held in person.  The 
following dates and locations require approval:   
  

• March 18, 2026 - Garden Grove  
• June 17, 2026 - Sacramento   
• September 16, 2026 - in San Diego  
• December 09, 2026 - in Bay Area 

 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE 
2ND FLOOR 
RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 
(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 

 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 
 
 
MEETING DATE: December 11, 2024  ITEM NUMBER:  11A 
 
SUBJECT: Response to Public Comments from September 2024 Commission 
Meeting   
 
PRESENTER: Diane Sabonis, CEA, Paramedic Disciplinary Review Board (PDRB) 
  
 
CONSENT:  ___   ACTION: ____  INFORMATION: _X_  
 

 
BACKGROUND 
At the September 2024 EMS Commission meeting, EMSA received a public 
comment from Ray Ramirez. He inquired, to the effect, whether “the existing 
Government Code Section 11522 that deals with appeals for licensure actions 
will be replaced by the new appeals process.”  In addition, Mr. Ramirez stated, 
to the effect, “Government Code Section 1799.112 is currently in the immunities 
section of the EMS Code with the Good Samaritan Act. This is not in the right 
location and is often overlooked. The notification requirements between the 
statute and the Act are not synchronized, and there are multiple definitions. 
There is a need to clarify the trigger events for notification and who the 
employer is required to notify.”   
 
The EMS Commission requested that EMSA provide a response to this public 
comment. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Question: Does the existing Government Code Section 11522 that deals with 
appeals for licensure actions will be replaced by the new appeals process? 
 
Response: Government Code section 11522 continues to govern petitions for 
reinstatement and reductions in penalties.  Regarding these petition processes, 
there is no new appeals process.  
 



Commission on Emergency Medical Services 
December 11, 2024  
Item # 11 
 

Page | 2  
 

Issue 1: Government Code Section 1799.112 is currently in the immunities section 
of the EMS Code with the Good Samaritan Act. This is not in the right location 
and is often overlooked. 
 
Response: EMSA has noted the feedback regarding the placement of Health 
and Safety Code section 1799.112. However, addressing the placement of a 
statutory provision falls within the purview of the Legislature. 
 
Issue 2: The notification requirements between the statute and the Act are not 
synchronized, and there are multiple definitions. A need to clarify the trigger 
events for notification and who the employer is required to notify. 
 
Response: EMSA acknowledges that the creation of Health and Safety Code 
section 1797.125.09 under AB 450 introduced an additional reporting 
requirement beyond what is required in section 1799.112.  However, EMSA does 
not interpret sections 1797.125.09 and 1799.112 as being unclear or in conflict 
with respect to their respective employer reporting requirements.  
 

• Section 1797.125.09 requires employers of paramedics to report to PDRB 
and the EMSA Director.   

o This reporting requirement is triggered when a “suspension or 
termination for cause” occurs, defined as suspension or termination 
for any of the following reason(s):   
 Use of controlled substances or alcohol to such an extent that 

is impairs the ability to safely practice paramedicine.   
 Unlawful sale of controlled substances or other prescription 

items; 
 Patient neglect, physical harm to a patient, or sexual contact 

with a patient;  
 Falsification of medical records;  
 Gross incompetence or negligence; 

Theft from patients, other employees, or the employer. 
o The statute requires the report to be made within seventy-two (72) 

hours of the triggering event. 
 

• Section 1799.112 requires employers to report to the local EMS medical 
director and EMSA.   

o This reporting requirement is triggered when: 
 An EMT-P is terminated or suspended for disciplinary cause or 

reason;  
 An EMT-P resigns following   notice of an impending investigation 

based upon evidence indicating disciplinary cause or reason;  



Commission on Emergency Medical Services 
December 11, 2024  
Item # 11 
 

Page | 3  
 

 An EMT-P is removed from paramedic duties for disciplinary 
cause or reason following the completion of an internal 
investigation. 

o For the purposes, “disciplinary cause or reason” is defined as only a 
action that is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and 
duties of a paramedic and  is considered evidence of a threat to the 
public health and safety, as  identified in subdivision (c) of section 
1798.200.RThe written report, along with all supporting documentation 
must be made within thirty (30) days of the triggering event.  Section 
1799.112 does not apply to an EMT-P who is also a peace officer 
protected under Penal Code Section 832.7.  

o All reports of alleged EMT-P misconduct are routed to EMSA’s 
Enforcement Division for further investigation and potential licensure 
action. 

 
SUMMARY 
EMSA has provided a response to the issues raised at the September 2024 
meeting. Any further questions or comments will be documented and 
addressed at a future meeting, if necessary.  


	December 2024 Agenda Final
	2.EMSA Minutes
	4A.FiscalAdmin
	4B. Legal Unit Staff Report
	4C. Enforcement Report
	4D. PDRB Report
	5A. Leg Dec Commission Report
	5B. Regs Dec Commission Report
	6A . APOT Commission Memo
	6A1. Ambulance Patient Offload Delays
	ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

	6B. Autonomous Vehicle Report
	6C. EMSC Program Update
	7A. EMS Pers Trends
	7A1. EMS Pers Data Trends 
	ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
	BACKGROUND
	LIMITATIONS AND CHALLENGES
	METHODOLOGY
	FINDINGS and CHARTS

	7B. EMT Denial
	DISCUSSION
	ATTACHMENT(S)

	7B1. Criminal History Impact Report 
	8. DMS Updates
	9. Open Nominations for Election of Officers
	10. Approval of 2026 meeting dates 
	11. Public Comments Response on PDRB

